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MISSION
Each of our activities must benefit and add value to the common
wealth of our society. we firmly believe that, in the final analysis
we are accountable to each of the constituents with whom we
interact; namely: our employees, our valued customers, our
business associates, our fellow citizens and our shareholders.

VISION
Our vision is to be one of the best Porcelain & Bone China Ceramic
Table wares manufacturers in the World and to be leader in the
Ceramics Tableware Industry in Bangladesh.

GOALS
•

To honor to all commitments

•

To deliver the results

OBJECTIVES
•

To follow and observe the principles of good manufacturing
practices of the industry.

•

To practice customer oriented service culture in selling &
distribution activities.

•

To keep trust and partnership and deal with the suppliers
with professionalism.

•

To achieve financial strength and to generate adequate
revenue & income required for meeting the obligations to all
stake holders upholding the ‘going concern’ principle.

CORE VALUES
Core values are our fundamental beliefs and guiding principles
which dictates the behavior and help our people to understand
the right path in fulfilling our above mission, vision & goals. Our
core values are;
Integrity & Ethical

: We uphold the highest standards of
integrity and committed to be ethical in all
our activities & dealings.

Team Work

: We work together across boundaries to
meet the needs of our customers.

Respect

: We value our people and encourage their
development.

Discipline

: We define job responsibility to make the
people accountable in a work environment
observing due diligence and discipline.

Positive Attitude

: We encourage in developing positive
attitude in our people negating fear and
insecurity and focusing on survival in
achieving the company goals in difficult
circumstances.
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Key Data

2

Year of Establishment (registration)

1997

Commercial Production

1999

Status

Public Limited Company

First Export

1999 (Porcelain in April & Bone China in November)

Business Lines

Manufacturing, Marketing and Exporting of Porcelain and Bone China
tableware.w

Current Export Markets

USA, Canada, UK, Germany, France, Italy, Romania, Norway, Sweden,
Denmark, Poland, Spain, Turkey, Japan, Australia, New Zealand, Brazil,
India, Chile, Egypt, Russia etc.

Authorized Capital (Taka)

5,000 million

Paid-up Capital (Taka)

1,469.661 million

Number of Shareholders

16,754

Stock Exchange Listing

2008

Number of Employees

2,964

SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

2020-'21 Highlight

New Customers

3 customers from new countries (USA, UAE & UK)

Achievements
•

Successfully accomplished periodic Review of Audit of ISO in two separate quarters and got recertification
for ISO 9001:2015 upto August 2022.

•

Successfully conducted C-TPAT audit.

•

Successfully conducted BSCI audit.

•

Successfully conducted SMETA audit.
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Outline
Shinepukur Ceramics Ltd. (SCL) – a BEXIMCO Company is the leading Bone China & Porcelain
tableware manufacturer and exporter of Bangladesh. Shinepukur Ceramics has been a successful
brand thanks to its state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities, about 3,000 highly skilled & motivated
people and cutting-edge technology.
From its inception, SCL has been able to gain substantial headway against its competitors and
acquire commendable market share from its competitors both in Porcelain and in Bone China.
Therefore SCL’s position in the world tableware industry is very high, with its world-class product
quality, which helped to attract and retain leading century-old branded companies as its bluechip customers from USA, Canada, UK, Germany, France, Italy, Japan, Sweden, Norway,
Denmark, Finland, Spain, Poland, Mexico, Brazil, Chile, UAE, Australia,
New Zealand, Turkey, India, Egypt, Russia and still growing.
In domestic market also, Shinepukur Ceramics Ltd. is very
well known for its premium quality tableware products. In
Bangladesh, SCL is the leader in Ceramics’ Market and ranks
as number 1 in terms of sales revenue and market share. It
has more than 250 dealers to sell and distribute SCL product
in Bangladesh Market. In the hospitality sector, most of the
international hotels in Bangladesh use SCL products.
The Company is ISO 9001:2015 certified and awarded National
Export Trophy (Gold) for six (6) times, National Export Trophy
(Silver) for one (1) time by the Government of Bangladesh.
SCL was also awarded ‘Superbrands’ (2010), ‘D&B Corporate
Award’(2011) and ‘Asia’s Most Promising Brands’ (2013).

‘SHINEPUKUR’ is the name of trust
and elegance that brings

A Classic touch in life
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SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

Product Range
Porcelain

• Plain Porcelain (Classical Porcelain, normally domestic use)
• Ivory China (Creamy colored Porcelain, Domestic/Hotel use)
• Hi-Alumina (Hotel ware)
• Satin China (White Porcelain, suitable for hotel/domestic use)

Bone China
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A S F Rahman
Chairman

Corporate
Directories
Board of Directors

A S F Rahman
Salman F Rahman
Iqbal Ahmed
O K Chowdhury
Barrister Faheemul Huq
Board Srecretary
Mr. Mohammad Asad Ullah, FCS

Chairman
Vice Chairman
Director
Director
Independent Director
Executive Director &
Company Secretary

Board’s Committee

Salman F Rahman
Vice Chairman

Audit Committee
Barrister Faheemul Huq
Mr. Iqbal Ahmed
Mr. O K Chowdhury, FCA
Mr. Mohammad Asad Ullah, FCS

Chairman
Member
Member
Secretary

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Barrister Faheemul Huq
Chairman
Mr. Iqbal Ahmed
Member
Mr. O K Chowdhury, FCA
Member
Mr. Mohammad Asad Ullah, FCS
Secretary

Management Committee

Mr. Mohammed Humayun Kabir, FCA Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Md. Faruque Ali
Executive Director

Independent Auditors

M/S M. J. Abedin & Co.
Chartered Accountants, National Plaza (3rd Floor)
109 BirUttam C R Datta Road, Dhaka 1205.

Corporate Governance Compliance Certifier
Suraiya Parveen & Associates
Chartered Secretaries, Chartered Secretaries in Practice
Avalon Serabella, (5th Floor), 09 Dilu Road, New Eskaton,
Ramna, Dhaka 1000

Legal Advisers

M/S Huq & Co. Barristers & Advocate
47/1 Purana Paltan, Dhaka 1000.

Banker/Term Loan Provider
•
•
•
•

Sonali Bank Ltd.
Southeast Bank Ltd.
Bank Asia Ltd
Phoenix Finance & Investment Ltd.

Registered Office

17 Dhanmondi, Road No. 2, Dhaka – 1205.

Corporate Office

BEXIMCO Media Complex, Level 9, 149-150 Tejgaon I/A, Dhaka 1208.

Plant

Beximco Industrial Park, Sarabo, Kashimpur, Gazipur.

Showroom

Westin Hotel (1st Floor), Gulshan Circle 2, Dhaka 1212.
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SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

BRIEF PROFILES OF
Chairman, Vice Chairman, Directors, CEO & CS

MR. A S F RAHMAN
Chairman
Mr. ASF Rahman is the Chairman of the companies under the flagship of BEXIMCO Group. He is the
member of Board of Trustee of North South University. He was Vice Chairman of IFIC Bank Limited,
Director of Investment Corporation of Bangladesh (ICB) and IPDC Finance Limited.

MR. SALMAN F RAHMAN
Vice Chairman
Mr. Salman F. Rahman is the Vice Chairman of the companies under the flagship of BEXIMCO Group.
He is the Chairman of IFIC Bank Limited. He was President of FBCCI. He is involved many social &
Charitable organizations and is renowned for philanthropic works.

MR. IQBAL AHMED
Director
Mr. Iqbal Ahmed is a Director of companies under BEXIMCO Group since early seventies. He was
director of AB Bank Limited and associated with many social and business organizations including
ICC, Bangladesh.

MR. O K CHOWDHURY, FCA
Director
Mr. O K Chowdhury is a Fellow Chartered Accountant of ICEW. He is involved with the companies
under BEXIMCO Group in different capacities including as a director since early eighties.
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BRIEF PROFILES OF
Chairman, Vice Chairman, Directors, CEO & CS

BARRISTER FAHEEMUL HUQ
Independent Director
Barrister Faheemul Huq is qualified as a Barrister-at-Law from Lincon’s Inn, UK and is currently an
Advocate in the Supreme Court Bangladesh, both in the High Court Division and Appellate Division
and acted as Legal Advisor of different corporate bodies and enlisted lawyer of different Banks and
Financial Institutions in Bangladesh.

MR. MOHAMMED HUMAYUN KABIR, FCA
CEO
Mr. Mohammed Humayun Kabir is a Fellow Chartered Accountant of ICAB. He is involved with the
companies under BEXIMCO Group in different capacities since mid eighties. He was the President
of ICAB. He is also involved with different organizations including FBCCI (Advisor), BGCCI (Director),
ICAB (Councilor) and NBR (Facilitator, ADR). He was awarded ‘National Paribesh Padak’ (National
Environmental Award) in 2010 by Government of Bangladesh and recognized as CIP – Export for a
number of years.

MR. MOHAMMAD ASAD ULLAH, FCS
Executive Director & Company Secretary
Mohammad Asad Ullah has been serving as Executive Director-Corporate Affairs and Group
Company Secretary of Beximco since 1998. He joined in Beximco Pharmaceuticals Ltd. in 1983 and
served in different responsible positions. He is the Fellow Member of ICSB. He served as the President
of ICSB for 4 Times. For his outstanding contributions he was awarded a Gold Medal by the ICSB in
2010. He is now the Council Member of ICSB. He was the Member of the Board of Directors of BICM
for the terms 2008-’10 and 2013-’16. He is an active Member of a number of renowned professional
and social organizations of the country.
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SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

Risk Management and Controlling
Risk Management Framework

Risk management is an integral part of SCL’s operations. In every stage of planning, be it for materials procurement from
abroad and home or be it for sales of its products both in export and domestic markets or day to day operations of the
manufacturing plant, risk identification and its mitigation remains at forefront. The board is the highest oversight body and the
top management are supervising and coordinating the implementation of the risk management framework at regular intervals.
The company management has overall responsibility for the establishment of the company’s risk management framework.
Risk management policies, procedures and systems are reviewed by the board regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the company’s activities.

Risks Identification

Business risks – the company is exposed to following business risks :
Internal - (i) skilled manpower is critical to quality and quantitative production. Company is prone to high labor turnover. (ii)
Breakdown of aged kiln, plant & machinery and non availability of parts, spares & consumables.
External - Inconsistent/erratic Gas pressure, disruption in gas supply & unit price of gas. (ii) Devaluation of taka causing
increased cost for imported material (iii) Higher devaluation of foreign currencies of competing exporting countries making
Bangladesh made ceramics table wares costlier in importing countries. (iv) Minimum wage rate hike. (v) Non-functioning
of ports and highways. (vi) Supply disruptions due to stopping of production/mining or non availability of right quality raw
materials due to change in layer/level of the mines/quarries. (vii) Supply chain disruption due to shipping route/channel (
e.g., Suez Canal) blockage and scarcity of containers. (viii) Upward adjustment of custom duty, VAT & Tax on imported raw
material. (ix) Withdrawal of Competitive/ preferential tariff facilities e.g. GSP.
Acts of God - (i) Pandemic (e.g., Covid-19) causing closer/shutdown of production facilities/economic activities; (ii) Natural
disaster(s) like flood causing absenteeism to work forces and disruption in supply chains and distribution channels; (iii)
Earth quake causing demolition of buildings and fire accident resulting casualties and closure of production facilities.
Finance Risks - The company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments. i) Credit risk, ii)
Liquidity risk, iii) Market risk :- a) Foreign Currency Risk b) Interest rate risk

Risk Mitigation Methodology/Policies
Business Risks:
(i)

Procurement – Sourcing from multiple suppliers and jurisdictions.

(ii) Sales & Marketing – Diversified market and using multiple channels.
(iii) Manufacturing – Compliance to regulatory and customers’ ‘ethical trade audits’ requirements for health, welfare and
safety at work place.
Finance Risks : Applying financial management techniques to improve liquidity and gearing ratios, profitability by cost
controls and efficient use of resources through input-output analysis.

Disclosure of Risk Reporting

Risks and plan of mitigations including the impacts and management of Covid-19 are disclosed in the Chairman Statement
and Directors’ Report to Shareholders as well as in the Management Discussion & Analysis segments of the Annual Report.
Also financial risks and risks from the pandemic (Covid-19) are disclosed in the notes to Audited Financial Statements.
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Management Team

PRODUCTION DEPARTMENTAL HEADS WITH CEO IN FACTORY

DEPARTMENTAL HEADS WITH CEO IN HEAD OFFICE
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SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

Company Profile
BEXIMCO Sister Concern

Shinepukur Ceramics Limited (SCL) is a member of BEXIMCO
Group which is the Largest Private Sector Business Conglomerate in
Bangladesh. The Group’s operations and investments covers across
a wide range of industries including Textiles, Pharmaceuticals,
Trading, Ceramics, Information & Communication Technologies,
Media, Marine Food, Real Estate Development, Hospitality,
Construction, Financial Services and Energy. After being registered
in 1997 and Plants’ commission in 1998, Commercial production
of Porcelain Tableware started in April 1999 and Bone China in
November 1999. SCL is located in the BEXIMCO Industrial Park,
near Dhaka Export Processing Zone (DEPZ), 40km from Capital
Dhaka City. There are captive power generation, water supply,
effluent waste water treatment and all other infrastructural facilities
available inside the Plant premises. Total Investment in the
Company was in excess of US$ 35 Million during onset of business.
The Company has already made additional Investment of US$ 10
Million to expand its Bone China Unit. The Factory premises is set
up on 25 Acres of Land and has a total covered area of more than
588,000 sft.

Bone China Plant

For the upper echelons of the Global Tabletop industry, Shinepukur
produces World Class Bone China, using the top quality rawmaterials and ingredients, sourced by highly reputed Manufactures
from all corners of the Globe.

SCL offers a multifaceted choice of refined product lines, catering
to the Omni changing market trends for novel shapes and patterns,
setting new standards, and raising the Quality bar for the top end
of this industry.

Why made us distinguishtable

Today, Shinepukur is the leading Bone China and Porcelain
Tableware Manufacturer and Exporter from Bangladesh, equipped
with the most modern state-of-the-art and latest Machinery’s from
TAKASAGO, MINO and SKK of Japan, having about 3,000 highly
skilled & motivated employees, cutting-edge technology, world class
product quality and its blue chip overseas customers. The Bone China
Unit has in-fact been set up with the technology transfer from NIKKO
Japan, coupled with extensive training facilities to our Production
team. In addition, Shinepukur Ceramics is equipped with the top-ofthe-Line Testing and Quality Control Laboratory, own raw material
disposal set-up, own captive gas-based Power generation capability,
own water supply through Deep Tube well and Sanitary facilities. The
facility has its own Medical Center with in-house registered doctor.

Quality Certification

The Company has been certified with ISO 9001:2015 by Det Norske
Veritas (DNV) of Netherlands for Quality and Process Management.
Being a member of SEDEX (UK), Shinepukur has been reported
as quite Compliant on Safety, Hygiene and Employee Benefits

These are meticulously crafted and transformed into exquisite Bone
China tabletop, mirroring a unique blend of eye catching shapes,
enviable translucency, durability, all of it with a Lead and Cadmium
free glaze. These are augmented by a highly calibrated test protocol
for Metal release, Thermal shock tolerance, Detergent, Acid and
Chipping resistance, Verification levels, Dishwasher efficacy, all
conducted by specialists at the SCL’s most modern in-house Lab.
Shinepukur’s Bone China facility is one of the premier OEM facilities
in the world.

Porcelin Plant

Complementing its superb range of Bone China, Shinepukur
also offers Plain Porcelain, Ivory China, High Alumina and Satin
Porcelain tableware to cater for all different market segments. From
Dinner to Tea Plates, from Soup Tureens to Soup Spoons, from
Retail Tabletop to Industrial, Hotel ware and Airline in-Flight items.
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perspective with SMETA (Sedex Members’ Ethical Trade Audit).
Also being successful through BSCI audit, the Company upholds
itself as the most desired outsourcing Tableware site. The facility is
considered to be the Most Environment-Friendly Tableware Plant
in the sub-continent. Regular Environment Protection Practices
are there in line with EIA Reports and World Bank guidelines for
internationally accepted standards.

Production Capacity

About ±18,000 Pieces of high quality Bone China and ±48,000
Pieces of top class Porcelain Tableware are produced at SCL per
day, that is about ±5.4 million pieces of Bone China and ±14.4
million pieces of Porcelain Tableware are produced at SCL per year.

Decal Plant and Design Studio

Exporting Countries

In last 21 years after came into being in 1999, Shinepukur has been
able to successfully develop a large export market for its top-ofthe-line Bone China & Porcelain Tableware products. The customer
portfolio now includes world-renowned Tableware companies in
USA, Canada, UK, Germany, France, Italy, Japan, Sweden, Norway,
Denmark, Finland, Spain, Poland, Mexico, Brazil, Chile, UAE, Egypt,
Australia, New Zealand, Turkey, India, Singapore and still growing.

Decal production started in August 2001. Total Printing Capacity
is about 120,000 Sheets per month, starting from single color
up-to 8 Colors with Gold/Platinum, both On-glaze (840 degrees
Celsius) and In-glaze (1220 degrees Celsius), and completely Lead
& Cadmium Free. A Design Studio was also set-up inside the Decal
Plant in 2005.

Achievements

The current Printing capacity of SCL’s Decal Plant is 180,000 Sheets
per month. The Machineries of this Decal Plant were sourced mostly
from EU countries.

In recognition of its excellence in ceramic export and become the
highest exporter, Shinepukur Ceramics has been awarded National
Export Trophy for record seven (7) times, i.e. for the FY 2009-10,
2005-06, 2002-03 2000-01, 2014 – 15, 2015-16 & 2016 - 2017 by
the Government of Bangladesh (GOB).

Packaging Plant

Production in the Packaging Plant started in June 2003. Assorted
about 200,000 Pieces White and/or Brown Cartons per month are
presently being produced in this facility. In addition, the company is
also capable of supplying 4-6 Color Printed Cartons.

Product Variety and Range

SCL produces variety of Bone china and Porcelain Tableware for
Retail as well as Hospitality (Hotel Industry), and Ivory China for
Retail Houseware, having about 245 shapes (85 shapes of Bone
China and 160 shapes of Porcelain). Also Shinepukur has nearly
1,600 developed designs for both Bone China and Porcelain, which
have been developed in its own Design Studio and Decal Plant.
Shinepukur has the most creative & region-best modelers. And for
this, any new shapes of both Bone China and/or Porcelain can also
be developed at SCL within 4-6 weeks as per buyer’s requirements.
Starting from 5 Pcs Place Settings to 20 Pcs Dinner Sets and 95 Pcs
Full Service Sets to variety of gift items, diversified kind of Ceramic
Tableware is supplied from Shinepukur.

Quality Control

The Company ensures the highest standard of Tableware through:
•
State-of-the-art Quality Control Laboratory run by highly
qualified & experienced Technicians.
•
At least, 36 different types of tests are being done in the
laboratory including–
i.
Microware and Dishwasher safety tests.
ii. Resistance to Acids and Detergents tests
iii. Tests of Heavy metal release – compliant with Lead &
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•
•

Cadmium requirements of USFDA & California State Prop
65 & Norwegian Standard.
Continuous on-line Quality Assurance engaging QC inspectors.
Regular Quality Checks at the final stages of Production (after
packing) following international standards.

SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

Soon after launching, Shinepukur could establish its leadership in
Ceramics Tableware Export of Bangladesh, achieving nearly 30%
of total National Ceramic Tableware Export every year. It’s worth
mentioning that Shinepukur is the largest Ceramic Tableware
exporter from Bangladesh.

SCL was awarded ‘Superbrands’ in 2010 – first and only ceramic
tableware manufacturer of Bangladesh to receive such recognition.
SCL also was awarded ‘Dun & Bradstreet (D&B) Corporate Award’ in
2011 in its respective category. Shinepukur Ceramics is the first and
only listed ceramic-tableware manufacturer of the country to win
such recognition from Dun & Bradstreet Rating Agency Bangladesh
Limited.
SCL also was awarded ‘Asia’s Most Promising Brands 2013’ by
World Consulting and Research Corporation (WCRC) at the Asian
Brand and Leadership Summit 2013 held in Dubai.

Contact Details:
Corporate Office

BEXIMCO Media Complex
Level–9, 149-150 Tejgoan I/A, Dhaka 1208, Bangladesh
Phone: +8809609100300, Fax: +88028879051
Signature Showroom
The Westin Dhaka, Main Gulshan Avenue, Plot 1, Road 45 Gulshan
2, Dhaka 1212, Bangladesh. Phone: +88 02 8815093
Mobile: +88 01714161638, E-mail: display@bol-online.com
Plant
BEXIMCO Industrial Park, Sarabo, Kashimpur, Gazipur Bangladesh.
Phone: +88027789756 – 8, Fax: +88027789823
E-mail: sclfit@sclbd.net, www.shinepukur.com

Code of Conduct

for Chairperson of the Board, other Board Members & CEO
of Shinepukur Ceramics Limited

(approved by Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) vide its meeting held on 16th June 2021)

Conduct & Behavior

Confidentiality

Prohibition of insider trading

Environment protection

Relationship with employees,
customers, suppliers

Compliance with laws, rules &
Regulations

Shall be prudent in conduct & behavior
avoiding imprudence, extravagancy and
indiscipline life causing disrespect or
disrepute to the company.

Shall not get involved in any form which
might be construed as an activity of insider
trading.

Respect and motivate the employees to
observe the core values of the company, treat
equally and be fair to employees, customers
& suppliers without any discrimination and
biasness for kinship, gender, race & religion.

Conflict of Interest

Shall disclose the situation if and when they
come to a situation of conflict of interest and
remain abstain from getting involved in that
circumstance/decision making process.

Shall keep confidentiality and secrecy of the
information and documents which they have
got access to or are informed of while they
are in position.

Shall take best endeavor to protect,
preserve and maintain the environment by
adopt policies & investments in this regard.

Shall remain alert and committed to comply
with the requirements of laws, rules &
regulations of the countries where the
company operates, buy and sell to avoid
fines/penalties and litigations as far as
possible and practicable.

Independency

Be independent while adopting & executing
the policies in the operations of the company.
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Activities in Pictography

Handing over the Mugs to CRP, Savar

Customer visit to showroom at the factory
14

SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

Visit of Dignita

ries and Ambe

ssedors to SC
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ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021

15

Sustainability Reporting
Shinepukur Ceramics Limited (SCL) is committed to
empowering women through employing and up-skilling
them through retraining and training them. SCL is also
committed for social and environmental obligations over
time and is implementing responsible business practices
throughout its entire manufacturing process.

Social

Environmental Related Initiatives

16

SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

ic
nom
Eco

al

During the year ‘waste recycling plant’ was in operation which
‘reprocesses’ the broken or otherwise rejected/defective
porcelain items. This recycling reduces the process loss which
pushed the contribution of Porcelain plant up. More importantly,
this is a testimony of our commitment to keep our production
process more clean and eco friendly by avoiding dumping of
the wastes.

ent

Up value Recycling

m
ron

SCL is committed to make the planet greener and more livable
for the generations to come by optimizing energy consumption
by recovering/using the heat released from the kilns (for
drying the wares and packaging boxes). There is no excess
CO2 emissions generated by SCL’s operations. Our company
is committed to the continuous development of enhanced
sustainable solutions for the energy-efficient and environmentalfriendly manufacturing facility.

Sustainable
i
Env

For a Green Manufacturing Facility and a Green Planet

Sedimentation Tank
Sedimentation tank is used to stop discharge of waste water
detrimental to health & environment.

Social Obligation

As a part of our social obligation we distributed 1000 free speling
to our factory employees and to the people of the surrounding
areas. Also factory open space are coverd by gardening and
plantation. SCL is a eco friendly company. No effluent or residual
is being discharge to open environment by & through SCL
operational activities. It gets certification from Department of

Environment under ministry of Environment & Forest, People’s
Republic of Bangladesh each year in this regard. Moreover, SCL
operating policies encourages using recycling of heat & waste
water. SCL also invested in waste recycling plant to protect
the environment from dumping of broken, rejected & defective
outputs and “in process” materials. SCL’s all these endeavors
are for its commitments to care and protect the mother earth,
the people and the society where it operates.

Integrated Reporting & six Capitals

While using the resources at Shinepukur Ceramics Limited we
interact and process the inputs in such a manner that we create
value to anyone or more or all of the ‘six capitals’. At the end, the

Manufactured
Capital
Connectivity
&
Materiality

Social
Capital

Natural
Capital

Human
Capital

Financial Capital: at the beginning of the year shareholders
fund was Taka. 4275.198 million which was enhanced to taka
4,502.261 million at the end of the year.
Manufacturing Capital: the value of the physical asset (gross) at
the beginning of the year was Taka. 7509.186 million which was
enhanced to taka 7,511.009 million at the end of the year.
Intellectual Capital: There was no change in the key personnel
of the company responsible for operations and planning. Also
there is no change in the team responsible for critical works
including development of shapes and designs. As a result the
intellectual capitals remained same during the year.
Human Capital: The strength of human capital increased to
2,964 at the end of the FY2020-‘21 from 2,871 of previous year.
SCL has reputation and brand value to retain the existing work
force and recruit new hands both at lateral and entry levels.

Financial
Capital

Intellectual
Capital

values are either enhanced or may remain as it is. The state of six
capitals as on 30th June 2021 were as described below:

Social & Relation Capital: Though the CSR activities and welfare
measures for the employees social & relation capital of the
company has been maintained during the year.
Natural Capital: The Company operated in such a manner that
natural capital remained unimpaired. For example, our factory
did not produce any smog or dump wastages polluting the
surroundings and the open air. Also use of underground water
was rationalized by ensuring use of water for multiple purpose
(Example: rechanneling the used water for hand washing /
bathing for gardening purpose) and minimized by storing and
using the rain water.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021

17

ride on time:

CHORONOLOGY
19

19

97
>>>
Shinepukur Ceramics
Ltd. was registered in
Bangladesh.

99
>>>
Commercial production of
Porcelain Tableware was
started in April, 1999 with
a Production capacity of
8MT per day. Commercial
production of Bone China
Tableware was started in
November, 1999 with a
Production capacity of
3MT per day.
>>
Launching of Shinepukur’s
own brand “SHINEPUKUR’’ in
Bangladesh to establish
strong domestic foothold.

20

20

05
>>>
To meet huge demand,
Shinepukur expanded its
Porcelain Plant to a
capacity of 15MT per
day.

18

08
>>>
Received “National
Export Trophy (Gold)”
for FY 2002-2003 by the
Govt. of Bangladesh as
recognition for highest
export.
>>
Shinepukur was listed in
the Dhaka Stock
Exchange (DSE) and
Chittagong Stock
Exchange (CSE) as a
Public Limited Company.

SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

20

00
>>>
Launching of
Shinepukur’s own brand
“DOEL” in India, this was
developed to get the
share in Indian market.

20

09
>>>
In a major expansion
move, Shinepukur
signed MOU with a
renowned German
company to expand its
Bone China unit, atworth
of Tk. 80 crore.
>>
Shinepukur was
awarded ‘Superbrands’ –
_rst and only Ceramic
Tableware Manufacturer
of Bangladesh to receive
such an honour.

20

01

>>>
Shinepukur received ISO
9001:2000 Certification
from DNV (DET NORSKE
VERITAS) of Netherlands
on August 17, 2001, for
design, manufacture and
marketing of Ceramic
Tableware.
>>
Shinepukur started its
own Design Studio and
Decal Plant with a
printing capacity of
120,000 sheets per
month.

20

10

>>>
Shinepukur expanded its
Decal Plant to the printing
capacity of 180,000 sheets
per month.
>>
Received “National Export
Trophy (Gold)” for FY
2005-2006 by the Govt. of
Bangladesh as recognition
for highest export.
>>
Shinepukur was upgraded
to its ISO 2008 version
and was certified as ISO
9001:2008.

20

03

>>>
In U.S.A., Shinepukur has
set up a showroom to
promote its own brand –
“SHINEPUKUR”, to have
a strong footing in the
vast USA market.
>>
Shinepukur’s own
Packaging Plant started its
Production with capacity
of 120,000 sheets per day.
Received “National Export
Trophy (Gold)” for FY
2000-2001 by the Govt. of
Bangladesh as recognition
for highest export.

20

11

>>>
Received ‘National
Export Trophy (SILVER)’
for FY 2009-2010 by the
Govt. of Bangladesh as
recognition for highest
export.
>>
Shinepukur was
awarded ‘Dun &
Bradstreet Corporate
Award’ - first and only
listed Ceramic
Tableware Manufacturer
of Bangladesh to receive
such an honour.

20

12
>>>
First-ever Shinepukur
Signature Showroom
opened in The Westin
Dhaka hotel.
>>
Supplied to London
Olympic Games 2012 as
Official Souvenir Products
Provided of official
dinnerware to Indian
Rashtrapathi Bhavan.
>>
Launched a new Porcelain
body (whiter) – later
termed as ‘Satin China’.

20

17
>>>
Setting up of Spray
Dryer for ISO Static Press
Machine was in progress
& up-gradation of ISO
9001:2008, recertification audit for ISO
9001:2015.

20

13

>>>
Awarded as “Asia’s Most
Promising Brand 2013” in
the Brand & Leadership
Summit 2013 (Dubai).
>>
Received “Aurthokantha
Business Award 2013”.
>>
Provided Bone China as
of_official dinnerware to a
number of overseas
embassies of different
countries (other than
Bangladesh).
>>
Successfully
accomplished Recertification Audit of ISO
9001:2008 and extended
for next 3 years.

20

18

>>>
Spray Dryer project for
ISO Static Press Machine
& recertification audit for
ISO 9001:2015 covering
period up to August
2019.

20

14

>>>
Successful completion
of BSCI (Business Social
Compliance Initiative)
Audit, conducted at SCL
facility.
>>
Signed MoU with BUET
for joint technical
collaboration on
research and innovation.
>>
Restarted the construction works to complete
2nd unit of Bone China
plant.

20

19

>>>
Set up a small scale ‘waste
recycling plant’ to process
the broken or otherwise
rejected/defective outputs
of different stages of
production. Got
recertification for ISO
9001:2015 covering
period up to August 2022.

20

20

15

16

>>>
Successfully conducted
SMETA audit on SEDEX
platform.
>>
Close to finish
construction works to
complete the 2nd Unit
of Bone China Plant.
>>
Launched two new Bone
China body (Cheaper than
real Bone China) later
termed as Fine Bone
China & Fine China.

20

>>>
Started the spray dryer
project for Iso-static
machine.
>>
Shinepukur has
conducted recertification audit & extend it’s
validation upto 2018 of
ISO 9001:2008.

20

20

21

>>>
Carried out major
overhalling works on
generators.
>>
Received cerytificate of
merit award (Manufacturing) from ICAB for 2019.
operations of up value
recycling plant
continued.

>>>
Recognition by GoB
fourth times in a row for
highest export.
>>
For up-keeping of the
production capacity
opening a LC for a
shuttle kiln.
>>
Procurement &
installation of a image
setter for decal plant.
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Global Presence
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CI

AL

COMPLI A

ISO 9001 : 2015

N
CE

Certified Company

IN I T
I AT I VE

N
BU S I E SS SO

Facility Audits & Certifications

www.bsci-intl.org

BS

SMETA

In August 2016 SCL
(Shinepukur Ceramics
Limited) has
successfully
conducted SMETA
(Sedex Members
Ethical Trade Audit)
by ITS (INTERTEK).
The SMETA is based
on ETI code and local
law as the
measurement tool &
includes the two
modules of Health
and safety and Labour
standards as well as
the optional pillars of
Environment and
Business Ethics. This
audit upholds SCL to
a unique standard &
open up a new array
of opportunity to
choose SCL as most
of prominent
customer as their
supply partner.

CI Au dited

BSCI

The BSCI (Business
Social Compliance
Initiative), is an initiative
of the Foreign Trade
Association (FTA) that
seeks a world of free
trade and sustainable
global supply chains.
BSCI is a
business-driven
initiative for companies
committed to
improving working
conditions in factories
and farms worldwide.
Shinepukur Ceramics
Limited has been
successfully conducted
BSCI by ITS (INTERTEK)
on April 2018. After
completion successful
BSCI audit it would be
helpful for SCL to open
to retailers, importers
and brands engaged in
improving working
conditions in their
global supply chain.
BSCI also brings direct
benefits to the other
actors of the supply
chain, including
producers, stakeholders
and ultimately, workers.

ISO

9001:2015

Shinepukur has been
recertified with ISO
9001:2015 (Upgraded
from ISO 9001:2008
version in 2017). In
this regards Det
Norske Veritas (DNV)
conducted two
periodic audits during
2017-‘18. ISO
9001:2015 has
implemented by over
one million
companies and
organizations
spreading over 170
countries. The aim of
the standard is to
confirm that the
companies are
meeting statutory and
regulatory
requirements relating
to the product they
are producing while
achieving excellence
in their customer
service and delivery.

CTPAT

Customs Trade
Partnership Against
Terrorism (CTPAT) is
U.S. Customs and
Border Protection’s
(CBP) multi-layered
cargo enforcement
strategy. Through this
program, CBP works
with the trade
community to
strengthen
international supply
chains and improve
United States border
security. CTPAT is a
voluntary
public-private sector
partnership program
with the principle
stakeholders of the
international supply
chain such as
importers, carriers,
consolidators,
licensed customs
brokers, and
manufacturers.
Shinepukur Ceramics
Limited has been
successfully
conducted CTPAT by
TUV-SUD on
September 2019.

Shinepukur Ceramics Limited was rated as "A" category company by Emerging Credit Rating Company for FY 2020-'21
ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021
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Govt. of Bangladesh
Awarded the Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujib Export Trophy (Gold) to
Shinepukur Ceramics Limited
for the highest Export Performance in Ceramic Product during FY 2017-18
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SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

NOTICE
SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED
17 DHANMONDI, ROAD NO. 2, DHAKA 1205

NOTICE OF THE 24TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 24th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Shinepukur Ceramics
Limited will be held under Virtual Platform on Thursday, the 23rd December, 2021 at 11.30 a.m. to transact
the following business:
AGENDA
1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on
30th June, 2021 together with reports of the Auditors and the Directors thereon.

2.

To declare 2.5% cash dividend.

3.

To elect Director.

4.

To appoint Auditors for the year 2021-22 and to fix their remuneration.

5.

To appoint Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors for the year 2021-22 and to fix their remuneration.
By order of the Board,

Dated: November 15, 2021

(MOHAMMAD ASAD ULLAH, FCS)
Executive Director & Company Secretary

NOTES:
(1)

The Shareholders whose names will appear in the Share Register of the Company or in the Depository Register
on the record date i.e. 22 November, 2021, will be entitled to attend at the Annual General Meeting and to
receive the dividend.

(2)

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting may appoint a Proxy to attend and vote in his/her
stead. The Proxy Form, duly stamped, must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not later than
48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

(3)

Annual Report for the year 2020-21 will be sent through e-mail address of the Shareholders and will be available
in the Website of the Company at: www.shinepukur.com .

(4)

The Shareholders will join the Virtual AGM through the link https://spceramics.bdvirtualagm.com. The
Shareholders will be able to submit their questions/comments and vote electronically 1 (one) hour before
commencement of the AGM and also during the AGM. For logging into the system, the Shareholders need to
put their 16-digit Beneficial Owner (BO) ID/Folio Number and other credential as proof by visiting the said link.

(5)

We encourage the Shareholders to login into the system prior to the meeting. Please allow ample time
to login and establish your connectivity. For any IT related guidance, Shareholders may contact vide
email : monir@beximco.net or mazibur@beximco.net .
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†Pqvig¨v‡bi cÖwZ‡e`b
wcÖq †kqvi‡nvìvie„›`,
†Kv¤úvbxi 24Zg evwl©K mvaviY mfvq cwiPvjK cl©‡`i cÿ †_‡K Avcbv‡`i mKj‡K ¯^vMZg Ges †Kv¤úvbxi 1jv RyjvB 2020Bs
mvj †_‡K 30†k Ryb 2021Bs A_©eQi GB mgqKv‡ji mvwe©K Kvh©µ‡gi mvims‡ÿc Avcbv‡`i mvg‡b Dc¯’vcb KiwQ|
ivR¯^
mvgwMÖK ivR¯^t ißvbx weµq, fZ©ywK Avq, Af¨šÍixY evRv‡ii weµq Ges Ab¨vb¨ Lv‡Zi Avq mvgwMÖK ivR‡¯^i AšÍf©y³| PjwZ A_©eQ‡i mvgwMÖK ivR¯^
†e‡o `uvwo‡q‡Q UvKv 1401.330 wgwjqb- hv 2019-Õ20Bs A_©eQ‡i wQj UvKv 1210.894 wgwjqb| 2020-Õ21Bs A_©eQ‡i 2019-Õ20Bs A_©eQ‡ii
Zzjbvq cÖe„w×i nvi wQj 15.73%| K‡ivbv gnvgvwii Kvi‡Y 2019-Õ20Bs A_©eQ‡i mvgwMÖK ivR¯^ cÖe„w×i nvi 2018-Õ19Bs A_©eQ‡ii (gnvgvixc~e©
eQi) Zzjbvq FYvZ¡K (21.52%) wQj| wb‡¤œi †Uwej n‡Z †`Lv hv‡”Q †h, 2020-Õ21Bs A_©eQ‡i BwZevPK cÖe„w× AR©b Kiv m‡Ë¡I gnvgvixc~e© eQ‡ii
ch©v‡q ivR¯^ AR©b m¤¢e nq bvB|
eQi

2020-Õ21

2019-Õ20

2018-Õ19

2017-Õ18

2016-Õ17

mvgwMÖK Avq UvKv wgwjqb

1401.330

1210.894

1542.953

1541.696

1455.120

15.73%

(21.52%)

0.08%

5.95%

4.90%

c~e©eZ©x eQ‡ii Zzjbvq cÖe„w×

ißvbxt †Kv¤úvbx 2020-Õ21Bs A_©eQ‡i ißvbx LvZ n‡Z UvKv 629.112 wgwjqb (UvKv 39.683 wgwjqb fZ©ywKmn) ivR¯^ Avq K‡i‡Q- hv weMZ
2019-Õ20Bs A_©eQ‡i wQj UvKv 671.512 wgwjqb (fZ©ywK UvKv 39.683 wgwjqb)- hv 6.31% FYvZ¡K cÖe„w× wb‡`©k K‡i| DbœZ we‡k¦i A_©bxwZ‡Z
Pvwn`vi wb¤œMwZ Ges †`k-we‡`‡ki wmivwgKm cY¨ cÖ¯‘ZKviK‡`i gv‡S Zxeª cÖwZ‡hvwMZvi d‡j ißvbx LvZ n‡Z ivR¯^ Avq Kg AwR©Z n‡q‡Q|
†KvwfW-19 Gi we¯Ívi †ivaK‡í A‡bK †`‡ki †PBb †÷vi, kwcsgj Ges LyPiv evRvi ÔjK WvDbÕ-Gi d‡j eÜ wQj| hvi d‡j A_©‰bwZK Kg©KvÐ
msKzwPZ n‡q‡Q; †fv³v‡`i Pvwn`v K‡g †M‡Q; ißvbx µqv‡`k nq evwZj n‡q‡Q A_ev ¯’wMZ n‡q‡Q| GQvovI Avgv‡`i ißvbxi Ab¨Zg cÖavb MšÍe¨,
Zzi¯‹ Gi wjivi g~j¨gvb gvwK©b Wjv‡ii wecix‡Z D‡jø‡hvM¨ nv‡i nvwi‡q‡Q| djkÖæwZ‡Z †fv³v‡`i wbKU Avgv‡`i †_‡K Avg`vbxK…Z cY¨ A‡bK
e¨qeûj n‡q c‡o- hv‡Z †mLv‡b Avgv‡`i c‡Y¨i Pvwn`v K‡g hvq| hw`I weMZ A_©eQ‡i ißvbx Avq (fZ©ywK Qvov) 1.92% cÖe„w× AR©b Ki‡Z mÿg
nq| wb‡¤œi †Uwej n‡Z Avgiv †`L‡Z cvB †h, †KvwfW-19 Gi †bwZevPK cÖfv‡ei d‡j ißvbx Avq gnvgvixc~e© (2018-Õ19 Bs A_©eQi) Gi Zzjbvq
A‡bK wcwQ‡q i‡q‡Q|
eQi

2020-Õ21

2019-Õ20

2018-Õ19

2017-Õ18

2016-Õ17

ißvbx Avq fZ©ywK Qvov

589.429

578.313

877.512

893.342

896.612

1.92%

(34.10%)

(1.77%)

(0.36%)

0.32%

ißvbx Avq fZ©ywKmn

629.112

671.512

877.512

893.342

896.612

c~e©eZ©x eQ‡ii Zzjbvq cÖe„w×

(6.31%)

(23.48%)

(1.77%)

(0.36%)

0.32%

c~e©eZ©x eQ‡ii Zzjbvq cÖe„w×
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Af¨šÍixY ivR¯^t ißvbx ivR¯^ Kgvi cwi‡cÖwÿ‡Z †Kv¤úvbx PjwZ A_©eQ‡i Af¨šÍixY evR‡ii w`‡K g‡bvwb‡ek K‡iwQj| PjwZ 2020-Õ21Bs A_©eQ‡i
Af¨šÍixY evRvi †_‡K UvKv 764.447 wgwjqb AR©b K‡i‡Q- hv weMZ 2019-Õ20Bs A_©eQ‡i Zzjbvq 43.27% cÖe„w× wb‡`©k K‡i| GwU †Kv¤úvbx
cÖwZôvi ci †_‡K Af¨šÍixY evRvi †_‡K AwR©Z m‡e©v”P ivR¯^| we‡klZt hLb evsjv‡`‡k †KvwfW-19 (†Wëv †fwi‡q›U) Gi we¯Ívi †ivaK‡í mvaviY
miKvix Av‡`‡k 60 w`‡biI †ewk (GwcÖj Ges †g 2021Bs Gi g‡a¨) e¨emv/LyPiv †`vKvb/KviLvbv/MYcwienb eÜ wQj, †mB A_©eQ‡i Af¨šÍixY
evRvi n‡Z †Kv¤úvbxi m‡e©v”P ivR¯^ AR©b wbwðZfv‡eB cÖksmvi `vwe`vi|
eQi

2020-Õ21

2019-Õ20

2018-Õ19

2017-Õ18

2016-Õ17

Af¨šÍixY ivR¯^ UvKv wgwjqb

764.447

533.564

655.609

635.301

541.254

c~e©eZ©x eQ‡ii Zzjbvq cÖe„w×
43.27%
(18.62%)
3.20%
17.38%
13.89%
Ab¨vb¨ LvZt PjwZ 2020-Õ21Bs A_©eQ‡i †Kv¤úvbx Ab¨vb¨ LvZ g~jZt ¯Œ¨vc weµq †_‡K Avq K‡i‡Q UvKv 7.771 wgwjqb- hv weMZ 2019-Õ20Bs
A_©eQ‡i wQj UvKv 9.732 wgwjqb|

†gvU gybvdv I bxU Avq
PjwZ 2020-Õ21Bs A_©eQ‡i †gvU gybvdvi AbycvZ (GP Ratio) weMZ 2019-Õ20Bs A_©eQ‡ii Zzjbvq 15.42% †_‡K †e‡o 16.30% n‡q‡Q| GKBfv‡e
EBITDA 2019-Õ20Bs A_©eQ‡ii 18.07% †_‡K †e‡o 18.20% n‡q‡Q| PjwZ 2020-Õ21Bs A_©eQ‡ii mvgwMÖK ivR¯^ e„w× (weMZ A_©eQ‡ii UvKv
1210.894 wgwjqb Gi wecix‡Z PjwZ A_©eQ‡ii UvKv 1401.330 wgwjqb) Gi Kvi‡Y GP Ges EBITDA †ewk AwR©Z n‡q‡Q| cwiPvjb e¨q mvgvb¨
e„w× †c‡jI (c~e©eZx© eQ‡ii UvKv 98.621 wgwjqb Gi wecix‡Z PjwZ eQ‡ii UvKv 98.732 wgwjqb) Avw_©K e¨q Kg nIqvq (MZ A_©eQ‡ii UvKv
81.194 wgwjqb Gi wecix‡Z PjwZ A_©eQ‡i UvKv 78.838 wgwjqb) Ges GP e„w×i Kvi‡Y Net Profit Before Tax (weMZ A_©eQ‡i UvKv 11.294
wgwjqb Gi wecix‡Z PjwZ A_©eQ‡i UvKv 54.596 wgwjqb) Ges Net Profit After Tax weMZ A_©eQ‡i UvKv 31.593 wgwjqb Gi wecix‡Z PjwZ
A_©eQ‡i UvKv 46.379 wgwjqb) AwR©Z n‡q‡Q| PjwZ 2020-Õ21Bs A_©eQ‡i ivR‡¯^i mv‡_ Ki cieZx© bxU gybvdv (NPAT) Gi AbycvZ 2.62% †_‡K
†e‡o 3.33% n‡q‡Q| PjwZ 2020-Õ21Bs A_©eQ‡i EPS `uvwo‡q‡Q UvKv 0.32 hv weMZ 2019-Õ20Bs A_©eQ‡i wQj UvKv 0.21|

bM` A_© ms¯’vb I Zvi e¨envi
PjwZ 2020-Õ21Bs A_©eQ‡i mvgwMÖK ivR¯^ Ges Ab¨vb¨ LvZ †_‡K msMÖn 2019-Õ20Bs A_©eQ‡ii UvKv 1305.142 wgwjqb †_‡K †e‡o UvKv
1393.547 wgwjqb n‡q‡Q| hvB‡nvK, LiP I e¨‡qi wecix‡Z A_©cÖ`v‡bi d‡j PjwZ A_©eQ‡i Acv‡iwUs Kvh©µg †_‡K bM` A‡_©i ms¯’vb Kg
n‡q‡Q hvi- d‡j wewb‡qvM I Avw_©K Kvh©µ‡gi Rb¨ ch©vß Zvij¨ Aewkó wQj bv| †Kv¤úvbx‡K PjwZ 2020-Õ21Bs A_©eQ‡ii bM` A_©cÖev‡ni myôz
e¨e¯’vcbvi Rb¨ bxU UvKv 52.723 wgwjqb FY wb‡Z n‡q‡Q|

e¨vsK FY
30†k Ryb 2021Bs Zvwi‡L Avgv‡`i †Kv¤úvbxi e‡Kqv F‡Yi w¯’wZ †e‡o `uvwo‡q‡Q UvKv 1265.418 wgwjqb- hv MZ 30†k Ryb 2020Bs Zvwi‡L wQj
UvKv 1212.696 wgwjqb| djkÖæwZ‡Z 30†k Ryb 2021Bs Zvwi‡L e‡Kqv †jvb Ges me©‡gvU m¤ú‡`i AbycvZ 30‡k Ryb 2020Bs Zvwi‡Li Zzjbvq
†e‡o `uvovq 18.90% Gi wecix‡Z 19.29%| GQvovI, †gvU m¤ú` I MÖvPzBwU, FY`vZv Ges Ab¨vb¨ cÖ‡`q Gi AbycvZ eQi †k‡l 30†k Ryb 2020Bs
ZvwiL Gi 13.20% †_‡K †e‡o `uvwo‡q‡Q 12.91%| cye©eZx© eQ‡ii AvqKi Gi mgš^q Ges FY`vZv‡`i D”Pg~j¨ cwi‡kv‡ai d‡j GB e„w× N‡U‡Q|

†evb Pvqbv BDwbU
g~jZ DbœZ †`k¸‡jvi A_©bxwZ‡Z †KvwfW-19 Gi †bwZevPK cªfve Ges †evb Pvqbv c‡Y¨i Zyjbvg~jK D”P g~‡j¨i Kvi‡Y †evb Pvqbv c‡Y¨i ißvwb
Pvwn`v D‡jøL‡hvM¨fv‡e K‡g G‡m‡Q| D‡jøL¨, †evb Pvqbv c‡Y¨i Ab¨Zg cªavb evRvi nj Zyi¯‹| weMZ A_©eQ‡i Gi gy`ªvi gvb D‡jøL‡hvM¨nv‡i
Aeg~j¨vqb n‡q‡Q| GwU ZywK© †fv³v‡`i Rb¨ †evb Pvqbv c‡Y¨i `vg evwo‡q w`‡q‡Q| GKBfv‡e, f~ga¨mvMixq A_©bxwZ we‡kl K‡i BZvwj Ges †¯ú‡b
Pvwn`vi wb¤œMwZi Kvi‡Y †evb Pvqbv c‡Y¨i BDwbU g~j¨ Av‡cw¶Kfv‡e Kg| GQvovI cyivZb kilns Ges †gwkbvwiR, we‡kl K‡i gvbm¤úbœ B‡jKU«wbK
LyPiv hš¿vs‡ki Ach©vßZvi Kvi‡Y †evb Pvqbv BDwb‡U m‡e©vËg `¶Zv AR©b Ges c‡Y¨i gv‡bi avivevwnKZv eRvq ivLv `y®‹i n‡q c‡o‡Q| AwaKš‘, 20
eQ‡iiI †ewk mgq Av‡M wbwg©Z †evb Pvqbvi d¨v±wi wewìs‡qi cyi‡bv As‡k fvj Drcv`b Ges Drcv`b gvb iÿvi Rb¨ ms¯‹vi Kiv cÖ‡qvRb| hv‡nvK,
Pvwn`vi wb¤œg~LxZvi cwi‡c«w¶‡Z Ges gnvgvixKvjxb mg‡q A‡_©i cÖev‡ni NvUwZ we‡ePbv K‡i †Kvb ms¯‹vi KvR nv‡Z †bIqv nqwb|

†cviwmwjb BDwbU
nvB †cªmvi Kvw÷s (HPC) Ges glost kiln Gi aviYÿgZvi mxgve×Zv Avgv‡`i‡K eo AvKv‡ii ÒcøvUviÓ Ges eo AvKv‡ii/eM©vKvi AvK…wZi (d¬¨vU
Iq¨vi) AvB‡Ug¸‡jvi Rb¨ AwaK c‡Y¨i µqv‡`k MÖn‡Y evav n‡q `uvwo‡q‡Q| AwaKš‘, kilns Ges †gwkbvwiRmgyn cyivZb nevi Kvi‡Y Drcv`‡bi
m‡e©vËg `¶Zv Ges c‡Y¨i ¸Ygvb AR©b m¤¢eci n‡”Q bv| AZGe, kiln ¸‡jvi ms¯‹vi Ges wWKvj wcªw›Us hš¿cvwZ cªwZ¯’vc‡bi cvkvcvwk weivRgvb
†KvwfW-19 gnvgvix m‡Ë¡I, †Kv¤úvwb cwiw¯’wZ mvgvj w`‡Z GKwU †QvU kiln (shuttle) Rb¨ GKwU Gjwm †Lvjv n‡q‡Q Ges wWKvj wcªw›Us †gwk‡bi
Rb¨ GKwU B‡gR †mUvi msMªn Kiv n‡q‡Q|
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weµq I wecYb
2020-21Bs A_©eQ‡i gnvgvix cwiw¯’wZi Kvi‡Y kvBbcyKzi wmivwgKm wjwg‡UW †`‡k ev we‡`‡k †Kv‡bv evwYR¨ †gjvq AskMÖnY K‡iwb| XvKvi
I‡qw÷‡b G·K¬zwmf †kv-iæg I weµq †K›`ª ¯’vbxq I we‡`kx MÖvnK‡`i Pvwn`v c~i‡Y KvR Ki‡Q| hv‡nvK, Avgv‡`i cY¨¸wj †UKmB Ges wbZ¨cÖ‡qvRbxq
c‡Y¨i AšÍf©y³ bv nIqvq Gi cybive…wË µqv‡`kcÖvwß A‡bK Kg| gnvgvixKvjxb mg‡q †fv³v‡`i wbR wbR evwo‡Z Ae¯’v‡bi wb‡`©kbv †`Iqv nq
Ges †iu‡¯Íviv I †nv‡U‡j †h‡Z wbiærmvwnZ Kiv nq Ges †fv³viv AZ¨vek¨Kxq Ges ¯^v¯’¨‡mev Lv‡Z Zv‡`i e¨q mxgve× iv‡L| dj¯^iƒc, Gwcªj-Ryb
2021Bs mgqKv‡j wmivwgKm c‡Y¨i Pvwn`v D‡jøL‡hvM¨fv‡e nªvm †c‡q‡Q| PjwZ A_©eQ‡i cÖ¯‘ZKviK I Avg`vwbKviK‡`i g‡a¨ Zxeª cªwZ‡hvwMZv
we`¨gvb wQj| Dciš‘ weKí cY¨ †hgb- Icvj, cvB‡i·, †gjvgvBb Ges †÷Bb‡jm c‡Y¨iI evRv‡i AskMÖnY D‡jøL‡hvM¨nv‡i we`¨gvb wQj| GB
ai‡bi P¨v‡jÄ m‡Ë¡I, Avgv‡`i †Kv¤úvwb ißvwb evRv‡i Avgv‡`i eZ©gvb MªvnK‡`i a‡i ivL‡Z mÿg wQj Ges †Kv¤úvwbi cªwZôvi ci †_‡K m‡e©v”P
Af¨šÍixY weµq K‡i Af¨šÍixY evRv‡ii Askx`vwiZ¡ e„w× K‡i‡Q|

D‡jøL‡hvM¨ ¯^xK…wZ
ißvbx evwYR¨ Ae¨vnZ ivLv Ges we‡k¦i kxl© wmivwgKm cÖwZôvb¸‡jv a‡i ivLvi ¯^v‡_©, kvBbcyKzi wmivwgKm wjwg‡UW‡K †µZv‡`i `vwe Abyhvqx
cÖ‡qvRbxq mKj ai‡bi Compliance bxwZgvjv AbymiY Ki‡Z nq| kvBbcyKzi wmivwgKm wjwg‡UW me©`v c‡Y¨i ¸YMZgvb wbwð‡Z m‡ev©”P ¸iæZ¡v‡ivc
K‡i _v‡K| GB j‡ÿ¨, kvBbcyKzi wmivwgKm wjwg‡UW PjwZ A_©eQ‡i Business Social Compliance Initiatives (BSCI) cÂg ev‡ii g‡Zv AwWU
m¤úbœ K‡i‡Q| cvkvcvwk, 2020-Õ21Bs A_©eQ‡i DNV (Det Norske Veritas) Øviv ISO Gi `yBwU ch©vqµwgK AwWU m¤úbœ K‡i‡Q| Drcvw`Z cY¨
Av‡gwiKvi evRv‡i ißvbxi Rb¨ C-TPAT 2020 Ges EU/UK †µZv‡`i Pvwn`v Abyhvqx SMETA (SEDEX Members Ethical Trade Audit) mb`
jvf K‡iwQ|
¯^xK…wZ/AwWU

†gqv`

Kvw•LZ evRvi

2022

EU/UK

Business Social Compliance Initiative (BSCI)

2022

BD‡ivc

Customs-Trade Partnership Against Terrorism C-TPAT

2022

Av‡gwiKv

International Organization for Standardization - ISO

2022

we‡k¦i mKj †`k

Suppliers Ethical Data Exchange (SEDEX)
SEDEX Members Ethical Trade Audit (SMETA)

miKvix ¯^xK…wZ
Avgv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx‡K 2017-Õ18Bs A_©eQ‡i evsjv‡`k †_‡K m‡e©v”P wmivwgKm cY¨ ißvbxi ¯^xK…wZ¯^iƒc MYcÖRvZš¿x evsjv‡`k miKv‡ii evwYR¨
gš¿Yvjq KZ…©K Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujib Export Trophy (Gold) c`‡K f~wlZ Kiv n‡q‡Q| Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujib Export Trophy
(Gold) c`K cÖvwßi welqwU RvZxq †M‡RU Ges RvZxq ißvbx Dbœqb e¨y‡iv Gi 29‡k RyjvB 2021Bs Gi ¯§viK bs 26.00.0000.103.49.003.19.139
Gi gva¨‡g AewnZ Kiv nq|
eQi

¯^xK…wZi aib

c`K MÖnb

2017-Õ18

e½eÜy †kL gywRe ißvbx Uªwd (¯^Y©)

c`K cÖ`v‡bi ZvwiL †NvwlZ nq bvB|

2016-Õ17

RvZxq ißvbx Uªwd (¯^Y©)

gvbbxq cÖavbgš¿x †kL nvwmbv, MYcÖRvZš¿x evsjv‡`k miKvi

2015-Õ16

RvZxq ißvbx Uªwd (¯^Y©)

gvbbxq cÖavbgš¿x †kL nvwmbv, MYcÖRvZš¿x evsjv‡`k miKvi

2014-Õ15

RvZxq ißvbx Uªwd (¯^Y©)

gvbbxq evwYR¨gš¿x Rbve †gvt †Zvdv‡qj Avn‡g`, MYcÖRvZš¿x evsjv‡`k miKvi

2009-Õ10

RvZxq ißvbx Uªwd (†iŠc¨)

gvbbxq cÖavbgš¿x †kL nvwmbv, MYcÖRvZš¿x evsjv‡`k miKvi

2005-Õ06

RvZxq ißvbx Uªwd (¯^Y©)

gvbbxq cÖavbgš¿x †kL nvwmbv, MYcÖRvZš¿x evsjv‡`k miKvi

2002-Õ03

RvZxq ißvbx Uªwd (¯^Y©)

gvbbxq Dc‡`óv evwYR¨ gš¿bvjq Rbve †nv‡mb †RW ingvb, MYcÖRvZš¿x evsjv‡`k miKvi

2000-Õ01

RvZxq ißvbx Uªwd (¯^Y©)

gvbbxq cÖavbgš¿x †eMg Lv‡j`v wRqv, MYcÖRvZš¿x evsjv‡`k miKvi

RvZxq ivR¯^ Lv‡Z Ae`vb
Avgv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx VAT, Avg`vbx ïé Ges AvqKi wnmv‡e PjwZ 2020-Õ21Bs A_©eQ‡i ivóªxq †KvlvMv‡i UvKv 163.637 wgwjqb cwi‡kva K‡i‡Qhvi g‡a¨ AvqKi wQj UvKv 23.536 wgwjqb, Avg`vbx ïé wQj UvKv 25.428 wgwjqb Ges VAT wQj UvKv 114.673 wgwjqb| bx‡Pi †Uwej n‡Z
welqwU AviI cwi¯‹vi †evSv hvqt
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welq

2020-Õ21

2019-Õ20

2018-Õ19

2017-Õ18

2016-Õ17

VAT

114.673

91.294

109.172

111.671

112.399

AvqKi

23.536

30.322

29.766

29.046

26.350

Avg`vbx ïé

25.428

23.436

27.227

25.623

23.964

163.637

145.052

166.165

166.340

162.713

me©‡gvU

gvbe m¤ú`
Avgv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx Zvi Kg©x‡`i †ckv`vi Ges e¨w³ DbœwZ weKv‡k wewfbœ my‡hvM cÖ`vb K‡i| Kg©KZ©v‡`i wek¦¯ÍZv, cvi¯úwiK mn‡hvwMZv Ges mgš^q
mva‡bi Dci ¸iæZ¡ Av‡ivc K‡i| †Kv¤úvbxi †UKmB Dbœq‡bi aviv Ae¨vnZ ivLvi ¯^v‡_© Avgiv Avgv‡`i Kg©x‡`i `ÿZv, D‡`¨vM‡K AbycÖvwYZ Kwi|
30‡k Ryb 2021Bs Zvwi‡L kvBbcyKzi wmivgwKm wjwg‡UW Gi gvbe m¤ú` Gi msL¨v 93 Rb e„w× †c‡q 2964 R‡b DbœxZ nq- hv 30‡k Ryb 2020Bs
Zvwi‡L wQj 2871 Rb|

mvgvwRK cÖwZkÖæwZ
mvgvwRK cÖwZkÖæwZi Ask wnmv‡e Avgv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx wewfbœ mvgvwRK I mvs¯‹…wZK cÖwZôvb‡K mwµq mvnvh¨ I mn‡hvwMZv K‡i _v‡K| Avgiv RvZxq
w`em cvjb Dcj‡¶¨ wewfbœ wbDR mvwcø‡g›U cÖKv‡k ¯úÝi K‡i _vwK| wmivwgKm wk‡íi Dbœqb K‡í ey‡q‡Ui GKwU M‡elYv `j‡K mn‡hvwMZv K‡iwQ
Ges GB j‡ÿ¨ Zv‡`i‡K Avgv‡`i cixÿvMvi I Gi miÄvgvw` e¨env‡ii AbygwZ w`‡qwQ| kvBbcyKzi wmivgwKm wjwg‡UW wewfbœ mg‡q †Ljvayjv,
mvs¯‹…wZK Abyôvb Ges myweavewÂZ wkï I kvixwiK cÖwZeÜx/Aÿg e¨w³‡`i mvnvh¨Kvix ms¯’v¸wj‡K wewfbœ mg‡q Aby`vb/mn‡hvwMZv K‡i Avm‡Q|
†`‡ki e„nËg e¨emvwqK †Mvwô wnmv‡e Avgiv mgv‡Ri cÖwZ Avgv‡`i `vwqZ¡ fy‡j hvBwb ev RvwZi AvnŸv‡b mvov w`‡Z wØav Kwiwb| K‡c©v‡iU †mvm¨vj
G¨vKwUwfwUi Ask wnmv‡e Avgv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx/MÖæc †KvwfW-19 gnvgvix PjvKvjxb mg‡q †ek K‡qKwU †cÖvMÖvg/Kvh©Kjv‡c AskMÖnY K‡i‡Q| weMZ
eQ‡ii b¨vq Avgv‡`i MÖæc miKvix nvmcvZvj¸‡jv‡Z †egwmwfi (†R‡bwiK †igwWwmwfi) webvg~‡j¨ mieivn Kiv Ae¨vnZ †i‡L‡Q Ges Ab¨vb¨
nvmcvZvj¸‡jv‡Z Zzjbvg~jK Kg g~‡j¨ mieiv‡ni e¨e¯’v K‡i‡Q| miKv‡ii AvnŸv‡b mvov w`‡q AvgivI gvbweK Kvi‡Y webvg~‡j¨ Jla we‡`‡k
cvwV‡qwQ| Avgiv d«›UjvBb Kgx©‡`i myiÿvi Rb¨ miKvi g‡bvbxZ nvmcvZvj¸‡jv‡Z webvg~‡j¨ wcwcB, Jla Ges K‡ivbv cixÿvi KxU cÖ`vb K‡iwQ|
MÖæ‡ci cÿ †_‡K MZ eQi ¯’vwcZ K‡ivbv †Uw÷s j¨ve‡iUix eQie¨vcx Pvjy wQj| Kg©KZ©v-Kg©Pvix‡`i e¨w³MZ myiÿvi Rb¨ †Kv¤úvbxi cÿ †_‡K
m¨vwbUvB‡Rk‡bi Rb¨ AvP©I‡q ¯’vcb, mKj cÖ‡ekc‡_ ZvcgvÎv cixÿv, wbqwgZ nvZ †avqvi e¨e¯’v Ges Kg©‡ÿ‡Î mKj‡K gv¯‹ e¨envi eva¨Zvg~jK
Kiv n‡q‡Q|

K…ZÁZv ¯^xKvi
Avgv‡`i m¤§vwbZ MÖvnK, e¨vsKvi, mieivnKvix, miKvix ms¯’vmg~n, wewae× cÖwZôvbmn mKj cÖwZôvb‡K Ges hviv Avgv‡`i e¨emv cwiPvjbvi mv‡_
RwoZ Zvu‡`i mKj‡K AvšÍwiK ab¨ev` Ávcb KiwQ| Avgiv †Kv¤úvbxi †kqvi †nvìvi‡`i cÖwZ K…ZÁ- hv‡`i mve©ÿwYK g~j¨evb mn‡hvwMZv Ges
mg_©b †Kv¤úvbx‡K AvR‡Ki GB Ae¯’v‡b G‡b‡Q| Avgiv hv AR©b K‡iwQ, Zv mK‡ji mw¤§wjZ cÖ‡PóviB dmj|
wbtm‡›`‡n GB gnvgvix (†KvwfW-19) Avgv‡`i †Kv¤úvbx Ges mgMÖ we‡k¦i A_©bxwZ‡K cÖfvweZ Ki‡Q| hw`I wUKv`vb Kg©m~Pxi d‡j cÖvYnvwbi
msL¨v A‡bKvs‡k K‡g‡Q Z_vwc GB fvBiv‡mi cybivwefz©wZ I cwieZ©bkxj AvPiY D‡Ø‡Mi welq| †Wëv †fwi‡q›U c~e©eZ©x †fwi‡q›U †_‡K A‡bK
†ewk g„Zy¨ NwU‡q‡Q| mv¤úªwZKmg‡q K‡ivbvi PZz_© †XD BD‡iv‡c we‡klZt Rvg©vbx, Awóªqv cÖf„wZ †`‡k msµwgZ n‡q‡Q| cÖwZ‡ewk fvi‡Z bZzb †Wëv
cøvm †fwi‡q›U Gi Avwef©ve N‡U‡Q Ges AvksKv Kiv n‡”Q GwU AviI †ewk aŸsmvZ¡K| Avgiv hLb †KvwfW-19 Gi mv‡_ jovB Kivi †Póv KiwQ,
ZLb gnvgvixi Kvi‡Y wek¦e¨vcx jK WvDb/ kvU WvD‡bi cÖfv‡e Ab¨vb¨ mK‡ji g‡Zv Avgv‡`i‡KI †e`bv`vqKfv‡e cwiw¯’wZi m¤§yLxb n‡Z n‡”Q|
A_©‰bwZK g›`v Avgv‡`i e¨emv Ges idZvbxi Dci †bwZevPK cÖfve †dj‡Q| AvMvgx w`‡bi P¨v‡jÄ¸‡jv m„RbkxjZv Ges cwiewZ©Z cwiw¯’wZi mv‡_
gvwb‡q †bIqvi ÿgZvi Dci wbf©i Ki‡e| GB P¨v‡jwÄs mg‡q Avgiv mK‡j GK mv‡_ i‡qwQ Ges Avgiv weRqx n‡ev BbkvAvjøvn|
Avwg Avev‡iv Avgv‡`i mKj ïfvKv•LxMY‡K AvšÍwiK ab¨ev` RvbvB Ges fwel¨‡Z Zuv‡`i Ae¨vnZ mg_©b I mn‡hvwMZv Kvgbv Kwi|

G Gm Gd ingvb

†Pqvig¨vb
ZvwiL: 21 †k A‡±vei, 2021Bs
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Chairman’s Statements
Dear Shareholders,
I take this opportunity to welcome you on behalf of the Board of Directors to this 24th Annual General
Meeting of our Company, and to lay before you a brief resume of the affairs of the company for the period
from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021.
Revenue

Overall Revenue: Overall revenue comprises of export sales, subsidy income, domestic sales & other income. Overall revenue
increased to Taka 1401.330 million in FY2020-’21 against Taka 1210.894 million in FY2019-‘20. The rate of increase in FY2020-‘21
over FY2019-’20 was 15.73%. During the FY2019-’20, the overall revenue had a negative growth of 21.52% due to the impact of
Covid19. During FY2018-’19 (pre-pandemic year) overall revenue was Taka 1542.953 million. The table below shows that, despite
having a positive growth in FY2020-’21, the company could not earn overall revenue to the level of pre-pandemic year.
Taka in Million

Year
Overall Revenue
Increase/(decrease) over previous Year

FY2020-‘21

FY2019-‘20

FY2018-‘19

FY2017-‘18

FY2016-‘17

1401.330

1210.894

1542.953

1541.696

1455.120

15.73%

(21.52%)

0.08%

5.95%

4.90%

Export: During the FY 2020-’21 the company earned export sales of Taka 629.112 million (including Subsidy Taka 39.683 million)
against Taka 671.512 million (including subsidy Taka 93.199 million) in previous year, which indicates a negative growth of 6.31%.
Lower demand in advanced economies and stiff competition amongst the manuf acturers from home & abroad resulted lesser
revenue from export. To combat the spread of Covid19, Governments of many countries declared ‘locked down’ resulting closer of
chain stores, shopping malls and retail outlets. Consequently economies shrank/contracted; consumers demand fell; export orders
either cancelled or postponed. Also Turkey, one of the major destination of our export, during the year experienced stiff fall in
value of it’s currency, Turkish Lira, against USD & EURO, causing imported ceramics products costlier and the lower demand there.
Although there was a marginal growth of 1.92% in export sales (without subsidy) during the year, the table below however depicts
that the negative impact of covid19 on our export sales is yet to be over, as the export sales was far behind from the export sales of
the pre-pandemic year (FY2018-’19).
Taka in Million

Year

FY2020-‘21

FY2019-‘20

FY2018-‘19

FY2017-‘18

FY2016-‘17

589.429

578.313

877.512

893.342

896.612

Increase/(decrease) over previous Year

1.92%

(34.10%)

(1.77%)

(0.36%)

0.32%

Export Sales including subsidy income

629.112

671.512

877.512

893.342

896.612

Increase/(decrease) over previous Year

(6.31%)

(23.48%)

(1.77%)

(0.36%)

0.32%

Export Sales without subsidy income

Domestic: In view of declining export, the company focused to increase the domestic sales during the year. Our company earned
Taka 764.447 million from the domestic sales during the FY 2020-’21, 43.27% higher than that of FY2019-’20. This is the highest level
of domestic sales the company could achieve since its inception. This year’s success in increasing the domestic sales was remarkable
despite Bangladesh was under locked down for more than 60 days (during April and May 2021), when under general order of the
Government, the businesses/retail shops/factories/plying of public transports were closed/shut down to combat the spreading of
Covid19 (Delta Variant).
Taka in Million

Year
Domestic Sales
Increase/(decrease) over previous Year
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FY2020-‘21

FY2019-‘20

FY2018-‘19

FY2017-‘18

FY2016-‘17

764.447

533.564

655.609

635.301

541.254

43.27%

(18.62%)

3.20%

17.38%

13.89%

Other Income: Our company earned other income Taka 7.771 million mainly from scrap sales during the FY 2020-’21, which was Taka
5.818 million in FY 2019-’20.

Operating Result

Gross profit ratio during the year improved to 16.30% from last year’s 15.42%. Similarly EBITDA increased to 18.25% from previous
year’s 18.07%. Increased overall revenue (Taka 1401.330 million against last year’s Taka 1210.894 million) helped to achieve higher
GP and EBITDA during the year. Although, operating expenses marginally increased (Taka 98.732 million against Taka 98.621
million), however, savings from finance cost (Taka 78.838 million against Taka 81.194 million), along with increased GP ratio, resulted
higher net profit before tax (Taka 54.596 million against Taka 11.296 million) and net profit after tax Taka 46.379 million against
last year’s Taka 31.593 million. NPAT for current year stood at 3.33% against last year’s 2.62% on revenue and EPS for current year
calculated at Taka 0.32 against Taka 0.21 of previous year.

Generated cash & Utilization

During the year, collections from turnover & other income increased to Taka 1393.547 million which was Taka 1305.142 million in
previous year. However, higher payments against cost & expenses resulted lower net cash generation from the operating activities
during the year which was not adequate to finance the cash outflows for investing activities and dividend payments. Accordingly the
company had to borrow (net) Taka 52.723 million during the year for financing the gap between cash inflows and out flows.

Outstanding loan & Liabilities

Loan outstanding of our company increased at Taka 1265.418 million as on June 30, 2021, which was Taka 1212.696 million as on
June 30, 2020. As a result, outstanding loan to total assets ratio also increased at 19.29% on June 30, 2021 compared to 18.90% on
June 30, 2020. However, liabilities for gratuity, creditors, accruals & other payables to total assets ratio decreased to 12.91% on June
30, 2020 which was 13.20% at the end of last year. Adjustments for income tax provisions for prior years and higher payment against
creditors resulted such improvement.

Bone China Plant

Export demand for Bone China table wares significantly came down, primarily because of negative impacts of Covid-19 on the
economies in the advanced countries and comparative higher price of Bone China products. It may be mentioned that one of
the major markets for Bone China products was Turkey. Its currency was under pressure for devaluation. This caused the Bone
China product costlier for Turkish consumers. Similarly, depressed demand in Mediterranean economies particularly, Italy and Spain
lowered the unit price of exported Bone China products. Also because of aged kilns and machineries, especially non-availability
of quality electronic spare parts are standing on the way for getting optimum efficiency and keeping quality consistency at Bone
China unit. Moreover, the older sections of the factory building of Bone China plant, which was constructed more than 20 years
ago, is required to be renovated better yield and quality consistency in production. However, in view of the depressed demand and
considering the liquidity position during the pandemic period no renovation works were undertaken.

Porcelain Plant

Limitations in High Pressure Casting (HPC) and space constraints in glost kiln discouraged us to accept volume order for large sized
“Platter” and big sized/square shaped (flat wares) items. Moreover, aged kilns and machineries are standing in the way for optimum
efficiency and quality consistency. Therefore, renovation & replacement of kilns, production and decal printing machinery were
required. Despite, the prevailing Covid-19, the company, to ease the situation, opened a LC for a small Kiln (shuttle) and procured a
image setter for decal printing machine during the year.

Marketing and Sales

In 2020-’21 SCL did not participate any trade fair neither in home nor in abroad due to the pandemic situation. However, the exclusive
showroom & sales centre at Westine Dhaka was functioning to cater the needs of the high end local & foreign visiting customers.
However, our products being durable and non-essentials in nature, its repeat purchase is minimum. During pandemic period,
consumers preferred their spending for essential and health care items when consumers are directed to stay at home and visiting to
restaurant and hotels were discouraged. As a result, demand for hospitality wares during April – June 2021 period substantially went
down. Stiff competition amongst the manufacturers and importers were there. Substitute products like, Opal, Pyrex, Melamine &
Stainless table wares are sharing the slice as well. Despite such challenges, our company during the year could retain our customers
in export market and increased the domestic market share by achieving highest domestic sales since inception of the company.
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Significant Accreditations

To continue export sale and retain the world’s top brands, SCL has to ensure all the required compliances demanded by the buyers.
Shinepukur has been serious in keeping its quality edge over its competitors. Towards these end, SCL has completed fifth audit of
Business Social Compliance Initiatives (BSCI) during the year. ISO audits from DNV (Det Norske Veritas) completed its periodic half
yearly review twice in 2020 -21. We have also obtained C-TPAT 2020 certification for marketing our products in USA market during
the year. We have also complied with the new requirements of SMETA (SEDEX Members Ethical Trade Audit) for EU/UK customers.
Accreditation

Validity

Focused Market

2022

UK/EU

Business Social Compliance Initiative (BSCI)

2022

Europe

Customs-Trade Partnership Against Terrorism C-TPAT

2022

USA

International Organization for Standardization - ISO

2022

Across the Globe

Suppliers Ethical Data Exchange (SEDEX)
SEDEX Members Ethical Trade Audit (SMETA)

Government Recognition

Our company has been awarded Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujib Export Trophy (Gold) by Ministry of Commerce, Government of
Bangladesh in recognition to our highest export performance in Ceramics products during the FY2017-’18. The declaration
of awarding the National Export Trophy has been gazetted and was communicated by Export Promotion Bureau (EPB) vide ref.
26.00.0000.103.49.003.09.139, dated: 29th July, 2021.
Year

Type of Recognition

Handed Over By

2017-‘18

Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujib Export Trophy (Gold)

Date of handing over of the trophy yet to be announced

2016-‘17

National Export Trophy (Gold)

Honorable Prime Minister H.E. Sheikh Hasina

2015-‘16

National Export Trophy (Gold)

Honorable Prime Minister H.E. Sheikh Hasina

2014-‘15

National Export Trophy (Gold)

Honorable Commerce Minister Mr. Tofayel Ahmed

2009-‘10

National Export Trophy (Silver)

Honorable Prime Minister H.E. Sheikh Hasina

2005-‘06

National Export Trophy (Gold)

Honorable Prime Minister H.E. Sheikh Hasina

2002-‘03

National Export Trophy (Gold)

Honorable Advisor In Charge of MoC Mr. Hossain Z. Rahman

2000-‘01

National Export Trophy (Gold)

Honorable Prime Minister H.E. Begum Khaleda Zia

Contribution to National Exchequer

Our Company paid over Taka 163.636 million in the form of VAT, Import Duty and Income tax during the year of which income tax
was Taka 23.536 million , Import Duty was Taka 25.428 million and VAT amount was Taka 114.673 million during the year. The table
below shows the contribution to National Exchequer:
Taka in Million

Particulars

FY2020-‘21

FY2019-‘20

FY2018-‘19

FY2017-‘18

FY2016-‘17

114.673

91.294

109.172

111.671

112.399

Income Tax

23.535

30.322

29.766

29.046

26.350

Import Duty

25.428

23.436

27.227

25.623

23.964

163.636

145.052

166.165

166.340

162.713

VAT

Total

Human Resources

Our company offers opportunities for both professional & personal development to its employees. It practices a work environment
of trust, cooperation & collaboration. We do so to develop the skills & zeal of our employees to achieve the company goals on a
sustainable basis. SCL’s Human Resources strength at the end of June 2021 stood 2,964 Nos. against 2,871 Nos. of June 2020.
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Social Commitment

As part of the social commitment, the company provided active cooperation and support to different organizations and institutions.
We sponsored news supplements on the occasion of national days and supported a research team of BUET on advanced ceramic
studies and allowed them to use our laboratory and equipments for the research works. SCL took part in sponsoring sports, cultural
programs and assisted the organizations helping underprivileged children and physically challenged/incapacitated people.
As a part of the largest conglomerates in the country, we have neither forgotten our responsibilities towards society nor hesitated to
respond to the nation’s calls. Accordingly as a part of corporate Social Responsibility our company/Group participated in a number
of programmes /activities during the pandemic period caused by the Covid-19. Like previous year, our Group continued supplying
government hospitals with Bemsivir (the generic Remdesivir) for free and kept the price of the medicine relatively lower for other
hospitals. In response to Government call, we have also sent free medicine abroad on humanitarian grounds. We continued donating
PPEs, medicines, and test kits to government-designated hospitals for frontline workers. The Corona testing lab set up during last year
by the Group was also functioning during the year. The preventive measures, such as setting up archway for sanitization, checking
temperature on the entrance, practice of washing hands and compulsory wearing face mask for all employees at work, were also kept
enforced at company’s cost during the year.

Acknowledgement

I take this opportunity to express my sincere thanks to our customers, bankers, suppliers, government agencies, regulatory bodies
and everyone with whom the company interacted in conducting its business. We are grateful to you, the shareholders, for extending
at all times, your invaluable support and cooperation to bring the company to the level it has reached today. The success we have
achieved so far was only possible because of the collective efforts of all concerned.

Concluding Remarks

No doubt the pandemic (Covid -19) has impacted our company and the economies of the World. Although the vaccination has
reduced the casualties largely, yet it’s re-emerging and mutating characters is a matter of more concern. DELTA variant caused more
death than the previous variants. The fourth wave of Covid-19 has emerged in Europe (Austria, Germany) and new DELTA PLUS
variant has broken out in India lately and is said to be more destructive. While we are trying to cope with Covid-19, there is no denying
that the shutdown put in place in response to the pandemic has been affecting us painfully, like almost everyone else. The economic
slowdown has had immediate and inevitable consequences on our businesses and exports. Regardless of the challenges ahead, we
will rely on our creativity and ability to adapt to trying circumstances. Hope we all shall remain together during this challenging time
and InShaAllah we will prevail.
Once again, I convey my heartiest thanks to all our stakeholders and look forward to their continued support and cooperation in
future.

A S F Rahman
Chairman

Dated: 21st October, 2021

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021

35

Corporate Governance
The maintenance of effective Corporate Governance remains a key priority to the Board of Shinepukur Ceramics Ltd.
Recognizing the importance of it, the board and other senior management remained committed to high standards
of Corporate Governance. To exercise about clarity of director’s responsibilities towards the shareholders, Corporate
Governance must be dynamic and focus to the business objectives of the Company and create a culture of openness
and accountability. Keeping this in mind, clear structure and accountabilities supported by well understood policies
and procedures to guide the activities of Company’s management, both in its day-to-day business and in the areas
associated with internal control have been instituted.

Internal Financial Control

The Directors are responsible for the Company’s system of
internal financial control. Although no system of internal control
can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement
and loss, the Company’s system is designed to provide the
directors with reasonable assurance that problems are timely
identified and dealt with appropriately. Key procedures to
provide effective internal financial control can be described in
following heads:
Management Structure - The Company is operating through a
well defined management structure headed by a Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) under whom there are Executive Director (ED)
and Managers for various departments and according to
hierarchy, various senior & mid level management staffs. The
Chief Executive Officer, ED and Managers meet at regular
interval represented also by Administration, Finance, Marketing
& Production heads.
Financial Reporting – There are comprehensive management
reporting disciplines which involve the preparation of annual
budgets by all operating departments. Executive management
reviews the budgets and actual results are reported against the
budget and revised forecasts are prepared at regular intervals.
Asset Management – The Company has sound asset
management policy, which reasonably assures the safeguarding
of assets against unauthorized use or disposition. The Company
also follows proper records and policy regarding capital
expenditure.
Functional Reporting – In pursuance with keeping the reliability
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of financial information used within the business or for
publication, the management has identified some key areas
which are subject to monthly reporting to the chairman of the
board. These include monthly treasury operations, Financial
Statements. Other areas are also given emphasis by reviewing
on quarterly basis. These include information strategy,
environmental and insurance matters.

Statement of Director’s Responsibilities for
Preparation and Presentation of the Financial
Statements

The following statement is made with a view to distinguishing
for shareholders the respective responsibilities of the directors
and the auditors in relation to the financial statements.
The Companies Act 1994 requires the directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of
the financial year and of the profit for the year / period to that
date. In preparing those financial statements the directors are
required:
•
•
•

to select suitable accounting policies and the apply them in
a consistent manner;
to make reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates
where necessary;

to state whether all applicable accounting standards have
been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the notes to the financial statements;

•
•

•

to take such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities;

to ensure that the Company keeps accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial
position of the Company and which enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with disclosure
requirements to the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities
and Exchange Rules 1987; and
to prepare the financial statements on a going concern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume the Company
will continue in business.

Board of Directors and Committee

The Board – The board is responsible to the shareholders for the
strategic development of the Company, the management of the
Company’s assets in a way that maximizes performance and the
control of the operation of the business.
The board of directors is responsible for approving Company
policy and responsible to the shareholders for the Company’s
financial and operational performance. Responsibility for the
development and implementation of Company policy and
strategy, day-to-day operational issues is delegated by the
board to the management of the Company.
Board Structure and Procedure – The membership of the
board during the year / period ended 30 June 2021 stood at
five directors. All directors are equally accountable at law to
the shareholders for the proper conduct of the business. The
Company’s Board currently comprises the Chairman, ViceChairman and three Directors. The Board has two committee,
namely, Audit Committee & Nomination & Remuneration
Committee (NRC). The name of the Directors and Board’s
committee members stated in CORPORATE DIRECTORIES
page in the beginning of the Annual Report.
Management Committee (MC) – MC annually appraises the
performances of every level of employees as per policy &
guidelines of the NRC. It determines the annual increment,

promotion and parameter of remuneration for all level of
executives & workers.

Going Concern

After making enquiries, the directors, at the time of approving
the financial statements, have determined that there is
reasonable expectation that the Company have adequate
resources to continue operation for the foreseeable future. For
this reason, the directors have adopted the going concern basis
in preparing the financial statements.

Rights and Relations with Shareholders

Control Rights of Shareholders – At annual general meeting,
shareholders have rights of participation and supervision. They
have the right to ask questions of and request of information
from the board regarding item on the agenda to the extent
necessary to make an informed judgment of the Company’s
affairs.
Relations with Shareholders – The annual general meeting
are used as an important opportunity for communication with
both institutional and general shareholders. In addition, the
Company maintains relations with shareholders through the
corporate affairs secretarial department.
The following information can be addressed through the
secretarial department:
•
•
•
•
•

Dividend payment enquires
Dividend mandate instruction
Loss of share certificate/dividend warrants
Notification of change of address
Transfer of shares

The board believes that it is important to respond adequately
to all the queries of both institutional and general shareholders.
At the AGM the shareholders are offered an opportunity to
raise with the board any specific question they have concerning
the Company. In addition, meetings are also held between
individual directors and institutional shareholders at various
times during the year.
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Directors’ Report

to the Shareholders for the year ended June 2021

Dear Shareholders,
The Directors have pleasure in submitting hereunder “Directors’ Report” together with the Audited Accounts
for the year ended June 2021 and “Auditors’ Report” thereon:.
Industry Outlook and Possible Future Development
Supply Chain Disruption Caused Higher Importing Cost

We know that manufacturing of ceramic table wares are based on imported raw materials. Besides the invoice value of the raw materials,
exchange rate of Taka against foreign currencies as well as the rate of ocean freight to transport the materials to Bangladesh have
significant impact on the cost of production and thereby on the continuity of table wares manufacturing in Bangladesh. Unfortunately,
the mining and processing of the materials could not be continued during the pandemic period. Also functioning of ports because of
halting of loading/unloading and transportation of cargoes to and from ports caused disruptions in the supply chain resulting higher
importing cost.
Inconsistent Gas Pressure and Worker’s Absenteeism affected Productivity
Un-interrupted gas & electricity supplies and competitive labor cost are critical factors for flourishing ceramic table wares
manufacturing in Bangladesh. Because of decrease in proven gas reserve, there was uncertainty in the availability of gas for industries.
However, Government decision for importing liquid natural gas (LNG) had reduced that uncertainty to a great extent. But, LNG cost
at international spot market increased substantially during the year. Government, instead of price adjustment in domestic market,
took a policy of slowing down the import volume of LNG which ultimately causes inconsistent gas pressure in the supply lines to
the industries. Although industries were invoiced as if there were continued supplies of gas with required pressure and accordingly
industries had to pay the billed amount in full but in reality, absence of required gas pressure caused production loss to the industries.
Due to the Government imposed restrictions in plying public transports for combating spread of Covid-19, absenteeism of work
forces increased and as a result productivity during the year went down.
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Unit cost of Gas & Electricity

Although, increased international LNG price has remain unadjusted during the year ended 30th June, 2021, it is apprehended that
Government may in any time increase the existing tariffs of electricity & gas for industries in near future. Following table shows the
change in gas & Electricity unit cost since 2014:
June 30,
2020

June 30,
2019

June 30,
2018

June 30,
2017

June 30,
2016

June 30,
2015

June 30,
2014

Gas Tariffs -Power generation, Taka per M3

13.85

13.85

9.62

9.62

8.36

4.18

4.18

Gas Tariffs - Kiln, Taka per M3

10.72

10.72

7.76

7.76

6.74

5.86

5.86

Electricity Taka per KW-peak

10.69

10.19

Electricity Taka per KW-off peak

7.70

7.34

8.15

7.57

7.32

7.32

7.32

Declining Demand at International Market

During the year, negative impact of the pandemic (Covid-19) and shrinking in economies in Europe and USA has substantially
reduced export volume & unit prices of ceramic table wares from Bangladesh to these countries. Also devaluation of Turkish Lira, an
important export destination of ceramic table wares, has negatively impacted the import of ceramic table wares in Turkey. Moreover,
devaluation of currency by the competing countries like China, India, Thailand etc. has made the “Bangladesh made table wares”
costlier to the consumers of importing countries. Third wave of the pandemic for Delta Plus Variant of Covid-19 may further affect the
demand of the export of Ceramic table wares.

Labor cost

Along with the availability of gas, consistency in gas pressure, uninterrupted electricity supply and competitive unit price of gas &
electricity, competitive labor cost is another important factor for continuity of table wares manufacturing in Bangladesh. In view of the
inflationary pressure, any decision of the Government on the minimum wages will have a direct impact on the cost of manufacturing
of ceramic table wares in Bangladesh.

Up-keeping of the Production Capacity

During the year we took two dimensional steps to upkeep the production capacity. As we did in previous year, the company continued
the policy of replacing the spares and undertaking the periodical repairing and maintenance program for up keeping the Kiln, &
other PPE productive. With the increase of the age of the Kiln and other plant & equipments the cost in this regards will continue to
increase in future. Moreover, availability of original parts & spares to keep the kiln & PPE operational has become more challenging
now a day because of stopping of manufacturing of the same by the original manufacturers (of the kiln & PPE) due to updating of their
models. It may be noted that Kiln, Decal Printing, HPC and Jiggering machines of our company have become more than 20 years old,
even in certain cases, those have become out dated due to technological advancement. Therefore, to maintain productivity & quality
consistency, there is a need for replacement of kiln & PPE, since there is increasing production loss due to frequent non-functioning
of the Kilns either due to derailment of the “cars” or formation of the rusts in the ceiling of the kilns or breaking of the nozzles or any
other reason. The Board, in order to upkeep the production capacity, went for procuring a small shuttle kiln. Accordingly a letter of
credit for US$ 390,000 was opened during the year to procure one set shuttle kiln. The kiln arrived in the factory premises and was
under erection while writing this report in October 2021. It is expected that erection of the shuttle kiln will be completed by end of
December 2021 when the company will be in a better position in keeping the production running during the maintenance period
for maintaining the delivery schedule.

Competition

The field of competition will be more steep and intense in coming years, not only because of declining Global demand but also with
the advent of new tableware manufacturer(s) in Bangladesh with larger capacity, financed by lesser/no borrowing cost.

Impact of Covid-19

Government of Bangladesh imposed locked down in April & May 2021 to combat the spreading of Covid-19 (Delta Variant), when
shops, malls, hotel & restaurants were completely shut down, factories & offices were closed and plying of public transports were
restricted. Consequently, production & sales during this period April & May 2021 was minimal. But company had to pay full wages,
allowances and festival bonuses to the employees. As a result, company experienced severe liquidity constraint and could not pay
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the due loan instalments in time and had to borrow for keeping the wheel of operations continued. While we are trying to cope with
the negative impacts from the first & second waves of Covid-19, there is no denying that the global & domestic shutdown put in
place in response to the pandemic slowed down the economies which has affected us painfully like almost everyone else. Although,
the Government across the world are deploying resources on priority basis for en-masse vaccinations and approving oral drugs to
fight against the pandemic, but its mutating characters causes re-emergence of it. Already emergence of fourth wave of Covid-19
in Europe (Austria, Germany) and Delta Variant plus in neighbouring India has been reported in the press. Its repeating emergence
in different mutating forms no doubt will have long term impact on the world’s economies in general and upon our business and
exports in particular, which may warrant difficult decisions at different stages in the future. Regardless of the challenges ahead, we
will rely on our creativity and ability to adapt to trying circumstances.

Future Plan

In view of present (i) global economic and pandemic situation, (ii) liquidity position of the company and (iii) uncertainty / apprehension
for hiking of gas price and minimum wages, the Board of Directors of the company does not think that it will be prudent to go for any
large scale BMRE in near future.

Business Outlook- Export Sales

SCL continued to be one of the major tableware exporters from Bangladesh by exporting around 23% of the total Bangladesh export
which was 25% in last fiscal year. Although SCL’s export in FY2020-’21 has marginally improved to $7.14 million from last year’s
US$7.03 million yet it’s export was significantly lower than the exports of pre-pandemic years.
Business Outlook- Export Sales

US$ in million

Ceramics Products
Bangladesh Export (including ceramics, tiles & sanitary wares) source: EPB
Shinepukur Export
Shinepukur Share to total BD Export

2020-‘21

2019-‘20

2018-‘19

2017-’18

2016-’17

31.11

27.97

68.97

51.94

39.14

7.14

7.03

10.57

11.04

11.58

22.95%

25.13%

15.32%

21.26%

29.59%

The table below shows the ratio of export sale to total sales of the company for five years:
Particulars

US$ in million

FY 2020-‘21

FY 2019-‘20

FY 2018-‘19

FY 2017-‘18

2016-‘17

Total sale (Without subsidy)

1,393.558

1,205.076

1,533.121

1,528.643

1,437.866

SCL Export without subsidy

629.111

671.512

877.512

893.342

896.612

% of Export over total sales (WS)

15.64%

(21.40%)

0.29%

6.31%

5.03%

% increase or Decrease over previous FY

(6.31%)

(34.10%)

(1.77%)

(0.36%)

0.32%

45%

52%

57%

58%

62%

Ratio of Export Sales to Total Sales

During the current year, although total sales including subsidy increased by 15.64% over previous year, but export sales in Taka
(including subsidy) has decreased by 6.31% to Taka. 629.111 million (which was Taka 671.512 million in FY 2019-‘20) and the
contribution of export sales to total sales also came down to 45% from previous year’s 52%. This is due to negative impact of the
pandemic (Covid-19 delta variant) and shrinking of demand in advanced economies. Despite stiff competition in export markets,
we could retain our existing customers and also added a few new customers. We achieved these by improving the product quality
through cross-quality check on every production stages and improving the designs & packaging in-line with up-to-date international
standards. The most challenging part was to achieve reliability from the buyers’ fraternity and to establish Shinepukur as the most
compliant facility. Shinepukur has been successful in this field as the series of Social Accountability audits from Suppliers Ethical Data
Exchange (SEDEX), Business Social Compliance Initiatives (BSCI) and inspection from buyers’ community continued to confirm SCL as
a compliant OEM. These relentless & on-going endeavors will significantly & positively contribute in retaining customers. Export sales
will continue to remain important driver to SCL’s total revenue earnings. We are therefore focusing on buyers demand for developing
new shapes, designs and new products ranges within shortest possible time and searching new markets and seizing inquiries from
potential brands by faster response & close follow up. We are confident that, SCL will be able to increase the ratio of its export sales
over 50% and retaining the leadership position in exporting table wares from Bangladesh in the coming years.
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Business Outlook- Domestic Sales

Taka in Million
FY 2020-‘21

FY 2019-‘20

FY 2018-‘19

FY 2017-‘18

FY 2016-‘17

1393.558

1205.076

1533.121

1528.643

1437.866

764.447

533.564

655.609

635.300

541.254

% of Domestic Sales over SCL total sales

15.64%

(21.40%)

0.29%

6.31%

5.03%

% increase or Decrease over previous FY

43.27%

(18.62%)

3.20%

17.38%

13.89%

55%

48%

43%

42%

38%

Total sale (Without subsidy)
SCL Domestic Sales

Ratio of Domestic Sales to Total Sales

Despite stiff competition among the manufacturers and the importers of ceramic table wares, and cheaper substitutes like melamine, opal
and Pyrex wares, SCL could increase its share in domestic market and earned Taka. 764.447 million in FY2020-’21 against Taka. 533.564
million in FY2019-’20. The rate of increase of domestic sales during the year was 43.27% over previous year. This was the highest amount
of domestic sales since inception of the company. We could achieve this by focusing to domestic market when demand for export sales
shrunk. The strategy of utilization of the production capacity shifting to cater the demand of the domestic market during the months when
the export demand was minimal has benefited greatly towards keeping the company afloat during the year.

Segmental/Product wise Reporting
Our company is an OEM facility for manufacturing Ceramic table wares. There is no geographical or otherwise identifiable divisions
are there for segmental reporting for our company. However, our company produces two types of ceramic table wares, namely
Porcelain & Bone China. Increase/(decrease) over previous year’s respective sales of Porcelain & Bone China and ratio of Porcelain &
Bone China to total sales of five years are tabulated below:
Taka in million
Year

Porcelain Sales
Amount

Bone China Sales

Inc/(dec) over
previous year

Total Sales (Without Subsidy)

Inc/(dec) over
previous year

Amount

Inc/(dec) over
previous year

Amount

Share to total Sales
Porcelain

Bone China

2020-‘21

833.187

17.10%

520.689

30.06%

1353.876

21.76%

62%

38%

2019-'20

711.529

(18.75%)

400.348

(39.10%)

1111.877

(27.48%)

64%

36%

2018-'19

875.718

(7.49%)

657.403

12.96%

1533.121

0.29%

57%

43%

2017-'18

946.643

(4.34%)

582.000

29.82%

1528.643

6.31%

62%

38%

2016-'17

989.553

12.91%

448.314

(9.00%)

1437.867

5.03%

69%

31%

Product wise Contribution/Segment Results
After adjustment of direct Material (consumption) cost, contribution to recover Wages & Factory Overhead (Prime Cost) and operating
expenses (OPEX) were as follows;

Taka in million

Year
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Material Consumption Net
Porcelain

Bone China

Total

Contribution to Prime Cost and OPEX
Porcelain

Bone China

Total

Contribution as a % of Sales without
subsidy Value
Porcelain

Bone China

Total

2020-‘21

406.540

121.475

528.015

426.647

399.214

825.861

51.21%

76.67%

61.00%

2019-'20

248.130

154.245

402.375

463.399

246.103

709.502

65.13%

61.47%

63.81%

2018-'19

297.091

165.240

462.331

578.627

492.163

1070.790

66.07%

74.86%

69.84%

2017-'18

320.846

190.505

511.351

625.797

391.495

1017.292

66.11%

67.27%

66.55%

2016-'17

387.340

130.908

518.248

602.213

317.406

919.619

60.86%

70.80%

63.96%
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During the year, higher loss for rejection and selling of old stocks at a lower rate pushed down the Porcelain Contribution. It may be
noted that unit prices of Porcelain wares for export market are usually higher than the unit prices in domestic market. A lower export
sales ratio to total sales, therefore, is also a cause for lower rate of contribution for Porcelain. Unit price of Bone China in domestic
market is comparatively better. This year’s 30.06% increased in domestic sales of Bone China wares resulted better contribution.

Carrying amount of net segmental asset and return (contribution) thereon
Particulars
Carrying amount of Net Asset
Contribution
% of Contribution to Carrying Amount

Taka in million

2020-‘21

2019-’20

2283.303

2761.616

5044.919

2308.381

2837.554

5145.935

385.225

242.757

627.981

463.399

246.104

709.502

16.87%

8.79%

12.45%

20.07%

8.67%

13.79%

Lower contribution of Porcelain brought down the return (Contribution) from last year’s 20.07% to 16.87% during the year.

Risk & Concerns

The company is exposed to following risks & concerns;
Internal:
External:

(i)

skilled manpower is critical to quality and quantitative production. Company is prone to high labor turnover.

(ii)

Breakdown of aged kiln, plant & machinery and non availability of parts, spares & consumables.

(i)

Inconsistent/erratic Gas pressure, disruption in gas supply & unit price of gas.

(ii)

Devaluation of taka causing increased cost for imported material

(iii)

Higher devaluation of foreign currencies of competing exporting countries making Bangladesh made ceramics
table wares costlier in importing countries.

(iv)

Minimum wage rate hike.

(v)

Non-functioning of ports and highways.

(vi)

Supply disruptions due to stopping of production/mining or non availability of right quality raw materials due to
change in layer/level of the mines/quarries.

(vii)

Supply chain disruption due to shipping route/channel ( e.g., Suez Canal) blockage and scarcity of containers.

(viii)
(ix)
Acts of God: (i)

Upward adjustment of custom duty, VAT & Tax on imported raw material.
Withdrawal of Competitive/ preferential tariff facilities e.g. GSP.
Pandemic (e.g., Covid-19) causing closer/shutdown of production facilities/economic activities;

(ii)

Natural disaster(s) like flood causing absenteeism to work forces and disruption in supply chains and distribution
channels;

(iii)

Earth quake causing demolition of buildings and fire accident resulting casualties and closure of production
facilities.

Impact on Environment

Environment Impact Assessment (EIA) report by an independent assessing firm (Envirotech) confirms that our operations are not
threat to environment. Moreover, our company has received up to date yearly environment clearance certificate from the Directorate
of Environment, Peoples’ Republic of Bangladesh.
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Cost of Goods Sold (CoGS)

A vertical and horizontal analysis of cost of goods sold are tabulated below;
Year

Taka in million

FY 2020-'21

Vertical

Horizontal

FY 2019-'20

Vertical

Horizontal

1393.559

100.00%

15.64%

1205.076

100.00%

0.29%

Material Cost

528.015

37.89%

31.22%

402.374

33.39%

-12.97%

Wages & (Factory) Salaries

341.846

24.53%

12.73%

303.237

25.16%

-17.73%

Power & Fuel

100.919

7.24%

-4.51%

105.684

8.77%

-17.40%

Consumable Store & Spares

52.143

3.74%

14.68%

45.469

3.77%

-25.46%

Depreciation (Factory)

119.42

8.57%

-3.22%

123.391

10.24%

-0.22%

Overhead

24.091

1.73%

-38.33%

39.062

3.24%

-20.55%

1166.434

83.70%

14.44%

1019.217

84.58%

-14.55%

227.125

16.30%

185.859

15.42%

Total Revenue
Elements of CoGS

Cost of Goods Sold (CoGS)
Gross Profit (GP)

Supply chain disruptions pushed up the importing materials cost and also use of inner boxes caused higher packing materials consumption
which contributed to increased material cost.

Gross Profit (GP)

GP ratio for the year increased to 16.30% from previous year’s 15.42%. Total revenue (with subsidy) earned during the year was
increase by 15.64% over previous year. On the other hand cost of goods sold to total revenue came down to 83.70% which was
84.58% in last year. Increased revenue resulted lower CoGS ratio and consequently higher GP ratio during the year. The increase of
the revenue, particularly increase in export sales, would also improve the GP to pre-pandemic level.

Net Profit After Tax and Retained Earnings

The Directors are pleased to report that the working results of the Company for 12 months from July 01, 2020 to June 30, 2021 as
follows:

Taka in million

FY 2020-’21

FY 2019-’20

FY 2018-’19

FY 2017-’18

FY 2016-’17

Net profit / (Loss) before tax

54.597

11.296

92.477

81.405

22.553

Income tax (Expenses)/ Income:

(8.218)

20.296

(29.766)

(19.857)

14.261

(11.549)

(7.336)

28.546

23.202

3.331

27.632

-

-

-

-

-

-

(8.689)

(8.941)

46.379

31.592

62.712

61.548

8.292

Balance brought forward from previous year

(30.331)

(61.923)

(124.635)

(186.183)

(194.475)

Dividend Paid @2% for FY 2019-’20

(29.393)

-

-

-

-

Retained earnings carried forward

(13.345)

(30.331)

(61.923)

(124.635)

(186.183)

3.16%

2.15%

4.27%

4.19%

0.56%

0.32

0.21

0.43

0.42

0.06

i. For the period under review
ii. Short/(excess) provision for earlier years
iii. Deferred tax (Income)/Expenses
Net profit / (Loss) after tax

Net profit after tax, to paid up capital
EPS in Taka
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Extra ordinary activities & their implications

Other Income: There was no income from duty drawback (DDB) against export during the year. Other income was earned mainly
from scrap sales.
Fair Value Gain/(Loss): Following the International Financial Reporting Standards the company has to revalue the quoted shares
held as investment on the date of statement of financial position and recognize the unrealised gain/(loss) thereon. During the year
such fair value gain was Taka 210.077 million which was recognized through ‘statement of other comprehensive income’ as follows:
Taka in million
Particulars
Fair Value Gain/(loss) Brought forward
Fair Value Gain / (Loss) for the year
Fair Value Gain/(loss) Carried forward

FY2020-‘21

FY2019-‘20

FY2018-‘19

FY2017-‘18

FY2016-‘17

(130.822)

(106.501)

(96.470)

(81.118)

(113.019)

210.077

(24.321)

(10.031)

(15.352)

31.901

79.255

(130.822)

(106.501))

(96.470)

(81.118)

Comprehensive Income: After recognizing the fair value gain of Taka 210.077 million, comprehensive income for the year, therefore,
stood at Taka 256.456 million as follows:
Taka in million

Particulars

FY 2020-’21

FY 2019-’20

FY 2018-’19

FY 2017-’18

FY 2016-’17

46.379

31.592

62.712

61.548

8.293

Fair Value Gain / (Loss)

210.077

(24.321)

(10.031)

(15.352)

31.901

Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

256.456

7.271

52.681

46.196

40.194

Net profit / (Loss) after tax

EPS

The company has earned net profit after tax Taka 46.379 million during the FY 2020-’21. Earning per share, therefore, comes to Taka.
0.32 for the year ended on June 30, 2021 which was Taka TK. 0.21 in previous year. EPS improved due to higher revenue earnings
mainly from domestic sales and incurring proportionately lesser expenditure during the year.

NAV per share

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share increased to Taka 30.63 / share as on 30th June, 2021 which was Taka 29.09 as on 30th June 2020
as follows:

Taka in million

Particulars

FY 2020-’21

FY 2019-’20

FY 2018-’19

FY 2017-’18

FY 2016-’17

(13.345)

(30.331)

(61.923)

(124.635)

(186.183)

79.255

(130.822)

(106.501))

(96.470)

(81.118)

Revaluation Surplus on PPE

2966.690

2966.690

2966.690

2966.690

2966.690

Paid-up Capital

1469.661

1469.661

1469.661

1,469,661

1,469,61

Shareholder’s Equity

4502.261

4275.198

4374.428

1472406.585

2699.389

146.966

146.966

146.966

146.966

146.966

30.63

29.09

29.04

28.68

28.37

Retained Earnings carried forward
Fair Value Gain/(loss) Carried forward

Number of Outstanding Shares i
NAV Per Share in Taka
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Quarterly Performance Variance
EPS

Quarters

NAV/per share

NOCF/per share

Explanation

FY 2020-‘21

FY 2019-‘20

FY 2020-‘21

FY 2019-‘20

FY 2020-‘21

FY 2019-‘20

Q1 JUL-SEPT.

0.05

0.02

28.99

28.99

(0.09)

0.59

Q2 OCT - DEC

0.04

0.04

29.82

28.94

0.12

0.87

Q3 JAN-MAR

0.04

(0.05)

30.10

28.88

0.28

1.23

Q4 APR - JUN

0.18

0.20

30.63

29.09

0.10

0.92

At the year end

0.32

0.21

30.63

29.09

0.10

0.92

EPS: varies because of seasonality
effect on revenues & expenditures
and disbursement of subsidy.
NAV/share: increase / decrease
upon addition of comprehensive
income/loss.
NOCF: varies due to lesser /
higher (i) collection of revenue
(ii) payments to suppliers and
against accrued expenses.

Related Party Transaction

During the year no loan was taken or provided to any related party. However, short term loan received from New Dacca Industries
Limited during FY2017-’18 had following movements during the year and year end outstanding balance (payable to New Dacca
Industries Limited) was as follows:
Related party
New Dacca Industries
Ltd – interest free and
unsecured Short term
loan

Movements during the Year
FY2020-‘21

FY2019-‘20

Received Paid Received Paid
-

12.5

-

Yearend balance in Taka million

FY2018-19

FY2017-18

Received

Paid

Received

Paid

-

6

310

250

5

FY2020-‘21

FY2019-‘20

FY2018-’19

FY2017-’18

36.5

49

54

60

The loan payable to New Dacca Industries Limited does not bear any interest. The loan is short term in nature and has flexible terms
of repayment.
Besides, above short term loan to New Dacca Industries Limited following related party balance are carried forward from earlier
years:

Related party

Transaction nature

Transaction during the year for gain/
(loss) upon fair valuation
at the year end

Year-end balance after fair value
gain/(loss) in Taka million

FY2020-‘21

FY2019-‘20

FY2018-‘19

FY2020-‘21

FY2019-‘20

FY2018-‘19

Bangladesh Export Import Companies Ltd

Investment in share

209.965

(24.374)

(9.854)

243.674

33.709

58.082

Beximco Synthetics Ltd

share

0.112

0.053

(0.177)

0.552

0.440

0.388

Public/Right Issue

There was no public/right issue during the year.

Remuneration to Directors
During the year no amount of money was expended by the company for compensating any member of the board for special services
rendered. During the year no board meeting attendance fee was paid to the directors of the company except to the Independent
Director of Taka 100,000.
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Corporate and Financial Reports

The Directors are pleased to confirm that:
(a) The financial statements together with the notes thereon have drawn up conformity with the Companies Act 1994 and Securities
and Exchanges Rules 1987.These statements presents fairly the Company’s statement of affairs, the result of its operation, cash
flow and statement of changes in equity.
(b) Proper books of accounts of the company have been maintained.
(c) Appropriate Accounting Policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and that the
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and judgment.
(d) The International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the financial
statements.
(e) Internal Control System is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
(f)

Minority shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, or in the interest of controlling shareholders acting either
directly or indirectly and have effective means of redress.

(g) There is no significant doubt about the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern.
(h) Significant deviation in operating result compared to last year has been explained here in before.
(i)

The summarized key operating and financial data of last five preceding years is presented below.

Key operating and Financial Data

Taka in million

For the year
ended 30th
June 2021

For the year
ended 30th
June 2020

For the year
ended 30th
June 2019

For the year
ended 30th
June 2018

For the year
ended 30th
June 2017

For eighteen
months ended
30 Jun'16

For Six months
ended 30
Jun'16

1393.559

1205.076

1533.121

1,528,643

1,437,867

2,053,500

641.628

227.125

185.859

340.424

346,296

326,026

453,346

113.955

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax

54.596

11.296

92.477

81,404

22,553

(60,745)

(78.686)

Net Profit / (Loss) after Tax

46.379

31.593

62.712

61,548

8,293

(32,561)

(38.587)

PPE ( Gross)

7530.927

7511.009

7509.186

7,495.368

5,984.548

5,980.714

5,980.714

Revaluation Surplus

2966.690

2966.690

2966.690

2966.690

2966.690

2966.690

2966.690

PPE at cost

4564.237

4544.319

4542.496

4528.678

3017.858

3014.024

3014.024

cumulative Depreciation

2486.008

2365.074

2239.848

2112.439

2020.373

1922.163

1922.163

PPE (Carrying) Value

5044.919

5145.935

5269.337

5382.930

3964.176

4058.551

4058.551

(13.345)

(30.331)

(61.923)

(124,634)

(186,183)

(194,476)

(194,476)

Paid up Capital

1469.661

1469.661

1469.661

1,469,661

1,469,61

1,469,661

1,469.66

Shareholders' Equity

4502.261

4275.198

4267.926

4,215,245

4,169,050

4,128,856

4128.856

2.5% Cash

2% Cash

-

-

-

-

-

3.16%

2.15%

4.27%

4.19%

0.56%

(2.22%)

(2.63%)

0.32

0.21

0.43

0.42

0.06

(0.22)

(0.26)

30.63

29.09

29.04

28.68

28.37

28.09

28.09

16,754

14,969

15,934

16,325

17,438

23,085

23,085

Particulars
Revenue including subsidy
Gross Profit

Retained Earnings carried forward

Dividend
Return on Paid up Capital
Earnings per Share in Taka
Shareholders' Equity Per Share
(NAV) Taka
Number of Shareholders
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Dividend

Despite having negative retained earnings from previous years, the Board of Directors of the company, in its meeting held on 21st October,
2021, recommended a cash dividend @2.5 percent for the year 2020-21 out of current year’s net profit. After approval in the AGM to be
held on 23rd December, 2021, the said recommended dividend will be distributed to the shareholders as on the record date (22.11.2020).
The proposed dividend is 79.22% of the current year’s net profit. Upon distribution of the said dividend the cumulative loss of the company
will stand at Taka 50.087 million as on 30th June 2021 (which was Taka 59.724 million as on 30th June 2020) as follows:
Tk. in million

Particulars

FY2020-‘21

FY2019-‘20

Net profit after Tax for the year

46.379

100.00%

31.593

100.00%

Cash Dividend Proposed for FY2020-’21 @2.5% (FY2019-’20 @2%)

(36.742)

79.22%

(29.393)

93.04%

9.637

20.78%

2.200

6.96%

Net profit retained for the business
Cumulative Retained Earnings after Dividend carried forward

-59.724

-61.924

Cumulative Profit/(loss) after distribution of the dividend for the year

-50.087

-59.724

Retained earnings before proposed dividend (shown in the statements of financial position)

-13.345

-30.331

The Board Meeting and Attendance

During the year 6 (Six) Board Meetings were held. The attendance record of the Directors is as follows:
Name

Designation

Number of meetings held

Number of Board Meetings attended

Chairman

6

4

Vice Chairman

6

6

Mr. Iqbal Ahmed

Director

6

5

Mr. O K Chowdhury

Director

6

6

Independent Director

6

6

Company Secretary

6

6

Mr. A S F Rahman
Mr. Salman F Rahman

Barrister Faheemul Huq
Mr. Mohammad Asad Ullah, FCS

The Pattern of Shareholding

The Pattern of shareholding is as follows:
Name
i)

Parent/Subsidiary/Associate Companies and other related parties:
Bangladesh Export Import Co. Ltd. As on 30-06-2021

ii)

73,483,009

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and
their spouses and minor children:
Mr. A S F Rahman, Chairman

2

Mr. Salman F Rahman, Vice-Chairman

1

Mr. O K Chowdhury, Director

1

Chief Executive Officer, Spouse and minor children

Nill

Company Secretary, Spouse and minor children

Nill

Chief Financial Officer, Spouse and minor children

Nill

Head of Internal Audit, Spouse and minor children

NIll

iii)

Executives:

iv)

Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the company
Bangladesh Export Import Co. Ltd (Mentioned in SL. No. (i) above.)
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73,483,009

Directors

Retirement and Re-election
Mr. A. S. F. Rahman, Director of the Company retires by rotation as per Articles 127 and 128 of the Articles of Association of the
Company and being eligible offers himself for re-election.

Audit Committee

The Company had an Audit Committee, which constituted in terms of the provisions of Corporate Governance Guidelines dated 0306-2018 issued by BSEC. Four meetings were held during the year, attendance of the members therein was as follows:
NRC Committee Member

Designation

Number of Meetings Held

Attendance

Barrister Faheemul Huq

Chairman

4

4

Mr. Iqbal Ahmed

Member

4

4

Mr. O K Chowdhury, FCA

Member

4

4

Mr. Mohammad Asad Ullah, FCS

Secretary

4

4

The detail of the activities of the audit committee has been provided in “Audit Committee Report”.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

As per provision of Corporate Governance Code issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission dated 03.06.2018 the
Board of Directors constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee. One meeting was held during the year, attendance of the
members therein was as follows:
NRC Committee Member

Designation

Number of Meeting Held

Attendance

Barrister Faheemul Huq

Chairman

1

1

Mr. Iqbal Ahmed

Member

1

1

Mr. O K Chowdhury, FCA

Member

1

1

Mr. Mohammad Asad Ullah, FCS

Secretary

1

1

Independent Director

Barrister Faheemul Huq is qualified as a Barrister-at-Law from Lincon’s Inn, UK and is currently an Advocate in the Supreme Court
Bangladesh, both in the High Court Division and Appellate Division and acted as Legal Advisor of different corporate bodies and
enlisted lawyer of different Banks and Financial Institutions in Bangladesh. He is a Senior Associate of M/s. Huq Company, a renowned
Lawyers’ Firm in Bangladesh since 1997 and he also Member of The Honorable Society of Lincoln’s Inn, UK.

Auditors

The existing Auditors, M. J. Abedin & Co., Chartered Accountants, National Plaza, 109, Bir Uttam C. R. Datta Road, Dhaka-1205 who
were appointed as auditors of the Company in the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Company has carried out the Audit for the
year ended 30 June 2021.
M. J. Abedin & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Auditors of the Company retires at this meeting and has expressed their willingness
to continue in office for the year 2021-22. The Board after due consideration of the proposal made by Audit Committee recommends
for reappointment of M. J. Abedin & Co., Chartered Accountants as Auditors for the year 2021-22.

Compliance Auditors

Pursuant to code 9.2 of the Codes of Corporate Governance issued by BSEC, Suraiya Parveen & Associates, Chartered Secretaries
who were appointed as Compliance Auditors of the Company in the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Company have examined
the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by the Company for the year ended on 30th June, 2021.
Suraiya Parveen & Associates, Chartered Secretaries, the Compliance Auditors of the Company retires at this meeting and has
expressed their willingness to continue in office for the year 2021-22. The Board after due consideration of the proposal made by
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Audit Committee recommends for reappointment of Suraiya Parveen & Associates, Chartered Scretaries as Compliance Auditors for
the year 2021-22.

Corporate Governance Compliance Status Report

In accordance with the requirement of the Securities and Exchange Commission, “Corporate Governance Compliance Status Report”
is annexed.

Acknowledgement

The Board of Directors have taken this opportunity to express our sincere thanks to our customers, bankers, suppliers, government
agencies, regulatory bodies and everyone with whom the company interacted in conducting its business. We are grateful to you, the
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today.
On behalf of the Board of Directors,

A S F Rahman
Chairman

Dated: 21st October, 2021, Dhaka.
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Graphical Prentation
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Company’s Operational Position

Shinepukur Ceramics Limited manufactures Porcelain & Bone China ceramics table wares for both export and domestic market by
sourcing raw materials from abroad. Production of table wares is dependent on firing space of the kiln, shape & size of the products.
Shape & size varies from order to order of customers. SCL produces the wares according to customer’s orders. It is therefore difficult
to quantify the production data of ceramic table wares as the number of pieces and the weight of the wares are different from order
to order of the customers due to variation in shape and sizes of the items in their orders. To depict the state of operations of the
company during the year, following three (3) tables are presented below on: (i) the production data of finished wares both in Pieces
& weight, (ii) Number of Shapes & number of Designs developed, and (iii) Capacity Utilization:
(i) Production:
Type

Year

2020-‘21

Total

Porcelain

Bone
China

Total

Porcelain

Bone
China

Total

QTY in Million piece

11.718

3.246

14.964

11.845

2.810

14.655

11.534

2.510

14.044

Inc./(Dec) % on last Year

11.39%

20.70%

13.28%

17.86%

20.60%

18.38%

22.18%

27.41%

23.08%

4391

1069

5460

4508

907

5415

4313

812

5125

13.90%

17.34%

14.56%

19.73%

16.58%

19.22%

25.01%

27.27%

25.36%

10.52

2.69

13.21

10.05

2.33

12.38

9.44

1.97

11.41

(10.01)%

(40.35)%

(18.46)%

(11.76)%

(44.12)%

(20.39)%

(14.49)%

(49.10)%

(23.47)%

3855

911

4766

3765

778

4542

3450

638

4088

(16.01)%

(22.80)%

(17.40)%

(17.07)%

(27.63)%

(19.11)%

(20.62)%

(35.81)%

(23.45)%

Weight in MT

Inc./(Dec) % on last Year
Weight in MT
Inc./(Dec) % on last Year
QTY in Million piece

2017-'18

11.69

4.51

16.2

11.39

4.17

15.55

11.04

3.87

14.91

(5.33)%

20.98%

0.77%

(4.51)%

(8.75)%

(5.75)%

(7.69)%

(6.70)%

(7.44)%

4590

1180

5770

4540

1075

5615

4346

994

5340

Inc./(Dec) % on last Year

(2.51)%

14.34%

0.52%

(0.66)%

18.65%

2.54%

4.75%

10.44%

5.76%

QTY in Million piece

12.348

3.728

16.076

11.928

4.57

16.498

11.96

4.148

16.108

Inc./(Dec) % on last Year

(6.71)%

37.06%

0.75%

(8.25)%

4.36%

(5.07)%

(5.84)%

3.60%

(3.58)%

4708

1032

5740

4570

906

5476

4149

900

5049

6.78%

37.42%

11.24%

4.39%

14.54%

5.94%

3.62%

34.93%

8.09%

Inc./(Dec) % on last Year
Weight in MT

Weight in MT
Inc./(Dec) % on last Year

2016-’17

Packed Wares

Bone
China

QTY in Million piece

2018-‘19

DFW Production

Porcelain

Unit

Inc./(Dec) % on last Year

2019-‘20

White wares Production

QTY in Million piece

13.236

2.72

15.956

13.001

4.379

17.38

12.702

4.004

16.706

Weight in MT

4409

751

5160

4378

791

5169

4004

667

4671

During the year white wares production, both in pieces & weight increased over last year.
(ii) Shapes & Designs:
Year

Shapes in number

Designs in number

Porcelain

Bone China

Total

Porcelain

Bone China

Total

2020-‘21

15

28

43

65

64

129

2019-‘20

10

10

20

906

1095

2001

2018-‘19

12

12

24

1720

2413

4133

2017-'18

16

15

31

2373

1936

4309

2016-'17

17

16

33

2343

1895

4238

Shapes and designs are develop primarily in response to the demand of the customers.
ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021

53

(iii) Capacity Utilization

Year

Capacity & actual production in million pieces
Porcelain

Bone China

Ratio of actual
production in %

Total Capacity

Capacity

Actual
Production

%

Capacity

Actual
Production

%

Capacity

Actual
Production

%

Porcelain

Bone
China

2020-‘21

14.400

11.718

81.37

5.400

3.246

60.12

19.800

14.964

75.58

78

22

2019-‘20

14.400

10.524

73.08

5.400

2.691

49.83

19.800

13.215

66.74

80

20

2018-‘19

14.400

11.385

79.06

5.400

4.170

77.22

19.800

15.555

78.56

73

27

2017-'18

14.400

11.928

82.84

5.400

3.305

61.20

19.800

15.233

76.93

78

22

2016-‘17

14.400

13.236

91.92

3.240

2.720

83.96

17.640

15.956

90.45

83

17

2015-16 (6 month)

7.200

5.118

71.08

1.620

1.357

83.76

8.820

6.475

73.41

79

21

2015 12 month

14.400

10.815

75.10

3.240

2.771

85.52

18.000

13.586

75.48

79

21

Due to the pandemic (Covid-19) and contraction in advanced economies, demand for ceramic table wares declined resulting lower
utilization of the production capacity during the year. Comparatively export demand for Bone China Wares was lower during the year.
Therefore, Bone China wares ratio to total production was down to 22% which were 27% during FY2018-’19 (Pre-pandemic year).

Impact of pandemic (Covid-19)

The virus known as covid-19 has impacted the operations of the company. As per general order of the Govt. of Bangladesh the offices
were closed down in April and May 2021 for 60 days. The operational activities of the company could not be resumed in full scale
even in June 2021 due to:
(i)

Non presence in work place(s) of the employees/workforces fearing infection from the virus;

(ii) Non opening /functioning of the retail shops & Malls in the domestic market;
(iii) Disruptions in international supply chain(s); and
(iv) Declining of export demand.
Therefore, revenue(s) generation, during April – June 2021 was affected when the export orders were either cancelled or postponed
and domestic sales was minimum. Also exported goods in transit/port were not cleared on time and payments there against either
was delayed or held up because of closer/locked down in the importing countries. Consequently, our company faced liquidity
constraint and was in difficult time to meet its recurring periodic expenses, particularly to pay it’s employees, suppliers and utilities
bills on time. The company, to ease the situation, and as a safety measure for keeping continuity of the operation in subsequent
months, utilized the additional bank finances under the Government stimulus package during the year.

Up Value Recycling

During the year ‘waste recycling plant’ was in operation which ‘reprocesses’ the broken or otherwise rejected/defective porcelain
items. This is a testimony of our commitment to keep our production process more clean and eco friendly by avoiding dumping of
the wastes.

Use of estimates and judgments and Accounting policies

Use of estimates & judgments for preparing the financial statements have been disclosed in the notes 2.7 to the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended 30th June 2021. Similarly, significant accounting policies for preparing for the financial statement have
been disclosed in the notes 3 to the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2021.

Changes in Accounting Policies & Estimation

There is no change in the accounting policies and basis of estimation for preparation of financial statements during the year FY 2020-’21.
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Additions to Property, Plant & Equipments (PPE)

During the year, capital expenditure for Taka 19.918 million (Taka 1.824 million in FY2019-’20) was incurred as follows:
Taka in Million
Particulars

FY2020-‘21

Building & Other Construction

FY2019-‘20

3.076

Plant & Machinery

16.614

0.900

Office Equipment

0.228

0.414

-

0.510

19.918

1.824

Furniture & Fixture
Total

Letter of Credits for following capital assets were opened during the year.
Name of the Capital Asset

LC Opened on

LC Value in US$

Documents retired on

Shuttle Kiln 1 set

03.03.2021

390,000.00

26.08.2021

Hot Air generators (2 sets)

25.03.2021

19,300.00

17.06.2021

Image Setter for Decal Plant

27.04.2021

34,500.00

17.06.2021

Spare Parts for Generator (Wakesa)

06.05.2021

81,716.00

29.08.2021

Total

$525,516.00

Comparative Analysis of Financial Performance and Financial Position & Cash Flows
Current year’s financial performance is compared with that of previous five years in attachment “A”.

Similarly Current year’s Financial position and Cash flows are compared with those of preceding five years in the attachment “B”.
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Vertical & Horizontal Analysis of financial Result

A summarized vertical & Horizontal analysis of Revenue, Cost and Expenses & Financial Result for the FY 2020-’21 and FY 2019-’20
are tabulated below;

Taka in million

Particularts

FY 2020-‘21

FY 2019-‘20

Amount

Vertical %

Horizontal%

Amount

Vertical %

Horizontal%

1,401.330

100.00%

15.73%

1,210.894

100.00%

-21.52%

Materials including Packing Material

528.015

37.68%

31.22%

402.374

33.23%

-12.97%

Depreciation

120.934

8.63%

-3.43%

125.226

10.34%

-1.71%

Employee Cost

428.854

30.60%

6.96%

400.959

33.11%

-17.22%

Power, Fuel, Gas, Electricity, Utility

101.152

7.22%

-4.86%

106.316

8.78%

-17.98%

Consumable Store, Spares, Repair & Maintenance

52.143

3.72%

14.68%

45.469

3.75%

-25.46%

Over Heads

36.797

2.63%

-3.32%

38.060

3.14%

-26.44%

Finance Cost

78.838

5.63%

-2.90%

81.193

6.71%

-39.38%

Income Tax Expense net

8.218

0.59%

12.02%

-20.296

-1.68%

-168.19%

a) Provision for the year

11.549

0.82%

-141.80%

7.336

0.61%

-75.35%

b) Prior Years’ (excess)/short

-3.331

-0.24%

-87.95%

-27.632

-2.28%

0.00%

Net Profit After Tax

46.379

3.31%

46.80%

31.593

2.61%

-49.62%

Revenue including Other Income

Materials cost (including packing material) are mostly imported. As explained in the Directors’ Report, materials cost went up due to
supply chain disruptions (caused by Covid-19 pandemic). Not only the invoice value of the materials transportation cost (including
ocean freight) and leads time to procure the materials increased significantly. All other cost and expenses were either in proportion
to the respective year’s revenue or lesser than the previous year.
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Economic Value addition analysis & Distribution

Value added statement for the FY 2020-’21, FY 2019-’20 and 2018-’19 are attached in Attachment-C. During the year the company
added net value Taka 838.641 million (Taka 784.023 million in FY 2019-’20) to the national economy which was utilized as follows;
Taka in million
FY 2020-2021

Distributed to stakeholders

FY 2019-2020

FY 2018-2019

Amount

%

Amount

%

Amount

%

428.854

51.14%

400.959

51.14%

439.386

47.27

78.838

9.40%

81.193

10.36%

133.929

14.41

To Govt. Exchequer

163.636

19.51%

145.052

18.50%

166.165

17.87

To Capital Maintenance

120.934

14.42%

125.226

15.97%

127.409

13.70

To Capital Providers

36.742

4.38%

29.393

3.75%

-

-

Retention in Business

9.637

1.15%

2.200

0.28%

62.712

6.75

Total

838.641

100.00%

784.023

100.00%

929.601

100.000%

Net Economic Value addition (NEVA)

838.641

784.023

929.601

1,531.320

1,352.492

1,652.026

54.77%

57.97%

56.27%

To Employee
To Lender

Gross Economic value addition (GEVA)
NEVA as a % of GEVA

VALUE ADDITION ANALYSIS
0.28%

1.15%

4.38%

3.75%
To Lenders

14.42%

15.97%

To Employees

51.14%
19.51%

To Govt Exchequer

51.14%
18.50%

To Capital Providers

9.40%

As at 30th June 2021

To Capital Maintenance
Retention in Business

10.36%

As at 30th June 2020
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Compare with the peer industry

There are mainly four sub sectors in ceramic industry, namely, (i) Ceramic Table wares, (ii) Ceramic Tiles, (iii) Ceramic Sanitary
Wares, and (iv) Miscellaneous - Ceramic Bricks, Fittings, ball, knives etc . Ceramic table wares are not comparable with other ceramic
products. There are 20 (twenty) manufacturer of table wares in Bangladesh including Shinepukur Ceramics Ltd. Nine (9) of them
produced both for export & Domestic markets. Two (2) of them have more production capacity than ours. Of them only one is a listed
company which produces both Bone China & Porcelain ceramic table wares. Its production capacity is higher (1.5 time more) than
ours, but our company is listed with a higher paid up capital base (4.2 times more than the other listed company). Consequently, our
EPS in Taka remains significantly lower than the other listed company. Data relating to other (18) ceramics table wares manufacturers
are not publicly available. Therefore, comparing of Shinepukur Ceramic Limited’s data with peer industry is difficult. However, a
general comparison of important ratios is tabulated below:
Particulars

SCL
Current Year (2020-’21)

Preceding 5.5 years average
(Jan 2015 to Jun 2020)

Ceramic Industry

Standard

GP Ratio in percentage

16.30%

19.85%

18.30%

±25%

EBITDA as a percentage of Revenue

18.25%

20.73%

35.16%

± 25%

OP Ratio in percentage

9.77%

16.03%

9.45%

20%

NP Ratio in percentage

3.33%

0.66%

1.49%

15%

Quick Asset Ratio

0.13:1

0.10:1

0.22:1

1:1

Current Asset Ratio

0.76:1

0.59:1

1.33:1

2:1

Debt Equity Ratio

0.46:1

0.56:1

0.48:1

1:1

Total Liability to Total Asset Ratio

0.31:1

0.36:1

0.33:1

0.5:1

ROCE in percentage

0.71%

0.19%

0.57%

5%

0.32

0.15

0.50

2.00

Debt. Servicing Coverage Ratio

0.69:1

0.92:1

0.94:1

2:1

Total Revenue to total asset

0.21:1

0.25:1

0.19:1

1:1

Total Revenue to Total Equity

0.31:1

0.39:1

0.28:1

2:1

EPS in Taka

Global Financial & economic scenarios and demand for Ceramic Table wares

Our major export markets are in Europe, North America and Middle East. Since the financial meltdown in USA in 2008, economies in the
west could not get back on the pre melt down growth trajectory. The USA – China trade related disputes worsened the recovery prospects
of the global business. The pandemic resulted from Covid-19 has caused contraction in those economies resulting loss in employment
income of the peoples there. State enforced locked down and closer of shopping malls and retail out let’s have disrupted the distribution
channel and lowered the consumer demand substantially. It may be noted that table wares are durable house hold product and are
used by families of high income level. Moreover, state of employment and economic growth has direct link to the demand of table
wares. Cultural shifts have also have a bearing on this. In the developed economies late or no marriage (causing lessening the number
of families) and increased consumption of ready (junk) foods has caused decline in the use of table wares in households there. This trend
has worsened the situation due to pandemic (Covid-19). Currency devaluations & duty imposition in Turkey has impacted negatively the
demand of table wares there. Tarkish lira plunged down from below ±4 to ±9 against US dollar within a year and imposition of duties
by Tarkish Govt. to protect their local industry has made imported table wares costlier and caused down trend in the demand there.
Taking the advantage of lesser transportation & warehousing cost due to geographical closeness and relatively cheaper labor & fuel cost
in eastern member countries of the European Union (EU), western EU countries is now a day prefer to get the product there from. As a
result, competition has become stiffer in UK & EU countries for Bangladeshi made table wares. China, India, Thailand and Vietnam are
raw materials rich country for table wares manufacturing. Their labor cost although is in rising trend, still lower compared to Bangladesh
considering their productivity. Therefore, export of table wares from Bangladesh in the coming years, where gas price & wages has gone
up substantially, will be more challenging. The fourth wave of the pandemic has already been started in Europe (Germany, Austria). The
impact of the same will be very severe on the ceramic table wares manufacturers because it may bring the demand down to the lowest
ebb and putting many companies survival in a state of difficulty.
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Risks and concerns relating to financial statement & explaining such risks mitigation plan

SCL’s GP ratio is under pressure due to declining export and increasing materials, fuel & wages cost. Devaluation of Taka, although
in case of export is beneficial for the company, but it pushes up imported material cost. If SCL can increase it’s share in export sales,
currency devaluation risk will have positive impact to its revenue and profitability. However, declining export sales to totals sales ratio
shows that it is not reality to happen. Not only the declining demand in advanced countries due to contraction in economies there,
higher devaluation of competing countries has put us in disadvantageous situation for increasing our export sales. We therefore, are
striving hard to face these challenges by controlling our cost as far as practicable. However, the strategy of cost controlling will not be
sufficient to keep the company afloat if the revenues sharply decline due to the repetitive wave of the pandemic (Covid-19).
SCL’s Quick – Asset and Current – Asset ratios are abnormally lower than standard which indicates the company is under liquidity
constraints. The management of the company is focusing to earn higher profitability by increasing overall revenue and controlling
the expenses to come out of the liquidity constraints.

Environment Related Initiative

We distributed 1000 free saplings to our factory employees and to the people of the surrounding areas. Also factory open space is
covered by gardening and plantation. SCL is a eco friendly company. No effluent or residual is being discharge to open environment
by & through SCL operational activities. Getting certification from Department of Environment under ministry of Environment &
Forest, People’s Republic of Bangladesh each year is a testimony in this regard. Moreover, SCL operating policies encourage
recycling of heat & waste water. SCL also invested in waste recycling plant to protect the environment from dumping of broken,
rejected & defective wares. SCL’s all these endeavors are for its commitments to care and protect the mother Planet, the people and
the society where it operates.

Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR)

As a part of our social obligation we donated Coffee Mugs to Center to the Rehabilitation of the Paralyzed (CRP), Savar, Dhaka. Also,
as stated in the Chairman’s Statement, we sponsored news supplements on the occasion of the Independence day and the Victory
day. We joined with BUET to support a research team on advanced studies on Ceramics and allowing them to use our lab and
equipments for the research works.

Integrated Reporting & six Capitals

While using the resources at Shinepukur Ceramics Limited we interact and process the inputs in such a manner that we create value
to anyone or more or all of the ‘six capitals’. At the end, the values are either enhanced or may remain as it is. The state of six capitals
as on 30th June 2021 were as described below:
a)

Financial Capital: at the beginning of the year shareholders fund was Taka. 4275.198 million which was enhanced to taka
4,502.261 million at the end of the year.

b)

Manufacturing Capital: the value of the physical asset (gross) at the beginning of the year was Taka. 7509.186 million which was
enhanced to taka 7,511.009 million at the end of the year.

c)

Intellectual Capital: There was no change in the key personnel of the company responsible for operations and planning. Also
there is no change in the team responsible for critical works including development of shapes and designs. As a result the
intellectual capitals remained same during the year.

d)

Human Capital: The strength of human capital increased to 2,964 at the end of the FY2020-‘21 from 2,871 of previous year. SCL
has reputation and brand value to retain the existing work force and recruit new hands both at lateral and entry levels.

e)

Social & Relation Capital: Though the CSR activities and welfare measures for the employees social & relation capital of the
company has been maintained during the year.

f)

Natural Capital: The Company operated in such a manner that natural capital remained unimpaired. For example, our factory
did not produce any smog or dump wastages polluting the surroundings and the open air. Also use of underground water was
rationalized by ensuring use of water for multiple purpose (Example: rechanneling the used water for hand washing / bathing
for gardening purpose) and minimized by storing and using the rain water.
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Tax Status
(i)

Effective Tax Rate
There are laws for minimum tax payable. Hence, provision for income tax expenses has been made base on the minimum tax
payable by the company under section 82C (4) of Income tax ordinance (ITO) 1984. Since minimum tax payable is expected
to higher than tax payable under regular assessment, there is no scope for adjustment for the ‘temporary differences’ between
accounting and tax depreciation during the year. And therefore, no provision for deferred tax expense/(income) was made for
FY 2020-’21. As a listed company SCL applicable income tax rate is 22.50%. However, if the rebate on export sales is considered
the said tax rate would not be more than 18.00%. But because of the Laws for minimum tax and discretionary disallowances
made by the tax authority, the effective tax rate of the company is higher, which is apparent from the table below:
Taka in million

Net Profit before tax
(Audited)

Assessed tax liability as per IT 15
Liability as per Assessment Orders/provisions

Effective
Tax Rate

Remarks

2020-‘21

54.597

11.549*

21.15%

*provisions. Return to be
Submitted in January 2022.

2019-‘20

11.296

7.336*

64.94%

*provisions. Assessment is
under process.

2018-‘19

92.478

28.276

30.58%

Finalized at IT Tribunal

2017-'18

81.405

29.254

35.94%

Finalized at IT Tribunal

2016-'17

22.553

18.426

81.70%

Finalized at IT Tribunal

Year

(ii) Excess Tax Deduction at Sources (TDS) over Provisions for Current Tax
Tax deduction at sources during FY2019-’20 and FY2020-’21 are higher than the income tax provisions as follows:
Financial Year

TDS

(FY)

Assessment Year
(AY)

Amount

% NPAT

2020-’21

2021-‘22

23.536

43.11

11.549

11.987

2019-‘20

2020-‘21

30.008

265.65

7.336

22.672

18.885

34.659

Total

53.544

Provisions for
Current Tax

Excess of TDS
over Provisions

From above it is apparent that if the tax authority goes for assessment covering the TDS amount of respective year, tax liability will be
significantly higher than the provisions made in this regard and thereby effective tax rate will also substantially go up to 43.11% for
FY2020-’21 and 265.65% for FY2019-’20 respectively from 21.15% & 64.94% as shown above table.
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(iii) Refundable Tax as per IT 15
Despite our appeals, excess TDS (at import stage on raw material @5%, on export sales @0.5% and on domestic sales to different
institutions @3% to @7% on the invoice value) are not being refunded even after finalization of the assessment (i.e, after the order
of the income tax tribunal) and therefore working capital of the company is remained blocked/stuck over years. At the end of 30th
June 2021 excess Income Tax paid which are refundable as per IT15 was Taka 58.780 million up to FY 2018-’19 (Assessment Year FY
2019-’20) as follows:
Taka in million
Refundable Amount as per IT15
over assessed tax liabilities)

Financial Year (FY)

Assessment Year (AY)

2018-’19

2019-‘20

25.967

2017-‘18

2018-‘19

-

2016-‘17

2017-‘18

8.574

2016 (JAN – JUN 2016)

2016-’17 (6 month)

5.856

2015 (12 month)

2016-’17 (12 month)

16.386

2014 and prior years

2015-’16 and prior years

Total

1.997
58.780

Future Plan or projection

The company does not have plan for any expansion or any renovation scheme in view of the current Global demand scenario as
well as keeping in mind the forthcoming ‘competition’ in the market. As mentioned earlier, at present, at least 2 manufacturers have
capacity to produce more than Shinepukur Ceramics Limited (SCL) in Bangladesh. There is a strong possibility that at least one new
entrant may join the race of compaction with larger capacity for producing table wares both for export & domestic market soon.
Emergence of new entrant to share the slice of the declining market will put the existing operators in a more challenging situation.
The competition obviously will be more intense and fierce in coming years. Amid such apprehension and also considering the
current pandemic situation, the company did not undertake plan for investing for capacity expansion further. If we are to prevail over
the competition and keep ourselves prepared for a changed post virus world, regardless of the challenges and the difficulties ahead,
we will rely on our creativity and ability to adapt to trying circumstances. We therefore are confident that we can sail through this
‘storm’ based on: (i) our stronger footprints in export market with tested relations with the customers, (ii) the strength of diversified
designs & shapes at our hand, and (iii) the loyalty of our experienced and skilled workforces.

Conclusion

The management is committed for improved financial performance in the coming years and is sincerely working for achieving that.
But the journey is not easy as it requires constant surveillance and efforts withstanding the competition, risks and the challenges of
the repetitive waves of the pandemic (covid-19).

Mohammed Humayun Kabir, FCA
Chief Executive officer (CEO)
Date: 21st October, 2021
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Attachment ( A

Comparative Analysis of Financial Performnce or Result of current years with preceding 5 years
Particulars
Overall revenue Taka in Million
Inc/(dec) over previous year in %
Export Taka in Million
Inc/(dec) over previous year in %
% of total revenue
Domestic Taka in Million
Inc/(dec) over previous year in %
% of total revenue
Other income Taka in Million
Inc/(dec) over previous year in %
% of total revenue
Cost of goods sold Taka in Million
Inc/(dec) over previous year in %
% of total revenue
Gross Profit (without O.I) Taka in Million
Inc/(dec) over previous year in %
% of total revenue
Depreciation ( Manufacturing
Inc/(dec) over previous year in %
% of total revenue
Gross Profit (Including Manufacturing Depreciation)
Inc/(dec) over previous year in %
% of total revenue
Total Depreciation
Inc/(dec) over previous year in %
% of total revenue
Operating Expense Taka in Million
Inc/(dec) over previous year in %
% of total revenue
Operating Profit Taka in Million
Inc/(dec) over previous year in %
% of total revenue
Finace Cost Taka in Million
Inc/(dec) over previous year in %
% of total revenue
Profit Before WPPF
Inc/(dec) over previous year in %
% of total revenue
Net Profit/(loss) before Tax Taka in Million
Inc/(dec) over previous year in %
% of total revenue
Taxation Taka in Million
% of total revenue
Net profit/(loss) after tax Taka in Million
Inc/(dec) over previous year in %
% of total revenue
EBIDA
Fair Value Loss or Gain on Investment for the year
Comprehensive Income
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For the
For the
For the
For the
For the
year ended year ended year ended year ended year ended
30 Jun'21 30 Jun'20 30 Jun'19 30 Jun'18 30 Jun'17
1393.558
15.64%
629.111
(6.31%)
45.14%
764.447
43.27%
54.86%
7.771
33.57%
0.56%
1166.434
14.44%
96.79%
227.125
22.20%
16.30%
119.420
(3.22%)
8.57%
346.545
12.06%
24.87%
120.934
(3.43%)
8.68%
(98.732)
0.11%
(7.08%)
136.164
46.33%
9.77%
(78.838)
(2.90%)
(6.54%)
57.326
383.32%
4.11%
54.596
383.32%
4.53%
(8.218)
(0.59%)
46.379
46.80%
3.33%
18.25%
210.077
256.456

1205.076
(21.40%)
671.512
(23.48%)
55.72%
533.564
(18.62%)
44.28%
5.818
(40.22%)
0.48%
1019.218
(14.55%)
84.58%
185.859
(45.40%)
15.42%
123.391
(0.22%)
10.24%
309.250
(33.36%)
25.66%
125.226
(1.71%)
10.39%
(98.621)
(17.21%)
(8.18%)
93.055
(59.72%)
7.72%
(81.194)
(39.37%)
(6.74%)
11.861
(87.78%)
0.98%
11.296
(87.79%)
0.94%
20.296
1.68%
31.593
(49.62%)
2.62%
18.07%
(24.321)
7.272

1533.121
0.29%
877.512
(1.77%)
57.24%
655.609
3.20%
42.76%
9.732
(25.44%)
0.63%
1192.696
0.88%
77.80%
340.424
(1.69%)
22.20%
123.668
46.01%
8.07%
464.092
7.68%
30.27%
127.409
38.39%
8.31%
(119.126)
(3.22%)
(7.77%)
231.03
(2.21%
15.07%
(133.928)
(11.18%)
(8.74%
97.101
13.60%
6.33%
92.477
13.60%
6.03%
(29.766)
(1.94%)
62.712
1.89%
4.09%
23.08%
(10.031)
52.681

1528.643
6.31%
893.342
(0.36%)
58.44%
635.301
17.38%
41.56%
13.053
(24.35%)
0.85%
1182.347
6.34%
77.35%
346.286
6.21%
22.65%
84.701
(6.10%)
5.54%
430.987
3.55%
28.19%
92.066
(6.26%)
6.02%
(123.095)
3.02%
(8.05%)
236.254
5.57%
15.46%
(150.779)
(24.65%)
(9.86%
85.475
260.94%
5.59%
81.404
260.95%
5.33%
(19.856)
(1.30%)
61.548
642.17%
4.03%
21.21%
(15.352)
46.196

1437.866
5.03%
896.612
0.32%
62.36%
541.254
13.89%
37.64%
17.254
(4.35%)
1.20%
1111.841
4.23%
77.33%
326.026
7.87%
22.67%
90.202
22.15%
6.27%
416.228
(21.05%)
28.95%
98.209
17.64%
6.83%
(119.490)
3.46%
(8.31%)
223.790
9.28%
15.56%
(200.109)
(18.22%)
(13.92%)
23.681
(139.57%)
1.65%
22.553
155.69%
1.57%
(14.260)
(0.99%)
8.293
138.20%
0.58%
22.32%
31.901
40.194

For 18
Months
ended 30
Jun'16

For six
For the
For the
months
year ended year ended
ended 30
31 Dec'15 31 Dec'14
Jun'16

2053.499
6.68%
1340.659
16.63%
65.29%
712.840
(8.07%)
34.71%
27.058
(29.86%)
1.32%
1600.154
1.08%
77.92%
453.345
32.61%
22.08%
73.843
59.69%
3.60%
527.188
229.09%
25.67%
83.483
62.56%
4.07%
(173.234)
(11.51%)
(8.44%)
307.1700
66.33%
14.96%
(367.018)
(12.77%)
(17.87%)
(59.848)
(23.94%)
(2.91%)
(60.744)
(74.27%)
(2.96%)
28.184
1.37%
(32.56)
(71.87%)
(1.59%)
18.98%
(27.032)
(59.593)

641.628
(54.55%)
383.158
(59.98%)
59.72%
258.47
(43.11%)
40.28%
12.859
(9.44%)
0.63%
527.673
(50.80%)
25.70%
113.955
(66.42%)
17.76%
46.242
67.54%
7.21%
160.197
(56.35%)
24.97%
51.355
59.84%
8.00%
(65.257)
(39.56%)
(10.17%)
61.557
(74.94%)
9.59%
(140.243)
(38.16%)
(6.83%)
(78.686)
(517.70%)
(12.26%)
(78.686)
(538.58%)
(3.83%)
40.099
6.25%
(38.587)
(740.34%)
(6.01%)
17.60%
(10.842)
(49.429)

1411.871
(15.84%)
957.501
(22.51%)
67.82%
454.37
2.79%
32.18%
14.199
(37.25%)
0.69%
1072.481
(14.44%)
52.23%
339.39
(20.00%)
24.04%
27.601
(73.36%)
1.95%
366.991
(30.47%)
25.99%
32.128
(71.70%)
2.28%
(107.977)
(34.59%)
(7.65%)
245.613
(12.83%)
17.40%
(226.774)
(12.40%)
(11.04%)
18.838
(17.69%)
1.33%
17.941
(17.69%)
0.87%
(11.915)
(0.84%)
6.026
(357.96%)
0.43%
19.61%
(16.189)
(10.163)

1677.657
(0.87%)
1235.608
(19.82%)
73.65%
442.049
191.80%
26.35%
22.627
84.85%
1.10%
1253.444
0.99%
61.04%
424.214
(6.01%)
25.29%
103.603
(338.00%)
6.18%
527.817
(5.51%)
31.46%
113.520
0.00%
6.77%
(165.076)
48.35%
(9.84%)
281.764
(20.02%
16.80%
(258.877)
(34.13%)
(12.61%)
22.887
(148.79%)
1.36%
21.798
(146.47%)
1.06%
(24.134)
(1.44%)
(2.336)
(95.95%)
(0.14%)
23.50%
17.761
15.425

Attachment - B
Comparative Analysis of Financial Position of Current Years with preceding 5 years
For the
year
ended 30
June,2021

For the
year
ended 30
June,2020

For the
year
ended 30
June,2019

For the
year
ended 30
June,2018

For the
year
ended 30
June,2017

For 18
Months
ended 30
Jun’16

For six
months
ended 30
Jun’16

For the
year ended
31 Dec’15

For the
year ended
31 Dec’14

Non Current Asset

5289.145

5235.098

5327.807

5451.431

5550.313

5595.370

5595.370

5712.745

5644.821

Current Asset

1267.872

1242.778

1295.155

1012.706

920.773

889.047

889.047

971.05

1044.626

Total Asset

6557.017

6477.876

6622.962

6464.137

6471.086

6484.417

6484.417

6683.795

6689.447

Equity

4502.261

4337.959

4267.927

4215.246

4169.050

4128.855

4128.855

4254.431

4264.595

378.691

506.158

526.777

578.613

672.156

776.314

776.314

925.453

627.018

Current Liability

1676.065

1633.759

1828.258

1722.306

1629.879

1579.247

1579.247

1503.911

1797.835

Total Liability

2054.756

2139.917

2355.035

2300.919

2302.035

2355.561

2355.561

2429.364

2424.853

Quick Ratio

0.13:1

0.12:1

0.16:1

0.13:1

0.11:1

0.07:1

0.07:1

0.08:1

0.10:1

Current Asset Ratio

0.76:1

0.76:1

0.71:1

0.61:1

0.56:1

0.56:1

0.56:1

0.65:1

0.58:1

Debt. Equity Ratio

0.46:1

0.50:1

0.55:1

0.53:1

0.55:1

0.57:1

0.57:1

0.57:1

0.57:1

Total Asset to Total Liability

3.19:1

2.99:1

2.81:1

2.87:1

2.80:1

2.75:1

2.75:1

2.75:1

2.75:1

Net Asst Value per Share

30.63

29.09

29.04

28.68

28.37

28.09

28.09

28.95

29.02

Particulars

Non Current Liability

Comparative Analysis of Cash Flows of Current Years with preceding 5 years
For the
year
ended 30
June,2021

For the
year
ended 30
June,2020

For the
year
ended 30
June,2019

For the
year
ended 30
June,2018

For the
year
ended 30
June,2017

For 18
Months
ended 30
Jun’16

For six
months
ended 30
Jun’16

For the
year
ended 31
Dec’15

For the
year ended
31 Dec’14

Net Cash Generated from
Operating Activities

15.235

135.899

60.182

40.573

110.611

288.869

150.457

138.412

872.481

Cash flow used for investing
activities

(19.918)

(1.824)

(13.817)

(8.536)

(21.250)

(137.023)

(20.968)

(116.055)

(576.392)

Increased /decreased in cash
& cash equivalent

18.647

(17.705)

14.754

(7.911)

2.371

(5.335)

0.290

(5.626)

7.143

Net operating cash flows per
share

0.10

0.92

0.41

0.28

0.75

1.96

1.02

0.94

5.94

Particulars
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Attachment -C
Statement of Value Addition & Utilization

Taka in million

2020-2021
Total Revenue including Other Income

1401.329

1,210.894

114.673

91.294

Advance income tax paid excess of provisions for current tax

15.318

50.304

Excess AIT over current year's provisions

11.987

22.672

Excess tax provisions of prior years write

3.331

27.632

1,531.320

1,352.806

Material, Packing Handling & Carrying

528.015

402.374

Import duty paid

(25.428)

(23.436)

Material cost less import duty

502.587

378.938

Store and Spares

52.143

45.469

Overheads

36.797

38.060

101.152

106.316

-

(0.314)

(692.679)

(568.783)

Total VAT Paid

Gross Value Addition

Power, Fuel, Gas, Electricity
Adjaustment for uncredited TDS of prior years
Goods & Services Used
Net Value Addition

838.641

100.00%

784.023

100.00%

To employees

428.854

51.14%

400.959

51.14%

78.838

9.40%

81.193

10.36%

To Govt. Exchequer (Duty, VAT & Tax)

163.636

19.51%

145.052

18.50%

To Capital Maintenance (Depreciation)

120.934

14.42%

125.226

15.97%

36.742

4.38%

29.393

3.75%

Retention in Business

9.637

1.15%

2.200

0.28%

Value Addition Used

838.641

784.023

NEVA as a % of GEVA

54.77%

57.97%

To Lenders

To Capital Providers (Shareholders)
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SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

Report of the CEO and the CFO
Date: 21st October, 2021
The Board of Directors

SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED
Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 30th June 2021.
Dear Sir,
Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80
Dated: 3rd June 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:
(1) The Financial Statements of Shinepukur Ceramics Limited for the year ended on 30th June 2021 have been prepared in
compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in
the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed;
(2) The estimates and adjustments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis, in order for
the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;
(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly presented in its
financial statements;
(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control and maintenance
of accounting records;
(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established policies and
procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and
(6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is appropriate and there
exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.
In this regards, we also certify that:
(i)

We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30th June 2021 and that to the best of our knowledge and
belief:

(a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might
be misleading;
(b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards and applicable laws.
(ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board of Directors or its members.
Sincerely yours,

Mohammed Humayun Kabir, FCA
Chief Executive Officer

Nargis Sultana
Head of Finance & Accounts
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Corporate Governance

Compliance Status Report
Annexure - C
Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/
CMRRCD/2006-158/ 207/Admin/80 dated 03 June, 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969:
(Report under Condition No. 7.00)
Condition
No.

66

Title

Compliance Status (“√”)
in appropriate column)

Complied

1

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

1 (1)

Board’s Size [number of Board members to be 5 – 20]

1 (2)

Independent Directors

1(2) (a)

Independent Director(s) (at least one fifth of total number of directors shall be
Independent Director)

1(2)(b)

Independent Director (ID)

1(2)(b)(i)

who either does not hold any share in the company or holds less than one
percent(1%) shares of the total paid up shares of the company

√

1(2)(b)(ii)

who is not a sponsor of the company and is not connected with the company’s any
sponsor or director or shareholder who holds 1% or more shares of the total paidup shares of the company on the basis of family relationship and his or her family
members also shall not hold above mentioned shares in the company:

√

1(2)(b)(iii)

who has not been an executive of the company in immediately preceding 2 (two)
financial years;

√

1(2)(b)(iv)

who does not have any other relationship , whether pecuniary or otherwise, with
the company or its subsidiary or associated companies;

√

1(2)(b)(v)

who is not a member or TREC holder, director or officer of any stock exchange;

1(2)(b)(vi)

who is not a shareholder, director excepting independent director or officer of
any member or TREC holder of stock exchange or an intermediary of the capital
market

√

1(2)(b)(vii)

who is not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or an executive during
the preceding 3 (three) years of the concerned company’s statutory audit firm or
audit firm engaged in internal audit services or audit firm conducting special audit
or professional certifying compliance of the Code

√

1(2)(b)(viii)

who is not independent director in more than 5 (five) listed companies

1(2)(b)(ix)

who has not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction as a defaulter In
payment of any loan or any advance to a Bank or a Non-Bank Financial Institution
(NBFI)

1(2)(b)(x)

who has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral turpitude;

1(2)(c)

The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the Board and approved by
the shareholders in the AGM.

√

1(2)(d)

The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant for more than 90
(ninety) days.

√

1(2)(e)

The tenure of office on an independent director shall be for a period of 3(three)
years, which may be extended for 1 tenure only.

√

1.3

Qualification of Independent Director

SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

√
√

√

Not Complied

Remarks
(If any)

Condition
No.

Title

Compliance Status (“√”)
in appropriate column)

Complied

1(3)(a)

Independent director shall be a knowledgeable Individual with Integrity who
is able to ensure compliance with financial laws, regulatory requirements and
corporate laws and can make meaningful contribution to the business

√

1(3)(b)(i)

Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an unlisted company
having minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or any listed company
or member of any national or international chamber of commerce or business
association

N/A

1(3)(b)(ii)

Corporate Leader who is or was a top level executive not lower than CEO or MD
or DMD or CFO or Head of Finance or Accounts or Company Secretary or Head
of Internal Audit and Compliance or Hear of Legal Service or a candidate with
equivalent position of an unlisted company having minimum paid-up capital of Tk.
100.00 million or of a listed company.

N/A

1(3)(b)(iii)

Former official of Government or statutory or autonomous or regulatory body
in the position not below 5th Grade of the national pay scale, who has at least
educational background of bachelor degree In economics or commerce or
business or law

N/A

1(3)(b)(iv)

University teacher who has educational background in Economics or Commerce
or Business Studies or Law

N/A

1(3)(b)(v)

Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least In the High Court
Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered Accountant or Cost and
Management Accountant or Chartered Financial Analyst or Chartered Certified
Accountant or Certified Public Accountant or Chartered Management Accountant
or Chartered Secretary or Equivalent qualification

√

1(3)(c)

The independent director shall have at least 10 (ten) years of experiences in any
field mentioned in clause (b)

√

1(3)(d)

In special cases, the above qualifications or experiences may be relaxed subject to
prior approval of the commission

N/A

1(4)

Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief
Executive Officer

1(4)(a)

The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and the Managing Director(MD)
and/or Chief Executive Officer(CEO) of the company shall be filled by different
individuas

√

1(4)(b)

The MD and/or CEO of a listed company shall not hold the same position in
another listed company

√

1(4)(c)

The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among the non-executive
directors of the company

√

1(4)(d)

The Board shall clearly define respective roles and responsibilities of the
Chairperson and the MD and/or CEO

√

1(4)(e)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the remaining members may elect
one of themselves from nonexecutive directors as Chairperson for that particular
Boards meeting; the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly
recorded in the minutes

√

1(5)

The directors’ Report to Shareholders

√

1(5)(i)

industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry

1(5)(ii)

Segment-wise or product-wise performance

1(5)(iii)

Risks and concerns Including internal and external risk factors, threat to
sustainability and negative impact on environment

1(5)(iv)

Discussion on COGS, Gross Profit and Net Profit Margins

1(5)(v)

Discussion on continuity of any Extra-Ordinary activities and their implications
(gain or loss)

1(5)(vi)

Detail discussion on related party transactions along with a statement showing
amount, nature of related party, nature of transactions and basis of transactions of
all related party transactions

Not Complied

Remarks
(If any)

√
√
√
√
√
√
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Condition
No.

68

Title

Compliance Status (“√”)
in appropriate column)

Complied

Not Complied

Remarks
(If any)

1(5)(vii)

Statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public issues, rights issues,
and/or any other instruments

N/A

No public,
right issue during
the year

1(5)(viii)

Explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the company goes for Initial
Public Offering (IPO), repeat Public Offering (RPO), Rights Share Offer, Direct
Listing, etc

N/A

No public right
issue during the
year

1(5)(ix)

Explanation on any significant variance that occurs between quarterly Financial
performances and Annual Financial Statements

√

1(5)(x)

Statement of remuneration paid to the directors including independent directors

√

1(5)(xi)

Statement that the financial statements prepared by the management of the issuer
company present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows
and changes in equity

1(5)(xii)

Statement that proper books of account of the issuer company have been
maintained

√

1(5)(xiii)

Statement that appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied
In preparation of the financial statements and that the accounting estimates are
based on reasonable and prudent judgment

√

1(5) (xiv)

Statement that IAS or IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in
preparation of the financial statements and any departure there from has been
adequately disclosed

√

1(5)(xv)

Statement that the system in internal control is sound in design and has been
effectively Implemented and monitored

√

1(5)(xvi)

Statement that minority shareholders have been protected from abusive actions
by, or in the interest of controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly
and have effective means of redress

√

1(5)(xvii)

Statement that there Is no significant doubt upon the issuer company’s ability to
continue a going concern, if the issuer company is not considered to be a going
concern, the fact along with reasons there of shall be disclosed

√

1(5)(xviii)

Explanation that significant deviations from the last year’s operating results of the
issuer company shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof shall be explained

√

1(5)(xix)

Statement where key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 years
shall be summarized

√

1(5)(xx)

Explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not declared dividend (Cash
or stock) for the year

N/A

1(5)(xxi)

Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock dividend has been or
shall be declared as Interim dividend

N/A

1(5)(xxii)

The total number of Board meeting held during the year and attendance by each
director

√

1(5)(xxiii)

Report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number of shares
(along with name-wise details where stated below) held by

√

1(5)(xxiii)(a)

parent or subsidiary or associated companies and other related parties

√

1(5)(xxiii)(b)

Directors, COE, Company Secretary, CFO, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance
and their spouses and minor children

1(5)(xxiii)(c)

Executives,

1(5)(xxiii)(d)

Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the company

1(5)(xxiv)

in case of appointment or reappointment of a director, a disclosure on the
following information to the shareholders

1(5)(xxiv)(a)

Brief resume of the director

1(5)(xxiv)(b)

nature of his or her expertise in specific functional areas

1(5)(xxiv)(c)

names of company in which the person also holds the directorship and the
membership of committees of the Board

SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

√

√
√
√
√
√
√
√

Condition
No.

Title

Compliance Status (“√”)
in appropriate column)

Complied

1(5)(xxv)

Management’s discussion and analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting detailed
analysis of the company’s position and operations along with a brief discussion of
changes in the financial statements, among others, focusing on

1(5)(xxv)(a)

accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements

1(5) (xxv)(b)

changes in accounting policies and estimation, If any, clearly describing the effect
on financial performance or results and financial position as well as cash flows in
absolute figure for such changes

1(5)(xxv)(c)

Comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of financial performance or
results and financial position as well as cash flows for current financial year with
immediate preceding five years explaining reasons thereof

√

1(5)(xxv)(d)

Compare such financial performance or results and financial position as well as
cash flows with the peer industry scenario

√

1.5 (xxv) (e)

briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the country and the globe

√

1(5) (xxv)(f)

risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements, explaining such risk
and concerns mitigation plan of the company

1(5)(xxv)(g)

future plan or projection or forecast for company’s operation, performance and
financial position, with justification thereof, i.e, actual position shall be explained
to the shareholders in the next AGM

√

1(5)(xxvi)

Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the Board as required
under condition No. 3(3) shall be disclosed as per Annexure - A

√

1(5)(xxvii)

the report as well as certificate regarding compliance of conditions of this Code as
required under condition No.9 shall be disclosed as per

√

1(6)

Meetings of the Board of Directors: The company shall conduct its Board meetings
and record the minutes of the meetings as well as keep required books and records
in line with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS)
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far
as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this Code

√

Not Complied

Remarks
(If any)

√
√

√

1(7)

Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, Other Board members and CEO

1(7)(a)

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee at condition No.6, for the Chairperson
of the Board, other board members and CEO of the company

√

1(7)(b)

The Code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on the website
of the company including, among others, prudent conduct and behavior;
confidentiality; conflict of interest; compliance with laws; rules and regulations;
prohibition of insider trading; relationship with environment, employees,
customers and suppliers and independency,

√

2

Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company

2(a)

Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the holding company shall
be made applicable to the composition of the Board of the subsidiary company

N/A

2(b)

At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of the holding company shall
be a director on the Board of the subsidiary company.

N/A

2 (c)

The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary company shall be placed for
review at the following Board meeting of the holding company.

N/A

2(d)

The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding company shall state
that they have reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company also

N/A

2(e)

The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also review the financial
statements, in particular the investments made by the subsidiary company

N/A

3

MD or CEO, CFO, Head of Internal Audit & Compliance and Company Secretary

3(1)

Appointment

3(1)(a)

The Board shall appoint a MD or CEO, CS, CFO and a Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance

There is no
subsidiary company

√
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No.

70

Title

Compliance Status (“√”)
in appropriate column)

Complied

3(1)(b)

The position of the MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall be filled by different
individuals

√

3 (1) (c)

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company shall not hold any
executive position in any other company at the same time

√

3 (1)(d)

The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsibilities and duties of the
CFO, HIAC and CS.

√

3(1)(e)

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed from their position
without approval of the Board as well as immediate dissemination to the
Commission and stock exchange(s)

√

3(2)

Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings

3(3)

Duties of MD or CEO and CFO

3(3)(a)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have reviewed
financial statements for the year and that to the best of their knowledge and belief

√

3(3)(a)(i)

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading

√

3(3)(a)(ii)

These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs
and are in compliance with existing accounting standards applicable laws

√

3(3)(b)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to the best of knowledge
and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company’s Board
or its members

√

3(3)(c)

The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be disclosed in the Annual
Report.

√

4

Board of Directors’ Committee

4(i)

Audit Committee

4(ii)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

5

Audit Committee

5(1)

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

5(1)(a)

The company shall have an audit committee as a subcommittee of the Board

5(1)(b)

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that the financial statements
reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring a
good monitoring system within the business

5(1)(c)

The audit committee shall be responsible to the Board; the duties of the audit
committee shall be clearly set forth in writing

5(2)

Constitution of the Audit Committee

5(2)(a)

The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3(three) members

5(2)(b)

The Board shall appoint members of the Audit Committee who shall be nonexecutive directors of the company excepting Chairperson of the Board and shall
include at least 1(one) independent director.

5(2)(c)

All members of the audit committee should be “financially literate” and at
least 1(one) member shall have accounting or related financial management
background and 10(ten) years of such experience

√

5(2)(d)

When the term of service of any Committee members expires or there is any
circumstance causing any Committee member to be unable to hold office before
expiration of the term of service, thus making the number of the Committee
members to be lower than the prescribed number of 3(three) persons, the Board
shall appoint the new Committee member to fill up the vacancy immediately or
not later than 1(one) month from the date of vacancy in the Committee to ensure
continuity of the performance of work of the Audit Committee

√

5(2)(e)

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee

√
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Not Complied

Remarks
(If any)

√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√

No such incident
was occurred

Condition
No.
5(2)(f)

Title
The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not constitute without at least
1(one) independent director

Compliance Status (“√”)
in appropriate column)

Complied

√

5(3)

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

5(3)(a)

The Board shall select 1(one) member of the Audit Committee to be Chairperson
of the Audit Committee, who shall be an independent director

√

5(3)(b)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, the remaining
members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting,
in that case there shall be no problem of constituting a quorum as required under
condition No. 5(4)(b) and the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall
be duly recorded in the minutes

√

5(3)(c)

Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the Annual General
Meeting(AGM)

√

5 (4)

Meeting of the Audit Committee

5(4)(a)

The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meetings in a financial year

5(4)(b)

The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be constituted in
presence of either two members or two third of the members of the Audit
Committee, whichever is higher, where presence of an independent director is
a must.

5(5)

Role of Audit Committee

5(5)(a)

Oversee the financial reporting process

5(5)(b)

Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles

5(5)(c)

Monitor internal audit and compliance process to ensure that it is adequately
resourced, including approval of the internal audit and compliance, plan and
review of the internal audit and compliance report

5(5)(d)

Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors

5(5)(e)

Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual
financial statements before submission to the Board for approval or adoption

5(5)(f)

Review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval

√

5(5)(g)

Review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval

√

5(5)(h)

Review the adequacy of internal audit function

5(5)(i)

Review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the Annual
Report

√

5(5)(j)

Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management

5(5)(k)

Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by
statutory auditors

5(5)(l)

Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level
of expertise deployed and time required for effective audit and evaluate the
performance of external auditors

√

5(5)(m)

Oversee whether the proceeds raised through IPO or RPO or Rights Share Offer
have been utilized as per the purposes stated in relevant offer document or
prospectus approved by the Commission

√

5(6)

Reporting of the Audit Committee

5(6)(a)

Reporting to the Board of Directors

5(6)(a)(i)

The audit committee shall report on its activities to the Board

5(6)(a)(ii)

The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board on the following
findings if any:

5(6)(a)(ii)(a)

Report on conflicts of interests

Not Complied

Remarks
(If any)
No such incident
was occurred

√
√

√
√
√
√
√

√
√
√

√
N/A
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Compliance Status (“√”)
in appropriate column)

Condition
No.

Title

5(6)(a)(ii)(b)

Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect identified in the
internal audit and compliance process or in the financial statements

N/A

5(6)(a)(ii)(c)

Suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances including securities
related laws, rules and regulations

N/A

5(6)(a)(ii)(d)

Any other matter which the audit committee deems necessary shall be disclosed
to the Board immediately

√

5(6)(b)

Reporting to the Authorities: If the audit committee has reported to the Board
about anything which has material impact on the financial condition and results
of operation and has discussed with the Board and the management that any
rectification is necessary and if the Audit Committee find that such rectification
has been unreasonably ignored, the Audit Committee shall report such finding to
the Commission, upon reporting of such matters to the Board for three times or
completion of a period of six months from the date of first reporting to the Board,
whichever is earlier.

N/A

5(7)

Reporting to the Shareholders and General investors: report on activities carried
out by the Audit Committee, including any report made to the Board under
condition No. 5(6)(a)(ii) above during the year, shall be signed by the Chairperson
of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the Annual Report of the issuer company.

√

6

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

6(1)

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

Complied

Not Complied

Remarks
(If any)

No such matter
arisen during the
year

√

6(1)(a)

The company shall have a NRC as a subcommittee of the Board

6(1)(b)

The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or policy
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and independence
of directors and top level executive as well as a policy for formal process of
considering remuneration of directors, top level executive

6(1)(c)

The terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly set forth in writing
covering the areas stated at the condition No. 6(5)(b)

6(2)

Constitution of the NRC

6(2)(a)

The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including an independent
director

√

6(2)(b)

All members of the Committee shall be non-executive directors

√

√
√

√

6(2)(c)

Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by the Board

6(2)(d)

The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any member of the
Committee

6(2)(e)

In case of death, resignation, disqualification or removal of any member of the
Committee or in any other cases of vacancies, the Board shall fill the vacancy
within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in the Committee.

√

No such incident
was occurred

6(2)(f)

The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any external expert
and/or member(s) of staff to the Committee as advisor who shall be non-voting
member, if the Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion from such external
expert and/or member(s) of staffs shall be required or valuable for the Committee

√

No such incident
was occurred

6(2)(g)

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee

√

6(2)(h)

The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without attendance of at least
an independent director

6(2)(i)

No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly, any remuneration
for any advisory or consultancy role or otherwise, other than Director’s fees or
honorarium from the company.

6(3)

Chairperson of the NRC

6(3)(a)

The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC to be Chairperson of the
Committee, who shall be an independent director
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√

√
√

√

Condition
No.

Title

Compliance Status (“√”)
in appropriate column)

Complied

6(3)(b)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining members may
elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting, the reason of
absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes

√

6(3)(c)

The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual general meeting (AGM) to
answer the queries of the shareholders

√

6(4)

Meeting of the NRC

6(4)(a)

The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial Year

6(4)(b)

The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency meeting upon request
by any member of the NRC

6(4)(c)

The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in presence of either
two members or two third of the members of the Committee, whichever is higher,
where presence of an independent director is must as required under condition
No. 6(2)(h)

√

6(4)(d)

The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be recorded in the minutes
and such minutes shall be confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC

√

6(5)

Role of the NRC

6(5)(a)

NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board and to
the shareholders

√

6(5)(b)

NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with
recommendation to the Board

√

6(5)(b)(i)

formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend a policy to the Board, relating to
the remuneration of the directors, top level executive, considering the following

√

6(5)(b)(i)(a)

the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate suitable directors to run the company successfully

√

6(5)(b)(i)(b)

the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks

√

6(5)(b)(i)(c)

remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the company and its goals

√

6(5)(b)(ii)

devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, gender,
experience, ethnicity, educational background and nationality

√

6(5)(b)(iii)

identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed in top level executive position in accordance with the criteria laid
down, and recommend their appointment and removal to the Board

√

6(5)(b)(iv)

formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors
and the Board

√

6(5)(b)(v)

identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine
their selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criteria

√

6(5)(b)(vi)

developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human
resources and training policies

√

6(5)(c)

The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and the
evaluation criteria and activities of NRC during the year at a glance in its annual
report

7

External or Statutory Auditors

7(1)

The issuer company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform
the following services of the company, namely

√

7(1)(i)

appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions

√

7(1)(ii)

financial information systems design and implementation

7(1)(iii)

book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records or financial
statements

√
√

Not Complied

Remarks
(If any)
No such incident
was occurred

No such incident
was occurred

√
√
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Condition
No.

74

Title

Compliance Status (“√”)
in appropriate column)

Complied

√

7(1)(iv)

broker-dealer services

7(1)(v)

actuarial services

7(1)(vi)

internal audit services or special audit services

7(1)(vii)

any service that the Audit Committee determines

7(1)(viii)

audit or certification services on compliance of corporate governance as required
under condition No. 9(1);

7(1)(ix)

any other service that creates conflict of interest

7(2)

No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess any share of the
company they audit at least during the tenure of their audit assignment of that
company; his or her family members also shall not hold any shares in the said
company: Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, brother, sister, sonin-law and daughter-in-law shall be considered as family members.

7(3)

Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain present in the
Shareholders’ Meeting (Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General
Meeting) to answer the queries of the shareholders

8

Maintaining a website by the Company

8(1)

The company shall have an official website linked with the website of the stock
exchange

√

8(2)

The company shall keep the website functional from the date of Listing

8(3)

The company shall make available the detailed disclosures on its website as
required under the listing regulations of the concerned stock exchange(s)

√

9

Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance

9(1)

The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing Professional Accountant
or Secretary (Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant or
Chartered Secretary) other than its statutory auditors or audit firm on yearly
basis regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Code of the
Commission and shall such certificate shall be disclosed in the Annual Report

√

9(2)

The professional who will provide the certificate on compliance of this Corporate
Governance Code shall be appointed by the shareholders in the annual general
meeting.

√

9(3)

The directors of the company shall state, in accordance with the Annexure-C
attached, in the directors’ report whether the company has complied with these
conditions or not

√
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√
√
√
√
√
√

√

√

Not Complied

Remarks
(If any)
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
for the year ended on 30th June 2021

Dear Shareholders,
I am pleased to present the Report of the Audit Committee for the year
ended on 30 June 2021.
The Audit Committee Report presented under condition No.5 of the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission(BSEC) Corporate
Governance Code provides an insight on the functions of the Audit
Committee for the year ended on 30th June 2021.
Composition of the Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee of Shinepukur Ceramics Limited, a prime Board
sub-committee, assists the Board in discharging its governance
responsibilities. The Board has formed the Audit Committee, required
under Codes of Corporate Governance of BSEC with some specific
assignments under its Terms of Reference. The existing Audit Committee
of the Company is as follows:
•
Barrister Faheemul Huq
Independent Director
Chairman of the Audit Committee
•
Mr. Iqbal Ahmed
Non-Executive Director
Member
•
Mr. O. K. Chowdhury, FCA
Non-Executive Director
Member
•
Mr. Mohammad Asad Ullah, FCS
Company Secretary
Secretary of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is appointed by the main Board and all the Members
are Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman is an Independent
Director.
As required, all Members of the Audit Committee are ‘financially literate’
and are able to analysis and interpret financial statements to effectively
discharge their duties and responsibilities as Members of the Audit
Committee.
Role of Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee performs in coherence and consistency and
ensures compliance with the Corporate Governance Code issued by the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). The role of the
Audit Committee is to monitor the integrity of the financial statements
of the Company and review when appropriate, make recommendations
to the main Board on business risk, internal controls and compliance
and audit. The committee satisfies itself, by means of suitable steps and
appropriate information, that proper and satisfactory internal control
system are in place to identify and contain business risk and that the
Company’s business is conducted in a proper and economically sound
manner. The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors to ensure that
the financial statements reflect a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the company and in ensuring a good monitoring system within the
business. The Audit Committee is responsible to the Board of Directors.
The duties of the Audit Committee are clearly set forth in writing.
The role of the Audit Committee includes the following:
•
Oversee the financial reporting process.
•
Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles.
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•

Monitor Internal audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is
adequately resourced, including approval of the Internal Audit and
Compliance Plan and review of the Internal Audit and Compliance
Report;
•
Oversee hiring and performance of external Auditors.
•
Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of
the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval or adoption;
•
Review along with the management, the annual financial statements
before submission to the Board for approval.
•
Review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly
financial statements before submission to the Board for approval.
•
Review the adequacy of internal audit function.
•
Review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis before disclosing
in the Annual Report;
•
Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the
management;
•
Review Management Letters/Letter of Internal Control weakness
issued by statutory auditors.
•
Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and
magnitude, level of expertise deployed and time required for
effective audit and evaluate the performance of external auditors;
•
To review whether all the applicable Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Notifications, Directives, etc. framed/issued by the regulatory
authorities have been complied with.
•
Other matters as per Terms of Reference (ToR) of the Audit
Committee and also as directed by the Board, from time to time.
Authority:
In terms of Corporate Governance Code issued by BSEC, the Audit
Committee is authorized by the Board to review any activity within the
business as per its Terms of Reference(ToR). It is authorized to seek any
information it requires from, and requires the attendance at any of its
meeting of any Director or Member of Management, and all employees
are expected to co-operate with any request made by the Committee.
The Committee is also authorized to have information and advice from
the Company Legal Advisor, Tax Consultant and Statutory Auditor if
required. The ToR of the Audit Committee may be amended from time to
time as required for the business in line with BSEC Notifications, subject
to approval by the Board of the Company.
Responsibilities and Duties
The responsibilities and duties of the Audit Committee are:
Financial Reporting
•
To review the quarterly and annual financial statements of the
Company, focusing particularly on;
•
Any significant changes to accounting policies and practices;
•
Significant adjustments arising from the audits;
•
Compliance with applicable financial reporting standards and other
legal and regulatory requirements, and
•
The going concern assumption.

Related Party Transactions
To review any related party transactions and conflict of interest situations
that may arise within the Company, including any transaction, procedure
or course of conduct that may arise questions of management integrity.
Audit Committee Reports
To prepare the annual Audit Committee Report and submit it to the
Board which includes: the composition of the Audit Committee, its
terms of reference, number of meetings held and attendance thereat, a
summary of its activities and the performance of internal audit services for
inclusion in the Annual Report, and to review the Board’s statements on
compliance with the BSEC Codes of Corporate Governance for inclusion
in the Annual Report.
Internal Control
•
To consider annually the risk management framework adopted
within the Company and to be satisfied that the methodology
deployed allows the identification, analysis, assessment, monitoring
and communication of risks in a regular and timely manner that will
allow the Company to minimize losses and maximize opportunities;
•
To ensure that the system of internal control is thoroughly conceived
and in place, effectively administered and regularly monitored;
•
To review the extent of compliance with established internal
policies, standards, plans and procedures, including, for example,
the Company’s Standards of Business Conduct;
•
To obtain assurance that proper plans for control has been
developed prior to the commencement of major areas of change
within the Company; and
•
To recommend to the Board about steps needed to improve the
system of internal control derived from the findings of the internal
and external auditors, and from the consultations of the Audit
Committee itself.
Internal Audit
•
To be satisfied that the plan, methodology and resource for
internal auditing are communicated down through the Company.
Specifically :
•
To review the internal audit plans and to be satisfied as to their
consistency with the risk management framework used and
adequacy of coverage;
•
To be satisfied that Internal Audit has the competency and
qualifications to complete its mandates and approved audit plans.
•
To review status reports from internal audit and ensure that
appropriate actions have been taken to implement the audit
recommendations;
•
To recommend any broader review deemed necessary as a
consequence of the issues or concerns identified;
•
To ensure that internal audit has full, free and unrestricted access to
all activities, records, property and personnel necessary to perform
its activities; and
•
To request and review any special audit which it deems necessary.
External Audit
•
To review the external auditor’s audit plan, nature and scope of
the audit plan, audit report, evaluation of internal controls and
coordination of the external auditor. The Audit Committee will
consider a consolidated opinion on the quality of external auditing
at one of its meetings;

•

To review with the external auditor, the Statement on Risk
Management and Infernal Control of the Company for inclusion in
the Annual Report;
•
To review any matter concerning the appointment and reappointment, audit fee and resignation or dismissal of the external
auditor;
•
To review and evaluate factors related to the independence of the
external auditor and assist them in preserving their independence;
•
To be advised of and decide to or not to make significant use
of the external auditor in performing non-audit services within
the Company, considering both the types of services rendered
and the fees, so that its position as auditor is not deemed to be
compromised; and
•
To review the external auditor’s findings arising from audits,
particularly and comments and responses in management letters,
as well as the assistance given by the employees of the Company in
order to be satisfied that appropriate action is being taken.
Other Matters
To act on any other matters as may be directed by the Board.
Reporting of the Audit Committee:
Reporting to the Board of Directors: The Audit Committee reports on its
activities to the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee immediately
reports to the Board of Directors on the following findings, if any:
•
Report on conflicts of interests;
•
Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect
identified in the internal audit and compliance process or in the
financial statements;
•
Suspected infringement of laws, including securities related laws,
rules and regulations;
•
Any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary shall
be disclosed to the board immediately.
The Audit Committee further ensures that, in compliance with condition
No.5 of the Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission dated 3 June 2018 the Chief Executive
Officer(CEO) and Chief Financial Officer(CFO) of the Company have
certified before the Board that they have thoroughly reviewed the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 30th June 2021,
and they state that:
(i) They have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on
30th June, 2021 and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:
(a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement
or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be
misleading;
(b) These statement collectively present a true and fair view of the
Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting
standards and applicable laws.
(ii) There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief no transactions
entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent,
illegal or in violation of the code of conduct of the Company’s Board
of Directors or its Members.
Such joint certificate of the CEO and CFO is thoroughly reviewed by the
Audit Committee before submission to the Board.
Reporting to the Authorities
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The Audit Committee reports to the Board of Directors about anything
which has a material impact on the financial condition and results of
operation. The Committee also discusses with the Board of Directors
and the management if any rectification is necessary. If the Audit
Committee finds that such rectification has been unreasonably ignored,
the Committee reports such findings to the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission upon reporting of such matters to the Board of
Directors for three times or completion of a period of six months from
the date of first reporting to the Board of Directors, whichever is earlier.
Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors:
Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee, including any
report made to the Board of Directors under condition No.5(6)(a)(i) of the
BSEC’s Corporate Governance Code mentioned above during the year,
shall be signed by the Chairman of the Audit Committee and disclosed in
the Annual Report of the Company.
Meeting Attendance
The Audit Committee met four times during the year ended on 30 June
2021. All the Members were present in all meetings of the Committee.
The Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance of the Company and representatives of the external Auditors
had attended the meetings upon invitation by the Audit Committee. From
time to time, relevant stakeholders and other senior members of the
management have also been invited by the Audit Committee to attend
Audit Committee meetings. The Audit Committee met with the external
Auditors separately, and with the Internal Auditors, on an annual basis
without any Executive Director being present. The Company Secretary,
being the Secretary of the Audit Committee, facilitates the Chairman
and other Members for effective functioning of the Committee, as per
its terms of reference as well as Corporate Governance Code of BSEC.
Summary of activities and recommendations of the Audit Committee for
the year ended on 30th June 2021:
Financial Reporting
In terms of reference, the Committee in its first meeting held on October
25, 2020 reviewed the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended on
30 June 2020. During the meeting the Chief Financial Officer presented
the draft annual accounts along with the independent auditors’ report
to the Committee and briefed the committee regarding the financial
performance of the Company.
The Audit Committee in its aforesaid meeting also had detailed
discussion with the Members of the accounts and finance department on
various aspects of the financial statements and accounts. The Committee
also reviewed the financial reporting process, discussed the adequacy of
the internal control processes in place to prevent errors and fraudulent
activities and thoroughly scrutinized the related party transactions
carried out during the year. The committee was fully satisfied that the
related party transactions were made on an arm length basis as part of
normal course of business and the transactions have been adequately
disclosed in the financial statements. The Independent Auditors’ report
also did not contain any material audit observation that warranted the
Boards’ attention. The Committee being satisfied, authorized for onward
submission of the Audited Financial Statements to the Board for approval.
In addition to the above meeting, the Audit Committee met three times
during the year ended on 30 June 2021. All the Members were present
in all meetings of the Committee.
The second meeting of the Committee was held on November 11, 2020,
prior to release of the un-audited First Quarter Financial Statements of the
Company for the quarter ended on September 30, 2020. The Committee
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reviewed the financial progress during the first quarter and examined in
detail and recommended the same for approval by the Board to release
to the Shareholders of the Company.
The third meeting of the Committee was held on January 25, 2021
to review the un-audited second quarter financial Statements of the
Company. The Committee being satisfied recommended for issue of the
financial statements for the half-year ended on December 31, 2021.
The fourth meeting of the Committee was held on April 27, 2021 during
pandemic situation of Covid-19 to release of the un-audited third quarter
financial statements of the Company for the quarter ended March 31,
2021. The detailed review of the financial statements was made by the
Committee and recommended to the Board for approval of the financial
statements for release to the Shareholders of the Company.
The Chief Executive Officers of concerned Divisions, Chief Financial
Officer, Internal Auditors of the Company and representatives of the
External Auditors had attended all the meetings upon invitation by
the Audit Committee. From time to time, other senior Members of
Management have also been invited by the Audit Committee to attend in
the above Audit Committee meetings. The Audit Committee met with the
External Auditors and separately, with the internal Auditors on an annual
basis.
The Audit Committee also reviewed, approved and monitored the
procedures and task of the internal audit, financial report preparation and
the external audit reports. The Committee found adequate arrangement
to present a true and fair view of the activities and the financial status of
the Company and did not find any material deviation, discrepancies or
any adverse findings/observation in the areas of reporting.
Annual Reporting
Reviewed disclosures required by the statement on corporate
governance, audit committee report, standards of business conduct,
statement on risk management and internal control for the financial year
ended 30th June 2021 for inclusion in the Annual Report, 2020-'21 and
recommended their adoption to the Board.
External Auditors’
The Audit Committee conducted a formal evaluation of the effectiveness
of the external audit process. The Committee has considered the tenure,
quality and fees of the auditors, considered and made recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and remuneration of external Auditors,
M/s. M. J. Abedin & Company, Chartered Accountants for the year 20212022, subject to the approval of shareholders in the 24th AGM of the
Company, who had carried out the audit of the Company for the year
ended on 30 June 2021.
Report Authorization
This Audit Committee Repot is made in accordance with the resolution of
the Board of Directors on 21st October, 2021.
On behalf of the Audit Committee

(BARRISTER FAHEEMUL HUQ)
CHAIRMAN

Certification on Compliance
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of Shinepukur Ceramics Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the ﬁ nancial statements of Shinepukur Ceramics Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the statement of ﬁ nancial position as at 30 June
2021, statement of proﬁt or loss, statement of other c omprehensive income, statement of changes in equit y and statement of cash ﬂ ows for the year then
ended, and notes to the ﬁnancial statements, including a summary of signiﬁcant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying ﬁnancial statements give a true and fair view of the ﬁ nancial position of the Company as at 30 June 2021 and of its ﬁ nancial
performance and its cash ﬂ ows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, The
Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in ac cordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standar ds are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the F inancial Statements section of our r eport. We are independent of the C ompany in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics f or Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical r equirements that
are relevant to our audit of the ﬁ nancial statements in Bangladesh, and w e have fulﬁlled our other ethical r esponsibilities in accordance with these ethical
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suÿ cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit ma tters are those ma tters that, in our pr ofessional judgment, were of most sig niﬁcance in our audit of the c onsolidated and separ ate ﬁnancial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the c onsolidated and separate ﬁnancial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Risk

Our response to the risk

Revenue Recognition
At year end the c ompany reported total revenue of
Tk. 1,393,558,406.
The company manufactures and sells a number of
products for customers. The company sales contracts
for determining the pr inciples for recognizing
revenue in accordance with
accounting standard IFRS 15. S ome of the sales
contracts contain various performance obligations
and management exercises judgment to determine
timing of r evenue recognition, i.e., over time or a
point in time.

Principal audit procedures:
•
Obtained an understanding of the v arious revenue streams and na ture of sales c ontracts
entered into by the company
•
Evaluated the desig n of in ternal controls to identiﬁcation of per formance obligations and
determining timing of revenue recognition.
•
Selected a sample of c ontract and though inspec tion of evidenc e of per formance of these
controls, tested the operating e˝ ectiveness of the internal controls relating to the identiﬁcation
of performance obligations and timing of revenue recognition.
•
Selected a sample of contracts and reassessed contractual terms to determine adherence to the
requirements of the new accounting standard.

See note No:( 3.1 & 18.00 ) to ﬁnancial statements
Valuation of inventory
The company had inventory of Tk. 876,561,784. As at
30 June, 2021 held in factory and showroom.
Inventories are carried at the lo wer of c ost and net
realisable value. As a result, the Directors apply
judgment in determining the appropriate values for
slow-moving or obsolete items.
Since the v alues of in ventory are signiﬁcant to
the ﬁnancial statements and ther e is sig niﬁcant
measurement uncertainty involved in this v aluation,
the valuation of inventory was signiﬁcant to our audit.

We veriﬁed the appropriateness of management’s assumptions applied in calculating the value of the
inventory by:
•

Evaluating the desig n and implemen tation of key in ventory controls operating across the
factory and showroom.

•

Attending Inventory counts and reconciling the count results to the inventory listing to the test
the completeness of data.

•

Reviewing the requirement of inventory provisioning and action there upon by the management.

Comparing the net r ealizable value obtained through a detailed r eview of sales subsequen t to the
year-end, to the cost price of a sample of inventories.

See Note No:(3.5 & 6.00) to the ﬁnancial statements

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021

81

SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2021

Valuation of Property, Plant and equipment (PPE)
The carrying value of the PPE was Tk. 5,044,919,096 as at June, 2021.

Our audit included the following procedures:

Expenditures are capitalized if they create new assets or enhance the •
existing assets, and expensed if they related to repair or maintenance of the
assets. Classiﬁcation of the expenditur es involves judgment’s useful liv es
of PPE items are based on managemen t’s estimates regarding the period •
during which the assets or its sig niﬁcant components will be used . The
estimates are based on historical experience and market practice and take
into consideration the physical conditions of the assets.
•
The valuation of PPE w as identiﬁed as a key audit matter due t o the
signiﬁcance of this balance to the ﬁnancial statements and that there is
signiﬁcant measurement uncertainty involved in this valuation.
•

We assessed whether the ac counting policies on r elation to the
capitalization of expenditur es are in c ompliance with IFRS and f ound
them to be inconsistent.
We inspected a sample of in voices and L/C documen ts to determine
whether the classiﬁcation between capital and revenue expenditure was
appropriate.
We evaluated whether the useful lives determined and applied by the
management were in line with hist orical experience and the mar ket
practice.
We checked whether the depr eciation of PPE it ems was commenced
timely, by comparing the date of the reclassiﬁcation from capital work in
progress to ready for use, with date of the act of completion of the work.

See Note No: (3.2 & 4.00) to the ﬁnancial statements
IT systems and controls
Our audit procedures have a focus on information technology systems and •
controls due to the pervasive nature and complexity of the IT environment,
the large volume of transactions processed in numerous locations daily
and the reliance on automated and IT dependent manual controls.
Our areas of audit f ocus included user ac cess management, developer
access to the production environment and changes to the IT environment.
•
These are key to ensuring IT dependent and application-based controls
are operating e˝ ectively.

We tested the desig n and oper ating e˝ ectiveness of the c ompany’s
IT access controls over the inf ormation systems that are critical to
ﬁnancial reporting. We tested IT general controls (logical access, changes
management and inspec ts of IT oper ational controls).this included
testing that requests for access to systems were appropriately reviewed
and authorized.
We tasted the c ompany’s periodic review of ac cess rights. We
inspect requests of changes t o system for appropriate approval and
authorization. We considered the control environment relating to various
interfaces, conﬁguration and other applica tion layer controls identiﬁed
as key to our audit.

See Note No: ( 2.8) to the ﬁnancial statements
Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the inf ormation in the Annual r eport but does not include the
ﬁnancial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the ﬁnancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the ﬁnancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with ﬁnancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements.
Management is r esponsible for the pr eparation and fair pr esentation of these ﬁ nancial statements in ac cordance with, I nternational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, The Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of ﬁnancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the ﬁnancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going c oncern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s ﬁnancial reporting process.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2021

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ﬁ nancial statements as a whole ar e free from material misstatement, whether due t o
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to inﬂuence the economic decision of users taken on the basis of these ﬁnancial
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional Skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and asses the r isks of material misstatement of the ﬁ nancial statements, whether due t o fraud or error, design and per form audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidenc es that are suÿ cient and appropriate to provide a basis f or audit opinion. The risk of not det ecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than f or one resulting from error, as fraud my involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the e˝ ectiveness of the internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidences obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast signiﬁcant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the ﬁnancial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our c onclusions are based on the audit evidenc es obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the o verall presentation, structure and c ontent of the ﬁ nancial statements, including the disclosur es, and whether the ﬁ nancial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those char ged with go vernance regarding, among other ma tters, the planned sc ope and timing of the audit and sig niﬁcant audit
ﬁndings, including any signiﬁcant deﬁciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a sta tement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all r elationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independenc e, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most signiﬁcance in the audit of the consolidated
and separate ﬁnancial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in ex tremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest beneﬁts of such communication.
Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1994 and The Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020 and relevant notiﬁcations issued by Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission, and the other applicable laws and regulations, we also report the following:
a)

we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our k nowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and
made due veriﬁcation thereof;

b)

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it appeared from our examination of these books;

c)

the statement of Financial Position and Statement of Proﬁt or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the
books of account; and

d)

The expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the company’s business.

Dated, Dhaka
21 October 2021

M. J. ABEDIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Reg No : N/A

Hasan Mahmood FCA,Partner
Enrollment No: 564
DVC:2110260564AS621128
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2021

Amount in Taka
Notes

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment - Carrying Value
Investment in Shares
Current Assets
Inventories
Accounts & Other Receivables
Advances, Deposits & Prepayments
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Equity
Issued Share Capital
Revaluation Surplus on Property, Plant and Equipment
Fair Value Loss on Investment in Shares
Retained Earnings

30-June-2021

30-June-2020

4.00
5.00

5,289,144,884
5,044,919,096
244,225,788

5,180,083,863
5,145,934,995
34,148,868

6.00
7.00
8.00
9.00

1,267,871,977
876,561,784
186,484,430
178,374,814
26,450,949

1,236,014,149
902,826,025
178,701,696
146,682,551
7,803,877

6,557,016,861

6,416,098,012

4,502,260,698
1,469,660,550
2,966,690,015
79,255,174
(13,345,041)

4,275,198,297
1,469,660,550
2,966,690,015
(130,821,746)
(30,330,522)

10.00
11.00

Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Loans - Net-o˝ Current Maturity(Secured)
Gratuity Payable
Deferred Tax Liability

12.00
13.00
14.00

378,691,096
158,722,703
138,496,316
81,472,077

506,157,717
291,263,805
133,421,835
81,472,077

Current Liabilities
Short Term Loans from Banks & Other
Long Term Loans-Current Maturity (Secured)
Creditors, Accruals and Other Payables
Unclaimed dividend

15.00
16.00
17.00
29.00

1,676,065,067
830,406,737
276,288,843
560,414,081
8,955,405

1,634,741,998
766,336,816
155,094,538
710,002,552
3,308,092

6,557,016,861

6,416,098,012

Total Equity and Liabilities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements.
Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 21 October 2021 and signed for and on behalf of the board.

Iqbal Ahmed
Director

O K Chowdhury, FCA
Director

Mohammed Humayun Kabir FCA
Chief Executive

Nargis Sultana
Head of Finance & Accounts

As per our separate report of even date annexed.
Dated, Dhaka
21 October 2021

M. J. ABEDIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Reg No : N/A

Hasan Mahmood FCA,Partner
Enrollment No: 564
DVC:2110260564AS621128
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Amount in Taka
Notes

Revenue
Cost of Goods Sold

18.00
19.00

Gross Proﬁt
Other Income

01.07.202030.06.2021

1,393,558,406
(1,166,433,505)

1,205,076,326
(1,019,217,711)

227,124,901

185,858,615

7,771,305

5,817,591

(98,731,782)

(98,621,395)

20.00

Operating Expenses

01.07.201930.06.2020

Administrative Expenses
Selling & Distribution Expenses

21.00
22.00

(49,232,297)
(49,499,485)

(49,424,525)
(49,196,870)

Proﬁt from Operations
Finance Cost

23.00

136,164,424
(78,838,068)

93,054,811
(81,193,722)

57,326,356
(2,729,826)

11,861,089
(564,814)

54,596,530
(8,217,838)

11,296,275
20,296,375

46,378,692

31,592,650

0.32

0.21

Proﬁt before WPPF
Workers’ Proﬁt Participation Fund
Net Proﬁt Before Tax
Income Tax Income/(Expense)

24.00

Net Proﬁt After Tax for the year
Earning Per Share

25.00

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements.
Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 21 October 2021 and signed for and on behalf of the Board:

Iqbal Ahmed
Director

O K Chowdhury, FCA
Director

Mohammed Humayun Kabir FCA
Chief Executive

Nargis Sultana
Head of Finance & Accounts

As per our separate report of even date annexed.
Dated, Dhaka
21 October 2021

M. J. ABEDIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Reg No : N/A

Hasan Mahmood FCA,Partner
Enrollment No: 564
DVC:2110260564AS621128
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STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Amount in Taka
01.07.202030.06.2021

Notes

Particulars

Net Proﬁt /(Loss) After Tax for the year
Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Investment in Shares

5.00

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year

01.07.201930.06.2020

46,378,692
210,076,920

31,592,650
(24,321,327)

256,455,613

7,271,323

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Amount in Taka
Particulars

Share Capital

Revaluation
Surplus on PPE

1,469,660,550

2,966,690,015

Net Proﬁt after tax for the year ended 30 June 2020

-

Fair Value (Loss) on Investnment in Shares (Note - 5)

Balance as on 1 July 2019

Total Balance as on 30 June 2020

Fair Value Loss on
Investment in Shares

Retained
Earnings

Total Equity

(106,500,419)

(61,923,172)

4,267,926,974

-

-

31,592,650

31,592,650

-

-

(24,321,327)

-

(24,321,327)

1,469,660,550

2,966,690,015

(130,821,746)

(30,330,522)

4,275,198,297

Number of Shares

146,966,055

Net Assets Value (NAV) Per Share

29.09

Balance as on 1 July 2020

1,469,660,550

2,966,690,015

(130,821,746)

(30,330,522)

4,275,198,297

Net Proﬁt after tax for the year ended 30 June 2021

-

-

-

46,378,692

46,378,692

Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Investnment in Shares (Note-5)

-

-

210,076,920

-

210,076,920

Cash Dividend

-

-

-

(29,393,211)

(29,393,211)

1,469,660,550

2,966,690,015

79,255,174

(13,345,041)

4,502,260,698

Total Balance as on 30 June 2021
Number of Shares

146,966,055

Net Assets Value (NAV) Per Share (Note: 26)

30.63

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements.
Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 21 October 2021 and signed for and on behalf of the Board:

Iqbal Ahmed
Director

O K Chowdhury, FCA
Director

Mohammed Humayun Kabir FCA
Chief Executive

Nargis Sultana
Head of Finance & Accounts

As per our separate report of even date annexed.
Dated, Dhaka
21 October 2021

M. J. ABEDIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Reg No : N/A

Hasan Mahmood FCA,Partner
Enrollment No: 564
DVC:2110260564AS621128
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Amount in Taka
Notes

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Collections from turnover and other income
Payments for costs, expenses & others
Interest Paid
Income-Tax paid and /or deducted at sources

01.07.202030.06.2021

01.07.201930.06.2020

1,393,546,977
(1,279,046,116)
(75,729,985)
(23,536,016)

1,305,141,513
(1,059,678,735)
(79,555,507)
(30,008,199)

15,234,860

135,899,072

(19,917,701)

(1,823,637)

(19,917,701)

(1,823,637)

Increase/(Decrease) in Loan
Dividend Payment

52,723,124
(29,393,211)

(151,780,710)
-

Net cash generated from ﬁnancing activities

23,329,913

(151,780,710)

Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

18,647,072

(17,705,275)

7,803,877

25,509,152

Net cash generated from operating activities

27.00

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Property, Plant and Equipment acquired
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
E˜ ect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

27.00

-

-

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

9.00

26,450,949

7,803,877

Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share

28.00

0.10

0.92

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these ﬁnancial statements.
Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 21 October 2021 and signed for and on behalf of the board.

Iqbal Ahmed
Director

O K Chowdhury, FCA
Director

Mohammed Humayun Kabir FCA
Chief Executive

Nargis Sultana
Head of Finance & Accounts

As per our separate report of even date annexed.

Dated, Dhaka
21 October 2021

M. J. ABEDIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Reg No : N/A

Hasan Mahmood FCA,Partner
Enrollment No: 564
DVC:2110260564AS621128
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SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2021

1

The background and activities of the Company
1.1

Status of the Company
Shinepukur Ceramics Limited (SCL/the company) was incorporated in Bangladesh on 26 Januar y 1997 under the C ompanies Act, 1994 as a
Private Limited Company and launched its manufacturing operation in 1999. The Company was converted into a Public Limited Company
on 7 May 2008. The Shares of the Company have been listed in the Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) on 18
November 2008 under the DSE and CSE Direct Listing Regulations 2006.
The registered oÿ ce of the company is located at House No.17, Road No.2, Dhanmondi R/A, Dhaka. The industrial units are located at Sarabo of Gazipur.

1.2

Principal Activities
The company operates in a single industry segment. It is engaged in manufacturing and marketing of high quality Porcelain and high value
added Bone China Tableware, which it sells in the local as well as international markets.

2

Bases of Financial Statements – Preparation and Presentation
2.1

Measurement Bases
The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared on the Historical Cost basis, except lands, buildings and plant & machinery re-stated at current
cost and investment in shares of listed companies are carried at fair value based on the per iod end quoted price of Dhaka Stock Exchange
Limited

2.2

Reporting Framework and Compliance thereof
The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange
Rules 2020, the Listing Regulations of Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges and other relevant local laws and regulations as applicable and
in accordance with the applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) including International Accounting Standards (IASs) .

2.3

Presentation of Financial Statements
The presentation of these ﬁnancial statements is in accordance with the guidelines provided by IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements.
The Financial Statements Comprises:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

2.4

a statement of ﬁnancial position as at 30 June 2021;
a statement of proﬁt or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended from 01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021;
a statement of changes in equity for the year ended from 01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021;
a statement of cash ﬂows for the year ended from 01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021; and
notes, comprising a summary of signiﬁcant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Authorization for Issue
The ﬁnancial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 October 2021.

2.5

Functional and Presentation Currency
The ﬁnancial statements are prepared and presented in Bangladesh Currency (Taka), which is the company’s functional currency. All ﬁnancial
information presented has been rounded o˝ to the nearest Taka except where indicated otherwise.

2.6

Reporting Period and Comparative Information
The ﬁnancial Statements have been prepared for 12(Twelve) months (from 1st July 2020 to 30th June 2021).
Figures for the year ended 30 June 2020 ha ve been re-arranged wherever considered necessary to ensure better comparability with the
current period without causing any impact on value of assets and liabilities as reported in the ﬁnancial statements.

2.7

Use of Estimates and Judgments
The preparation of ﬁnancial statements in conformity with IFRSs / IASs requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that a˝ ect the applica tion of ac counting policies and the r eported amounts of assets , liabilities, income and expenses , and disclosur e
requirements for contingent assets and liabilities during the year and at the date of the ﬁnancial statements.
Actual results may di˝ er from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis . IAS 8: Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors prescribes that the e˝ ects of the revision of accounting estimates has to be recognized
in the period in which the estimates are revised.
In particular, signiﬁcant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most signiﬁcant
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e˝ ect on the amounts recognized in the ﬁnancial statements include depreciation, inventory valuation, accrued expenses and other payables.
2.8

IT system and control
The company maintains its General Ledger in Application system (AS) 400 Server through software MAPICS (Manufacturing Accounting and
production Information Control System). Records relating to Human Resource (HR) including Emplo yee’s Attendance and Leave Registers
and Payroll Accounting etc. and records relating to Operational activities including Production, Inventory, Sales, Receivable, VAT accounting,
etc. are maintains in desktop computers through database software (s). Control on input and output end of the data on both (AS) 400 Server
and desktop computers are secured. The communication system(s) linked to intranet and internet are also secured from external risk(s) and
threat(s) through use of necessary ﬁrewall(s).

3.

Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies
3.1

Revenue Recognition
In compliance with the requirements of IFRS 15: Revenue, revenue from receipts from customers against sales is recognized when all
performance obligation have been satisﬁed. Receipts from customers comprise sales price against export sales and domestic sales.
Export sales are considered as revenue at FOB value. Usually export sales are transacted in FOB basis . Where export sales are carried out
other than at FOB price, additional costs are added to FOB price, accordingly those added costs (Ocean Freight, Commission Payable, Cost of
Insurance etc.) if any, are net o˝ to arrive at FOB value of the said export sales in order to be uniformed in revenue recognition.

3.2

Property, Plant and Equipment

3.2.1

Recognition and Measurement
Property, plant and equipment (including assets acquired under ﬁnance lease) are capitalized at cost of acquisition and subsequently
stated at cost revalued amount less accumulated depreciation in compliance with the requirements of IAS 16: P roperty, Plant and
Equipment. The Cost of acquisition of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets
to its working condition for its intended use inclusive of inward freight, duties and non-refundable taxes.

3.2.2

3.2.3

Pre-Operating Expenses and Borrowing Costs
In respect of major projects involving construction, related pre-operational expenses form part of the value of assets capitalized.
Expenses capitalized also include applicable borrowing cost considering the requirement of IAS 23: Borrowing Costs.
Subsequent Expenditure
The company recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing part of such an
item when that cost is incurred, it is probable that the future economic beneﬁts embodied with the item will ﬂow to the company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenances is normally charged o˝ as revenue expenditure in the period in which it is incurred. In situation where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic beneﬁt expected to be obtained from the use
of the ﬁxed assets, the expenditure is capitalized as an additional cost of the assets. All other costs are recognized to the statement
of proﬁt or loss and other comprehensive income as expenses if incurred. All up-gradation/enhancement are generally charged o˝
as revenue expenditure unless they bring similar signiﬁcant additional beneﬁts.

3.2.4

3.2.5

Software
Software is generally charged o˝ as revenue expenditure. Purchase of software that is integral to the functionality of the r elated
equipment is capitalized as part of that equipment.
Disposal of PPE
On disposal of ﬁxed assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated and gain or loss on such disposal is reﬂected in the
statement of proﬁt or loss and other comprehensive income, which is determined with reference to the net book value of the assets
and net sales proceeds.

3.2.6

Depreciation on PPE
Depreciation is provided on all ﬁ xed assets except Land & Land Development at the following rates on reducing balance basis over
the periods appropriate to the estimated useful lives of the di˝ erent types of assets:
Building and Other Construction
Plant and Machinery
Furniture & Fixture
Transport & Vehicle
Oÿ ce Equipment

2.5%
4.5%
20%
20%
20%
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3.3

Financial Instruments
Non-derivative ﬁnancial instruments comprise investment in shares, accounts and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, borrowings
and other payables.
3.3.1 Financial Assets
(a) Investment in Shares
Investment in Shares of listed companies are carried in the statement of ﬁ nancial position at fair value based on DSE quot ed price
at the period end and the gain / loss thereon were accounted for through other comprehensive income considering it as “Available
– for - Sale” ﬁnancial assets.
(b) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are created at original invoice amount less any provisions for doubtful debts. Provisions are made where there
is evidence of a risk of non-payment, taking into account ageing, provision experience and general economic conditions. When an
accounts receivable is determined to be uncollectible it is written o˝ , ﬁrstly against any provision available and then to the statement
of proﬁt or loss and other c omprehensive income. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously provided for are credited to the
statement of proﬁt or loss and other comprehensive income.
(c) Advances and Deposits
Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost less deductions, adjustments or charges
to other account heads.
Deposits are measured at payment value.
(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents are carried in the sta tement of ﬁ nancial position at cost and include cash in hand and with banks on
current and deposit accounts, which are held and available for use by the company without any restriction. There is insigniﬁcant risk
of change in value of the same.

3.3.2

Financial Liability
Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the tr ansaction date at which the c ompany becomes a party to the c ontractual
provisions of the liability. The company derecognizes a ﬁnancial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expired.
Financial liabilities include payable for expenses, liability for capital expenditure and other current liabilities.

3.4

Impairment

(a)

(b)

Financial Assets
Accounts receivable and other receivables are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment. Financial assets are impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset, and the loss event had a negative e˝ ect on the estimated future cash ﬂows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.
Objective evidence that ﬁnancial assets are impaired can include default or delinquenc y by a debtor, indications that a debtor or
issuer will enter bankruptcy, etc.
Non-Financial Assets
An asset is impair ed when its car rying amount exceeds its r ecoverable amount. The company assesses a t each r eporting date
whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair v alue less costs to sell and its value in use. Carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount by recognizing an impairment loss if, and only if, the recoverable amount
of the asset is less than its carrying amount. Impairment loss is recognized immediately in proﬁt or loss, unless the asset is carried at
revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation decrease.

3.5

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value as prescribed by IAS 2: Inventories. Cost is determined on weighted average
cost basis. The cost of inventories comprises of expenditure incurred in the nor mal course of business in br inging the inventories to their
present location and condition. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred to make
the sale.

3.6

Provisions
A provision is recognized in the statement of ﬁ nancial position when the c ompany has legal or c onstructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outﬂow of economic beneﬁts will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provision is ordinarily measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
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at the date of statement of ﬁnancial position. Where the e˝ ect of time value of money is material, the amount of provision is measured at the
present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.
3.7

Income Tax Expenses
Current Tax
Applicable Income Tax Rate is 22.50% on taxable income. However, there are provisions for minimum tax u/s 82(C). Provision for current tax
has been made considering the minimum tax payable which is higher than tax would be payable under regular assessment.
Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognised in compliance with IAS 12: I ncome Taxes, providing for temporary di˝ erences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for ﬁnancial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that
are expected to be applied to the temporary di˝ erences based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the date of
statement of ﬁnancial position. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are o˝ set if there is a legally enforceable right to o˝ set current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity.

3.8

Interest Income
Interest Income is recognized on accrual basis.

3.9

Employee Beneﬁts
The company maintains both contribution plan and deﬁned beneﬁt plan for its eligible permanent employees.
The company’s employee beneﬁts include the following:

(a)

Deﬁned Contribution Plan (Provident Fund)
The company contributes to a registered provident fund scheme (deﬁned contribution plan) for employees of the company eligible
to be members of the fund in accordance with the rules of the provident fund constituted under an irrecoverable trust. All permanent
employees contribute 10% of their basic salary to the provident fund and the company also makes equal contribution.
The company recognizes contribution to deﬁned contribution plan as an expense when an emplo yee has r endered services in
exchange for such contribution. The legal and constructive obligation is limited to the amount it agrees to contribute to the fund.

(b)

(c)

Deﬁned Beneﬁts Plan (Gratuity)
Employees are entitled to gratuity beneﬁt after completion of minimum ﬁ ve years of ser vices in the c ompany. The gratuity is
calculated on the latest applicable basic pay and is payable at the rate of one month basic pay for every completed year of service.
Short-term Employee Beneﬁts
Short-term employee beneﬁts include salar y, bonuses, leave encashment etc. Obligations for such beneﬁ ts are measured on an
undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

(d)

(e)

Contribution to Workers’ Participation/Welfare Funds
This represents 5% of net proﬁt before tax contributed by the Company as per provisions of Bangladesh Labor Act 2013 (amendment)
and is payable to workers as deﬁned in the said law.
Group Insurance Scheme
Employees of the company are covered under group life insurance scheme.

3.10

Proposed Dividend
The amount of proposed dividend is not ac counted for but disclosed in the not es to the accounts in accordance with the r equirements of
the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1: Presentation of Financial Statements. Also, the proposed dividend is not considered as liability
in accordance with the requirement of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 10: Events after the Reporting Period, because no obligation
exists at the time of approval of accounts and recommendation of dividend by the board of Directors.

3.11

Earnings per Share
This has been calculated in compliance with the requirements of IAS 33: Earnings Per Share by dividing the basic earnings by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
Basic Earnings (Numerator)
This represents earnings for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders. As there was no preference dividend, minority interest or extra
ordinary items, the net proﬁt after tax for the year has been considered as fully attributable to the ordinary shareholders.
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares Outstanding during the year (Denominator)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021

91

SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2021

Current Year
The total number of shares has been considered as the Weighted Average number of Shares outstanding during the year.
Earlier Periods
The total number of shares has been considered as the Weighted Average Number of Shares outstanding during the year earlier periods.
The basis of computation of number of shares as stated above is in line with the provisions of IAS 33: “Earnings Per Share”.
Diluted Earnings per Share
No diluted EPS is required to be calculated for the year, as there was no scope for dilution during the year under review.
3.12

Foreign Currency Transactions
The Financial records of the company are maintained and the ﬁnancial statements are stated in Bangladesh Taka. Foreign currency transactions
are recorded at the applicable rates of exchange ruling at the transaction date.
The monetary assets and liabilities, if any, denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the applicable rates
of exchanges ruling at that date. Exchange di˝ erences are charged o˝ as revenue expenditure in compliance with the provisions of IAS 21:
The E˝ ects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. However, as a requirement of the companies Act 1994, exchange loss relating to foreign
currency loan has been capitalized to relevant ﬁxed assets being procured under the said obligation.

3.13

Statement of Cash Flows
The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows. The cash generated
from operating activities has been reported using the Direct Method as encouraged by IAS 7 whereby major classes of gross cash receipts and
gross cash payments from operating activities are disclosed. However, Cash generated from operating activities using indirect method has
also been calculated and disclosed in notes to the accounts (Note: 27)

3.14

Events after the Reporting Period
In compliance with the requirements of IAS 10: Events after the Reporting Period, post balance sheets events that provide additional
information about the c ompany’s position at the balance sheet date are reﬂected in the ﬁ nancial statements and events after the balance
sheet date that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.
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4.00

Property, Plant and Equipment-Carrying Value : Tk. 5,044,919,096

As at 30 June 2021
Amount in Taka
Particulars

Land & Land
Development

Building & Other
Construction

Plant & Machinery

Oÿ ce
Equipment

Furniture &
Fixture

Transport &
Vehicle

Total

Cost or Valuation:
At 30 June 2020
Addition during the year

1,882,071,406 1,861,441,793
3,076,090

3,655,471,460 59,159,466
16,613,611
228,000

31,155,868
-

21,709,479 7,511,009,472
19,917,701

At 30 June 2021

1,882,071,406 1,864,517,883

3,672,085,071 59,387,466

31,155,868

21,709,479 7,530,927,173

1,796,365,333 55,670,585
84,407,388
743,376
1,880,772,721 56,413,961

28,642,652
502,643
29,145,295

20,370,017 2,365,074,477
267,892
120,933,600
20,637,909 2,486,008,077

2,010,573

1,071,570 5,044,919,096

Depreciation:
At 30 June 2020
Depreciation for the year
At 30 June 2021
Carrying Amount:
As at 30 June 2021

-

464,025,890
35,012,300
499,038,190

1,882,071,406 1,365,479,693

1,791,312,350

2,973,505

As at 30 June 2020
Amount in Taka
Particulars

Land & Land
Development

Building & Other
Construction

Plant & Machinery

Oÿ ce
Equipment

Furniture &
Fixture

Transport &
Vehicle

Total

Cost or Valuation:
At 30 June 2019
Addition during the year

1,882,071,406 1,861,441,793
-

3,654,571,460 58,745,829
900,000
413,637

30,645,868
510,000

21,709,479 7,509,185,835
1,823,637

At 30 June 2020

1,882,071,406 1,861,441,793

3,655,471,460 59,159,466

31,155,868

21,709,479 7,511,009,472

1,708,805,882 54,798,365
87,559,451
872,220
1,796,365,333 55,670,585

28,014,348
628,304
28,642,652

20,035,151 2,239,848,459
334,866
125,226,018
20,370,017 2,365,074,477

2,513,216

1,339,462 5,145,934,995

Depreciation:
At 30 June 2019
Depreciation for the year
At 30 June 2020
Carrying Amount:
As at 30 June 2020

-

428,194,713
35,831,177
464,025,890

1,882,071,406 1,397,415,903

1,859,106,127

3,488,881

Disclosure on Revaluation:
(a) The break-up of total revaluation surplus as included in the carrying amount is stated below:
Particulars

Land & land Development

Amount in Taka
Building & other Construction
Plant & Machinery

Total

Surplus on Revaluation in 2004
Surplus on Revaluation in 2008
Surplus on Revaluation in 2011

192,466,272
376,892,108
953,362,500

351,072,849
547,975,861

433,853,724
111,066,701

192,466,272
1,161,818,681
1,612,405,062

Total Surplus on Revaluation

1,522,720,880

899,048,710

544,920,425

2,966,690,015

(b)
(c)
(d)

M/S G.K.Adjusters Ltd.(Insurance Surveyors, Loss Adjusters, Controllers, Consultants and Valuers) of Chand Mansion (5th ﬂoor) , 66, Dilkusha Commercial
Area, was involved to carry out the revaluation of 2004.
SF Ahmed & Co, Chartered Accountants, House 25, Road 13A, Block - D, Banani, Dhaka - 1213 and valuers have revalued the lands, buildings and plant &
machinery of the Company as of 31 December 2008, following “current cost method”. Such revaluation resulted in a revaluation surplus aggregating Tk.
1,161,818,681.
Ata Khan & Co, Chartered Accountants, 67 Motijheel Commercial Area, Dhaka - 1000 and valuers have revalued the lands, buildings and plant & machinery
of the Company as of 31 December 2011, following “current cost method”. Such revaluation resulted in a revaluation surplus aggregating Tk. 1,612,405,062.
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Amount in Taka
As at
30 June 2021
30 June 2020

5.00 Investment in Shares : Tk. 244,225,788
The basis of valuation is stated in Note 3.3.1 (a).
This consists of Investment in Shares of listed Companies as follows :
(a) In 65,716 (30.06.2020: 65,716) Shares of Beximco Synthetics Ltd.(Face value Tk. 10.00),
(Listed company, Market value Tk. 8.40 per share on 30 June 2021)
(b)

In 2,722,612 (30.06.2020: 2,722,612) Shares of Bangladesh Export Import Co. Ltd.
(Face value Tk. 10.00 ),(Listed company, Market value Tk. 89.50 per share on 30 June 2021)

This is arrived at as follows:

552,014

440,297

243,673,774

33,708,571

244,225,788

34,148,868

30.06.2021
Beximco
Synthetics Ltd.
Opening Balance

Beximco
Ltd.

440,297

Adjustment for Sales during the year

30.06.2020
Beximco
Synthetics Ltd.

Total

33,708,571

34,148,868

Beximco
Ltd.

387,724

Total

58,082,461

58,470,185

-

-

-

-

-

-

440,297

33,708,571

34,148,868

387,724

58,082,461

58,470,185

Less: Quoted Price on year end

552,014

243,673,774

244,225,788

440,297

33,708,571

34,148,868

Fair Value Gain/(Loss) on Investment in Shares

111,717

209,965,203

210,076,920

52,573

(24,373,890)

(24,321,327)

6.00

Inventories : Tk. 876,561,784
This represents as follows:
Raw Material & Chemical
Packing Material
Stores & Spares
Work-in-process
Finished Goods

7.00

141,900,236
4,639,404
91,142,767
275,774,295
363,105,082

163,164,404
6,667,607
94,441,367
285,884,449
352,668,197

876,561,784

902,826,025

Accounts & Other Receivables : Tk. 186,484,430
This is considered good and is falling due within the year.
No amount was due by the directors ( including Managing Director ), managing agent, managers and other oÿ cers of the company and any of them
severally or jointly with any other person.
No amount was due by any associated undertaking.

8.00

Advances, Deposits & Prepayments : Tk. 178,374,814
This is considered good and consists of as follows:
Advances ( Note - 8.01)
Deposits (Note - 8.02)

8.01

Advances : Tk. 161,284,605
This represents as follows:
L/C-Margin & Others
Advance Income Tax (Note - 8.01.01)
Employees (other than oÿ cers)
Advance against Expenses
Trade Fair
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161,284,605
17,090,209

121,258,611
25,423,941

178,374,814

146,682,551

52,107,189
108,340,483
425,245
411,688
-

5,179,659
115,170,554
486,793
421,605
-

161,284,605

121,258,611
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No amount was due by the Directors (including Managing Director), Managing Agent, Managers and other Oÿ cers of the Company and any of them
severally or jointly with any other person.
No amount was due by any associated undertaking.
Advances to employees (other than oÿ cers) are realisable from monthly salary in installments.
Amount in Taka
As at
30 June 2021
30 June 2020

8.01.01 Advance Income Tax : Tk. 108,340,483
This has been arrived at :
Opening Balance
Add : Paid/Deducted during the year under review
Less Adjustment during the year( Note 17.01)

115,170,554
23,536,016
(30,366,087)

85,162,355
30,008,199
-

108,340,483

115,170,554

2,926,230
11,408,261
2,755,718

11,259,962
11,408,261
2,755,718

17,090,209

25,423,941

178,440
26,272,509

27,872
7,776,004

11,282,243
12,936,987
2,053,279

4,620,284
1,500,847
1,654,874

26,450,949

7,803,877

5,000,000,000

5,000,000,000

660,600,000
617,365,700
191,694,850
1,469,660,550

660,600,000
617,365,700
191,694,850
1,469,660,550

Closing Balance
8.02

9.00

Deposits : Tk. 17,090,209
This represents as follows:
VAT Deposit
Security Deposit
Bank Guarantee Margin

Cash and Cash Equivalents : Tk. 26,450,949
This consists of :
( a ) In Hand:
( b ) At Banks in :
( i) Current Account
( ii ) STD Account
( iii ) FDR Account

10.00 Issued Share Capital : Tk. 1,469,660,550
This represents :
(a)

Authorised :
500,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10/-each

(b) Issued, subscribed and paid -up:
66,060,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10/-each fully paid-up in cash
61,736,571 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10/-each fully paid-up bonus shares
19,169,485 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10/-each fully paid-up bonus shares
Total 146,966,055 shares of Tk. 10/- each fully paid-up
(c)

Statement of Share Position:
Name of the Shareholders

Bangladesh Export Import Co.Ltd.
Sponsors & Directors
Institutions
General Public

30-June-21
No. Of Shares
73,483,009
4
12,250,355
61,232,687
146,966,055

30-June-20
Holding %
50.00%
0.00%
8.34%
41.66%
100%

No. Of Shares
73,483,009
4
25,097,978
48,385,064
146,966,055

Holding %
50.00%
0.00%
17.08%
32.92%
100%
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(d)

Distribution Schedule:
Share holdings

30-June-2021
No. of Shareholders

Less than 500 shares
500 to 5,000 shares
5001 to 10,000 shares
10,001 to 20,000 shares
20,001 to 30,000 shares
30,001 to 40,000 shares
40,001 to 50,000 shares
50,001 to 100,000 shares
100,001 to 1,000,000 shares
Over 1,000,000 shares
Total

No.of Shares

7,339
7,097
1,114
646
201
103
74
110
66
4
16,754

1,049,806
12,849,236
8,531,840
9,502,690
5,040,032
3,583,728
3,428,748
8,155,712
11,856,036
82,968,227
146,966,055

Holding %
0.71
8.74
5.81
6.47
3.43
2.44
2.33
5.55
8.07
56.45
100

(e)

Market Price:
The shares of the Company are listed with in the Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges, and quoted at Tk. 25.50 (in 30 June 2020: Tk. 8.20) per share
in the Dhaka Stock Exchange And Tk. 25.50 per share in the Chittagong Stock Exchange (in 30 June 2020: Tk. 8.20)

(f)

Option on unissued shares :
There is no option r egarding authorized capital not y et issued but can be used t o increase the issued, subscribed and paid up capital thr ough the
issuance of new shares.

(g)

Voting Rights :
The rights and privileges of the shares are stated in the Bye-laws (Articles of Association) of the Company.

11.00 Revaluation Surplus on Property, Plant and Equipment : Tk. 2,966,690,015
This is as per last year accounts. Details are stated in Note - 4.
Amount in Taka
As at
30 June 2021
30 June 2020

12.00 Long Term Loans- Net-O° Current Maturity (Secured) : Tk. 158,722,703
This represents loans from :
Bank Asia Ltd. - Term Loan
Phoenix Finance & Investment Ltd.- Term Loan
Nature of Security :
(i) Equitable mortgage over the immovable property.
(ii) Hypothecation by way of a ﬂoating charge on all other movable assets both present and future.
(iii) First Charge over all the ﬁnished stock, Work-In-Process and current assets excluding book debts.
Terms of Repayment :
Bank Asia Ltd. - Term Loan :
In 20 (Twenty) equal Quarterly installments commencing from 30 March 2017 as per revised sanction.
Phonix Finance & Investment:
In 96 (Ninety six) equal monthly installments commencing from 25 July 2015 as per revised sanction.
Rate of interest :
Bank Asia Ltd. - Term Loan :
8% p.a. or the lending rate applicable from time to time based on Bank rate / policy.
Phonix Finance & Investment:
17 % p.a. or the lending rate applicable from time to time based on Bank rate / policy.
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39,458,469
119,264,234

81,941,664
209,322,141

158,722,703

291,263,805
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Amount in Taka
As at
30 June 2021
30 June 2020

13.00 Gratuity Payable : Tk. 138,496,316
This is arrived at as follows:
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the year

133,421,835
8,065,824

131,536,452
2,985,718

Less: Payment during the year

141,487,659
(2,991,343)

134,522,170
(1,100,335)

138,496,316

133,421,835

81,472,077
-

81,472,077
-

81,472,077

81,472,077

Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) is arrived at as follows
Year end WDV of PPE including revalued amount
Less: Revalued amount of Building, Plant & Machinery
Less: Land and Land Development at Revalued amount

5,044,919,096
(1,443,969,135)
(1,882,071,406)

5,145,934,995
(1,443,969,135)
(1,882,071,406)

Year end WDV of PPE excluding revalued amount

1,718,878,556

1,819,894,454

Year end tax base WDV of PPE
Taxable Temporary Di˝ erence
Applicable Tax Rate

930,098,429
788,780,127
18%

914,141,468
905,752,986
18%

Deferred Tax Liability before unabsorbed tax depreciation beneﬁt
Less: Unabsorbed tax depreciation beneﬁt

138,825,302
(57,353,225)

163,035,538
(81,563,461)

Closing deferred Tax Liability

81,472,077

81,472,077

Deferred Tax Expense is arrived at as follows
Closing Balance of Deferred Tax Liability
Opening Balance of Deferred Tax Liability

81,472,077
(81,472,077)

81,472,077
81,472,077

-

-

Closing Balance

14.00 Deferred Tax Liability : Tk. 81,472,077
Deferred Tax Liability is arrived at as follows:
Opening Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred Tax Expense /(Income): 14.02
Closing Deferred Tax Liabilities
14.01

14.02

Deferred Tax Expense for the year

SCL is a listed company and as per ITO 1984, tax rate for the year is 22.5%. However, it enjoyes tax rebate @ 50% on the taxable income derived from
export sales. During the year export sales to total sales comes to 44%. As such, if ther e were no minimun tax pa yable, applicable tax r ate for the
company comes to around 18%. Accordingly for deferred tax calculation applicable tax rate @ 18% has been considered. However, because of charging
‘Minimum Tax’, the temporary di˝ erence arisen between accounting and tax depreciation remain ‘unabsorbed’ and therefore no provision for deferred
tax expense/(income) is applicable for the year 2020-2021.

15.00 Short Term Loans From Banks & Other : Tk. 830,406,737
This is secured and consists of as follows:
Sonali Bank Ltd. - CC (H) (Secured)
Sonali Bank Ltd. - LTR (Secured)
Covid 19 Loan
New Dacca Industries Ltd. (Unsecured interest Free)

553,446,024
71,795,954
168,664,759
36,500,000

554,797,314
162,539,502
49,000,000

830,406,737

766,336,816
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Amount in Taka
As at
30 June 2021
30 June 2020

16.00 Long Term Loans - Current Maturity (Secured) : Tk. 276,288,843
This consists of as follows:
Bank Asia Ltd. -Term Loan
Phoenix Finance & Investment Ltd.- Term Loan

73,973,580
202,315,263

82,485,694
72,608,844

276,288,843

155,094,538

7,378,520
408,806,652
65,705,968
48,181,876
12,628,381
1,981,950
6,190,000
4,819,841
2,975,496
940,393
805,000

30,484,283
496,571,943
87,854,217
46,667,661
15,302,328
9,124,909
4,990,000
12,373,553
3,753,778
2,074,880
805,000

560,414,081

710,002,552

This is arrived at as follows :
Opening Balance
Add: Tax provision for the year
Short/(Excess) Provision for previous years
Less: Adjustment againest AIT (Note 8.01.01)

87,854,217
11,548,723
(3,330,885)
(30,366,087)

108,150,592
7,335,995
(27,632,370)
-

Closing Balance

65,705,968

87,854,217

17.00 Creditors, Accruals and Other Payables : Tk. 560,414,081
This consists of as follows:
Gas & Electricity
Creditors for Goods
Income Tax Payable (Note-17.01)
Salary & Wages
Provident Fund Employee
Interest due
Security Deposit
WPPF Payable
Tax Payable Party
Group Insurance Payable
Audit Fees Payable
17.01

Income Tax Payable : Tk. 65,705,968

Amount in Taka
01.07.202030.06.2021

01.07.201930.06.2020

18.00 Revenue : Tk. 1,393,558,406
This is made up as follows :
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629,111,337

671,512,069

589,428,637
39,682,700

578,313,206
93,198,863

A.

Export Sales
Export Sales ( Cash Subsidy )

B.

Local Sales

764,447,069

533,564,257

Distributors
Institutional
Show Room
Factory Sales

500,076,609
201,217,378
5,670,991
57,482,091

364,517,754
119,731,458
9,031,082
40,283,963

1,393,558,406

1,205,076,326

SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2021

Amount in Taka
01.07.202030.06.2021

01.07.201930.06.2020

19.00 Cost of Goods Sold : Tk. 1,166,433,505
This is arrived at as follows:

19.01

19.02

Raw Material Issued ( Note- 19.01 )
Opening WIP
Material available for consumption
Closing WIP

447,816,841
285,884,449
733,701,290
(275,774,295)

381,712,852
301,795,744
683,508,596
(285,884,449)

Consumption
Manufacturing overhead ( Note- 19.03 )

457,926,995
718,943,395

397,624,147
701,319,411

Cost of production
Opening Finished Goods

1,176,870,389
352,668,197

1,098,943,558
272,942,350

Cost of Goods Available for Sale
Closing Finished Goods

1,529,538,587
(363,105,082)

1,371,885,908
(352,668,197)

Cost of Goods Sold

1,166,433,505

1,019,217,711

This is arrived at as follows:
Opening Stock of Raw Material
Purchased of Raw Material

163,164,404
426,552,673

129,642,713
415,234,543

Closing Stock of Raw Material

589,717,077
(141,900,236)

544,877,256
(163,164,404)

Raw Material Issued

447,816,841

381,712,852

Quantity in KG

Quantity in KG

Opening Stock of Raw Materials in Quantity
Add: Purchase fo Raw Materials in Quantity
Availabe for Use
Less: Raw Material Issued in Quantity

1,722,536
8,073,776
9,796,312
8,420,941

1,188,083
7,396,633
8,584,716
6,862,180

Closing Raw Materials in Quantity

1,375,371

1,722,536

Raw Material Issued : Tk. 447,816,841

Quantity Information

The company manufactures tableware of di˝ erent shapes, designs and sizes (more than three thousand) using both solid and liquid inputs , and
therefore quantiﬁcation of the WIP and the ﬁnished goods in weight with accuracy is very diÿ cult. Similarly, packing’s materials are used in small/large
boxes of (printed or unprinted) cartoon paper in di˝ erent sizes/pieces ,quantiﬁcation in weight of which are not practicable.
19.03

Manufacturing Overhead : Tk. 718,943,395
This consists of as follows :
Wages,etc
Depreciation
Packing Materials
Power & Fuel
Consumable Stores & Spares
Transport Expenses
Oÿ ce Expenses
Insurance Expense
Communication Expenses
Handling & Carrying Expenses

341,845,721
119,419,688
80,525,146
100,919,162
52,142,631
11,983,392
6,601,327
3,164,633
670,645
1,671,050

303,237,224
123,390,628
84,475,683
105,684,282
45,469,084
26,542,189
7,467,052
2,988,819
876,251
1,188,199

718,943,395

701,319,411

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021

99

SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2021

Amount in Taka
01.07.202030.06.2021

01.07.201930.06.2020

20.00 Other Income: Tk. 7,771,305
This consists of as follows :
Dividend Income
Sale of Scrap
Misc. Income

1,361,306
5,754,136
655,863

1,329,342
4,349,068
139,181

7,771,305

5,817,591

34,048,415
1,513,912
6,739,474
2,875,343
228,550
304,930
536,119
481,239
1,013,876
185,363
805,000
500,076

30,779,731
1,835,390
9,317,692
2,754,379
985,850
314,060
759,125
424,491
854,659
460,274
805,000
7,180
126,695

49,232,297

49,424,525

2,402,685
28,517,561
3,949,191
1,901,418
3,813,329
451,456
1,719,069
218,155
47,799
48,302
362,355
6,068,165

5,319,402
27,945,916
3,451,333
2,084,895
3,689,265
846,242
4,787,740
286,045
171,393
92,641
499,821
22,177

49,499,485

49,196,870

75,729,985
3,108,083

79,555,507
1,638,214

78,838,068

81,193,722

21.00 Administrative Expenses : Tk. 49,232,297
This consists of as follows :
Salaries & Allowances
Depreciation
Oÿ ce Expenses
Transport Expenses
Legal, Professional & Others Fees
AGM Expenses
Communication Expenses
Occupancy Expenses
Conveyance Expenses
Utilities Expenses
Audit Fee (Including VAT @15%)
General Expenses
Handling & Carrying Expenses

22.00 Selling & Distribution Expenses : Tk. 49,499,485
This consists of as follows :
Promotional Expenses
Salaries & Allowances
Occupancy Expenses
Transport Expenses
Oÿ ce Expenses
Communication Expenses
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses
Show Room Expenses
Utilities Expenses
Handling & Carrying Expenses
Legal & Prof.Expenses
Product Research & Sample

23.00 Finance Cost : Tk. 78,838,068
This consists of as follows :
Interest on Loan from Banks & Others
Bank Commission & Charges
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Amount in Taka
01.07.202030.06.2021

01.07.201930.06.2020

24.00 Income Tax Expenses/(Income): Tk. 8,217,838
This represents:
(a)
Current Tax:
Tax for the year under review
Short/ (Excess) Provision for previous years

11,548,723
(3,330,885)

7,335,995
(27,632,370)

Current Tax
(b)
Deferred Tax (Income) / Expenses Note- 14.02
Total (a+b)

8,217,838
8,217,838

(20,296,375)
(20,296,375)

a)

b)

There are laws for minimun tax payable. Hence , provision for income tax expense of the company for the year has been determined based on
the minimum tax payable by the company. Minimun tax payable by the company is higher of the following:
i) Turnover tax @ 0.60% on local sale and other Income , @ 0.50% on export sale and @10% on export subsidy income u/s 82C or
ii) Tax payable under regular assessment
Since minimum tax payable U/S 82C of ITO 1984 is higher than the tax pa yable under regular assessment, there is no room for adjustment of
the ‘Temporary Di˝ erences’ arisen out of di˝ erence between accounting and tax depreciation during the year. In other words, the amount of
temporary di˝ erences remain ‘unabsorbed’ and therefore no provision for de˝ ered tax expense/(Income) is applicable for the year 2020-2021

25.00 Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS)
(a)

Earning Attributable to the Ordinary Shareholders
(Net Proﬁt/(Loss) After Tax)

(b)

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares
outstanding during the year (Note 3.11)

(c)

EPS (a/b)

46,378,692

31,592,650

146,966,055

146,966,055

0.32

0.21

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is made in accordance with IAS 33 (Earning Per Share), dividing the Proﬁt / (Loss) for the year by
weighted average number of the shares outstanding during the year.
No diluted EPS is required to be calculated for the year, as there was no scope for dilution during the year under review.

26.00 Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
Total Assets
Less: Total Liabilities

6,557,016,861
(2,054,756,163)

6,416,098,012
(2,140,899,715)

Net Assets

4,502,260,698

4,275,198,297

146,966,055

146,966,055

30.63

29.09

Net proﬁt after tax
46,378,692
Adjustments for noncash items, non-operating items and for the net changes in operating accruals
Depreciation
120,933,600
(Increases)/Decreases in Inventories
26,264,241
(Increases)/Decreases in Accounts & Other Receivables
(7,782,734)
(Increases)/Decreases in Advances
(40,025,995)
(Increases)/Decreases in Deposits
8,333,732
Increases/(Decreases) in Creditors for goods and Other Payables
(109,913,539)
Increases/(Decreases) Accruals
(39,674,932)
Increases/(Decreases) Gratuity Payable
5,074,481
Increases/(Decreases)Unclaimed dividend
5,647,313

31,592,650
125,226,018
(36,478,413)
94,247,596
(8,026,725)
(8,307,174)
(61,609,831)
(2,630,422)
1,885,383
-

15,234,860

135,899,072

Number of Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each at Financial Position date.
Net Asset Value (NAV) per share

27.00 Reconciliation of Net proﬁt with cash ﬂows from operating activities.:
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At the year end, there was no unrealized exchange gain or loss and as such no adjustment was required while calculating of NOCF.
Amount in Taka
01.07.202030.06.2021

01.07.201930.06.2020

28.00 Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (NOCFPS)
Net cash ﬂows from operating activities
Number of Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each at Financial Position date
Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (NOCFPS)

15,234,860
146,966,055
0.10

135,899,072
146,966,055
0.92

5,647,313
3,308,092

3,308,092

8,955,405

3,308,092

29.00 Unclaimed dividend
(a)

(i)
(ii)

The dividend payable/unclaimed dividend as on June 30 2021 consists of:
i) Fy 2019-2020
ii) FY2007-2008

The Cash Dividend @2% declared for the year 2019-2020 were approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on December
19, 2020.
Unclaimed dividend of Taka 3,308,091.97 of FY 2007-2008 has been paid on 29-09-2021 as per directive of BSEC dated 06 July 2021

(b) The unclaimed dividend which w as included in Cr editors and O ther Payables in the pr ior period has been r eclassiﬁed in this ﬁ nancial
statement.

30.00 Payments / Perquisites to Directors and Oÿ cers
(a)

Directors
During the year no amount of money was expended by the company for compensating any member of the board for special services rendered.
During the year no board meeting attendance fee was paid to the directors of the company except the Independent Director of Tk. 100,000.

(b) During the year 2020-2021 an amount of Taka 7,000,000 paid as CEO’s remuneraion (FY 2019-20 was Tk. 6,540,000).
(c)

Oÿ cers:
Managerial Remuneration
Bonus

64,001,218
8,053,588

62,484,624
8,191,460

Perquisites:
Housing
Transport

19,002,473
3,674,875

18,577,668
3,976,740

94,732,154

93,230,492

31.00 Production Capacity, Actual Production and reason of Excess/Short Fall:
From 01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021
Production
Actual Production
Capacity (in Pieces)
(in Pieces)

Porcelain
Bone China

Shortfall (in
Pieces)

Capacity
Utilization

From 01 July 2019 to 30 June 2020
Production
Actual Production
Capacity (in Pieces)
(in Pieces)

Shortfall (in
Pieces)

Capacity
Utilization

14,400,000

11,717,699

2,682,301

81.37%

14,400,000

10,523,613

3,876,387

73.08%

5,400,000

3,246,418

2,153,582

60.12%

5,400,000

2,690,726

2,709,274

49.83%

Reason for Shortfall : Production as per market demand.
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32.00 Capital Expenditure Commitment
There was no capital expenditure contracted but not incurred or provided for as on 30 June 2021.
There was no material capital expenditure authorised by the board but not contracted for as on 30 June 2021.
Amount in Taka
01.07.202030.06.2021

01.07.201930.06.2020

33.00 Contingent Liabilities
This consists of as follows:
(a) Outstanding letter of credit(b) Outstanding letter of (Bank) guarantee to (Titas Gas Transmission and
distribution Company Ltd)

110,326,124

23,727,105

13,656,520

13,656,520

123,982,644

37,383,625

No provision is required as on the date of ﬁnancial position for contingent liabilities.

34.00 Claims not Acknowledged
There was no claim against the company not acknowledged as debt as on 30 June 2021.

35.00 Credit Facilities not Availed
There was no credit facilities available to the company but not availed of as on 30 June 2021 under an y contract, other than trade credit available in
the ordinary course of business.

36.00 Related Party Disclosure
Name of Related Parties

Nature of Transactions

Value of Transactions During the year

Balance at the year ended 30 June 2021

Bangladesh Export Import Co. Ltd.

Investment in Shares

-

243,673,774

Beximco Synthetics Ltd.

Investment in Shares

-

552,014

Short Term Loan

12,500,000

36,500,000

Due to Related Party:
New Dacca Industries Limited

37.00 Financial Risk Management
The company management has o verall responsibility for the establishmen t and o versight of the c ompany’s risk management framework. Risk
management policies, procedures and sy stems are reviewed regularly to reﬂect changes in mar ket conditions and the c ompany’s activities. The
company has exposure to the following risks from its use of ﬁnancial instruments.
i) Credit risk
ii) Liquidity risk
iii) Market risk
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of a ﬁ nancial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a ﬁnancial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations
and arises principally from the company’s receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis. Risk exposures from other ﬁnancial assets, i.e. Cash at bank and other external receivables are nominal.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the r isk that the company will not be able t o meet its ﬁ nancial obligations as they fall due . The company’s approach to managing
liquidity (cash and cash equiv alents) is to ensure, as far as possible , that it will always have suÿ cient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due , under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company’s reputation. Typically, the company
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ensures that it has suÿ cient cash and cash equiv alents to meet expected operational expenses, including ﬁ nancial obligations through preparation
of the cash ﬂ ow forecast, prepared based on time line of pa yment of the ﬁ nancial obligation and accordingly arrange for suÿ cient liquidity/fund to
make the expected payment within due date.
In extreme stressed conditions, the company may get support from the related company in the form of short term ﬁnancing.
Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices such as forigne exchange rates and interest will a˝ ect the companys
income or the v ale of its holdings ﬁ nancial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and c ontrol market risk exposures
within acceptable peramiters
(a) Currency Risk
The company is exposed t o currency risk on certain revenues and purchases such as r evenue from foreign customers and impor t of raw material,
machineries and equipment. Majority of the company’s foreign currency transactions are denominated in USD and EURO and relate to procurement of
raw materials, machineries and equipment from abroad.
Exposure to Currency Risk
Foreign Currency Denominated Assets
Trade Debtors- Foreign

US$

30-June-21
Foreign Currency

30-June-20

Equivalent Local
Currency (Tk.)

Foreign Currency

Equivalent Local
Currency (Tk.)

1,169,066

97,410,812

636,317

53,003,551

EURO

383,916

38,614,293

68,456

6,391,254

Total

1,552,982

136,025,105

704,773

59,394,805

(b)

(c)

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the r isk that arises due to changes in in terest rates on borrowing. There is no f oreign currency loan which is subjec t to
ﬂoating rates of interest. Local loans are, however, not signiﬁcantly a˝ ected by ﬂuctuations in interest rates. The company has not entered into
any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge interest rate risk as at the reporting date.
Risk(s) from Pandemic (Covid -19) and its Management :
The virus known as Covid-19, has a˝ ected the economy of Bangladesh in gener al and the oper ations of the c ompany in perticular. As per
general order of the Govt. of Bangladesh, the oÿ ces including production facilities of the company were closed down for 60 days during April
and May 2021 and therefore the operational activities of the company could not be continued in full scale, primarily, due to:
(i) Non presence in work place(s) by the employees fearing infection from the virus and due to restrictions in plying public transports.
(ii) Non opening /functioning of domestic market/Shops/Retail Stores due to continution of lockdown and/or non presence of customers.
(iii) Disruptions in international supply chain(s); and
(iv) Declining of export demand due to slowdown in the world economies.
Covid 19 disrupted the movements of goods, increased voyag time and freight charges.Consiquently importing cost at the buyers end
increased, causing declining the demand for the product. Also delayed clearence of the goods because of lockdown/congestion imports in
the importing countries a˝ ected the export sales.Therefore revenue generation and cash inﬂows a˝ ected.To improve the liquidity and to pay
employees,suppliers and utility bills,the company focused to increase the domestic sales. Also, the company availed the additional CC hypo
loan to overcome the liquidity constraints during the year.
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38.00 Payments Made in Foreign Currency :
01.07.2020-30.06.2021
Amount in
Foreign Currency

Equivalent
in Tk.

98,561
26,570
4,931,500

8,216,360
2,698,981
3,895,885

01.07.2019-30.06.2020
Amount
Equivalent
in Foreign
in Tk.
Currency

Import of Machinery, Equipments & Spares:
US$
Euro
JP¥
Total

-

-

14,811,226

-

Import of Raw & Packing Material :
US$
Euro
JP¥
GBP

3,172,668
604,979
288,271
34,955,230

Total

269,982,582
62,683,891
34,024,924
28,203,473

US$ 2,088,720
Euro 192,150
JP¥ 21,186,650
GBP 422,349

178,295,896
18,013,319
16,697,853
45,827,240

394,894,870

258,834,308

403,111,230

258,834,308

No other expenses including royalty, technical expert and professional advisory fee, interest, etc. was incurred or paid in foreign currencies except as
stated above.

39.00 Foreign Exchange Received against Collection from Export Sales:
01.07.2020-30.06.2021
Amount in Foreign
Currency
US$
EURO
Total

Equivalent in Tk.

01.07.2019-30.06.2020
Amount in Foreign
Currency

Equivalent in Tk.

5,572,806

469,230,216

US$ 6,796,500

570,905,972

456,244

159,563,490

Euro 1,734386

159,563,490

628,793,706

730,469,462

40.00 Events After The Reporting Period
a) The directors recommended 2.5% cash dividend (i.e . Tk. 0.25 per shar e) for the year 2020-21. The dividend proposal is subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
b)

No cir cumstance have arisen since this statement of ﬁ nancial position date which would require adjustment to, or disclosure in, the ﬁ nancial
statements or notes thereto.

Iqbal Ahmed
Director

O K Chowdhury, FCA
Director

Mohammed Humayun Kabir FCA
Chief Executive

Nargis Sultana
Head of Finance & Accounts

Dated, Dhaka
21 October 2021
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Outline…

SHINEPUKUR CERAMICS LTD.

(A BEXIMCO COMPANY)

Shinepukur Ceramics Ltd. (SCL) is the leading Bone China & Porcelain
tableware manufacturer and exporter of Bangladesh. Shinepukur
Ceramics Ltd. has been a successful brand, thanks to its
state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities, about 3,000 highly
skilled & motivated people and cutting-edge technology.
From its inception, SCL has been able to gain substantial
headway against its competitors and acquire
commendable market share from its competitors both
in Porcelain and in Bone China. Therefore SCL’s
position in the world’s tableware industry is very
high, with its world-class product quality, which
helped to attract and retain leading century-old
branded companies as its bluechip customers from
USA, Canada, UK, Germany, France, Italy, Japan,
Sweden, Norway, Denmark, Finland, Spain, Poland,
Mexico, Brazil, Chile, UAE, Australia, New Zealand,
Turkey, India, Egypt, Russia and still growing.
In domestic market also, Shinepukur Ceramics Ltd.
is very well known for its premium quality
tableware products. In Bangladesh, SCL is the leader
in Ceramics’ Market and ranked as number 1 in terms
of sales revenue and market share. It has more than
250 dealers to sell and distribute SCL’s products in
Bangladesh Market. In the hospitality sector, most of
the international hotels in Bangladesh use SCL’s
products.
The Company is ISO 9001:2015 certified and awarded
National Export Trophy for record eight (8) times by the
Government of Bangladesh. SCL was also awarded
Superbrands, D&B Corporate Award and Asia’s Most
Promising Brands 2010, 2011 & 2013 respectively.
‘Shinepukur’ is the name of trust and elegance that brings

A Classic Touch in Life...
AWARDED

D&B Corporate Award

Operational Head Office

2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015 2009-2010 2005-2006 2002-2003 2000-2001

N AT I O N A L

EXPORT

TROPHY

Beximco Media Complex, Level 9, 149-50 Tejgaon I/A, Dhaka 1208, Bangladesh
Tel: 6091000300 • Fax: +88 02 9661678 • E-mail: spclint@bol-online.com
www.shinepukur.com

AWARDED

D&B Corporate Award

2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015 2009-2010 2005-2006 2002-2003 2000-2001

N AT I O N A L

EXPORT

TROPHY

OPERATIONAL HEAD OFFICE

Beximco Media Complex, Level 9, 149-50 Tejgaon I/A, Dhaka 1208, Bangladesh
Phone : +88 02 8611891-5, +88 02 8618220-7, Direct : +88 02 9667135
Fax : +88 02 9661678, 8613470, E-mail : spclint@bol-online.com

PLANT

BEXIMCO Industrial Park
Sarabo, Kashimpur, Gazipur, Bangladesh
Phone : +88 02 7789756-8, Fax : +88 02 7789821, E-mail : sclfit@sclbd.net

SHINEPUKUR SIGNATURE SHOWROOM

The Westin Dhaka
Main Gulshan Avenue, Plot # 1, Road # 45, Gulshan-2, Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh
Phone : +88 02 8815093, +88 01714161638 • Fax : + 88 02 9661678, 8613470
E-mail : display@bol-online.com

www.shinepukur.com

